Jiens

SIM Technology

SIM Technology Group Limited

BANMEEBRERAR"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
NERESEME Y2 AR

1y

iy

NN NANARAN

AR

AN N W

J Nﬁﬁ

AN

AL AN
AR

1l ®
.

LI
(NI
IO
M
eI

ANNUAL REPORT e £#

identification purpose only {75!




Contents Bz

Chairman’s Statement 2 EE®mE
Management's Discussion and Analysis 9 EEENWRERIN
Development Concept of SIM Technology 19 EfRENREES
Care for our Future 20 BERMAIRR
Directors and Senior Management Praofile 21 ESRSHEEAE
Report of the Directors 26 EZERE
Corporate Governance Report 48 EBRRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 710 RE - ABRERRE
Independent Auditor's Report 121 B EERIRE
Consolidated Statement of Profitor Loss 129 #r&iE#H%E
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 130 #&aiEzsRkEAM
and Other Comprehensive Income BH R
. Consolidated Statement of Financial Positions 131 ﬁéﬂjiﬁﬂﬁiﬂ% ’
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 133 &aEzgsx

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 135 #ZSREBREREXR .
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 137 #&& MR
o Principal Properties 270 TEW%

-~ o] Summary 271 EJJ?TQ.}?ETE
Corporate Information 972 RAEEE
B

A (o

IIIIIIII|H||
.-“‘ ||||||HW\H
5 ‘um mnm|
I ||m ;
1l mm‘
|| ||‘
IR
TN
IFIINIRG
I | IH||H

= -
=

Wi on

AL 1

SRR




& > S -

Chairman’s Statement
FERE .

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$94.8 million (2023: gain attributable to owners of the
Company HK$344.3 million). The basic loss per share was HK4.42
cents (2023: earnings per share HK16.07 cents).
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FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

In 2024, the global economic and trade environment was poor, and
under the dual pressure brought by difficulties in developing overseas
markets and the profound adjustment of the domestic industry
structure, the Group’s business volume experienced a significant
decline: a turnover of HK$429.4 million was recorded for the Year,
representing a decrease of 21.1% as compared to HK$543.9 million for
last year. The loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$94.8
million for the Year, in which the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$82.3 million was recorded for the first half of the Year,
while the loss attributable to owners of the Company for the second half
of the Year shrank to HK$12.5 million.
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the first and second half of the Year. Secondly, there was an exchange
loss due to the deregistration of two subsidiaries. An exchange loss
of HK$30.8 million was generated from the difference between the
exchange rate at which the US dollars was injected to the subsidiaries
at incorporation ang the exchange rate at which the US dollars was
repatriated to the offshore parent company upon the deregistration of
the subsidiaries (This foreign exchange loss was included in the current
period’s profit and loss and did not affect the total net asset value of the

Group).

It is worth noting that the profit of the Group in 2023 was HK$344.3
million, and it is important to highlight that the profit was derived from
the land resumption (a one-off income before tax of HK$537.8 million).
Excluding that income, the actual loss in 2023 would be more than that
of 2024, which showed that the situation in 2024 does not represent a

shift from profit to loss.

The business volume of the handsets and IOT terminals business has
been decreasing year by year and was simply unable to support the
large structure established several years ago. During the Year, the Group
further optimized the structure and workforce, and a one-off loss of
HK$28.0 million (included in the loss of business segment of HK$61.5
million recorded in 2024) was generated during the Year due to the
payment of the compensation costs to the departing employees and
the continued clearance of the historically slow-moving inventory. While
further expenses for handling such historical issues will be generated in

the future, the amount will be limited.
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HK$338.0 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 28.6%. The
gross profit was HK$32.4 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 45.3%. The reason for the sharper decline in gross profit relative to
the turnover was the introduction of certain businesses with lower gross
profit in 2024 to increase the utilization of the factories, which proved to
help the factories to turn from losses to profits.
.

Facing intense internal competition, the Group has no choice but to
broaden the source of income and reduce the expenditure in order
to survive. The Group’s approach was: when it is not easy to broaden
the source of income, the reduction in the expenditure should be
prioritized. In this regard, during the Year, the Group further optimized
its team structure, kept the establishment reasonable and made the
best use of resources outside the establishment. The Group stringently
controlled all fees and expenses, focused on those major products and
key customers, produced good products and served customers well
to ensure its profitability. At the same time, it continued to vigorously
develop new customers, especially in the overseas markets, while

embracing the Al era, and actively developed new tracks.

Automotive intelligent products business

Shanghai Zhenkang, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
achieved a turnover of HK$46.3 million and recorded a segment loss of
HK$30.8 million in 2024. During the Year, Shanghai Zhenkang invested
significant R&D resources for the success of its in-vehicle infotainment
(“IVI") project, and the Group had not capitalized the R&D expenses
based on the principle of prudence, thus leading to a substantial loss

incurred during the Year.

In July 2024, the Group completed the delivery of the initial batch of
orders to its customer. The customer held a new vehicle launch event at
the end of September, and additional thousands of sets of cockpits have
been successfully delivered for installation in the customer’s vehicles.
According to the feedbacks from users, the R&D, mass production and

delivery of this model of IVI product were largely successful.
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of market shares at small losses in the handsets market, it is rare to
see such a large-scale competition in the automotive market where
prices are far lower than the costs. Despite the fact that the automotive
industry is traditionally lucrative and that automotive manufacturers
have large amount o? capital to cope with the competition, the situation
is unsustainable, and the market will eventually return to rationality.
The management considers that the automotive industry will still be
in a state of irrational competition in the short term, and under such a
challenging market environment, it is necessary to reassess the future
competitive strategies and adjust the strategic layout of new businesses

in a timely manner.

Property management

For the Year, the revenue of property management was mainly derived
from the leasing of Block A and Block B of SIM Technology Building
in Shanghai, factory units and commercial properties in Shenyang.
Total area of approximately 76,000 square meters was leased out. To
utilize our resources more effectively, the Group will continue to develop
the property management business by leasing out the spare space at

factories and other buildings.

The revenue of property management for the Year amounted to
HK$45.0 million (2023: HK$52.8 million) with a gross profit margin
of 92.1% (2023: 90.9%). During the Year, based on the forecasts of
the future rental market and the actual leases of the Group, the valuer
conducted an impairment assessment of the investment properties held
by the Group. Valuation loss of total HK$56.0 million was recorded by

the Group which resulted in a significant loss for this business segment.
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the management has judged that the industry is in a stage of excessive
competition, and it is currently not an opportune time for expansion.
“Maintaining profitability while staying stable” is the most appropriate
response at the moment instead. Therefore, the Group will scale back
non-essential investments, adopt a cautious stance and wait for the right
opportunity for breakthrough. It will proactively explore new directions

and seize emerging o%portunities ahead of curve.

The Group has also noticed the major strategic opportunities brought
about by the wave of Al innovation. Compared with a prudent and
conservative stance in operation, the Group will be proactive and
aggressive in Al technology. In 2025, on one hand, the Group will add
Al functions to its terminals products and continue the iterations and
upgrades; on the other hand, it will require the full utilization of Al tools
in internal operations to improve its efficiency and reduce its operating

costs through the replacement of human labour with Al.

The management firmly believes that by the simultaneous
implementation of prudent business strategies and Al technology
empowerment, the Group can not only control business risks but also
grasp the window period of benefits from technology, thereby striving to
seize the opportunities in emerging sectors and planning ahead of time

for the high-speed development in the future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation
to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers, principal bankers and
professional advisers for their support. | would also like to thank all
employees of the Company for their efforts and dedication throughout
the Year.

Wong Cho Tung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the revenue of the Group was HK$429.4 million (2023:
HK$543.9 million), in which the revenue from handsets and 10T
terminals business and automotive intelligent products business
(together, “Core Business”) decreased by 21.8% as compared with that
in 2023 to HK$384.3 million (2023: HK$491.2 million). The revenue
from property management (“Non-core Business”) decreased by 14.6%
as compared with that in 2023 to HK$45.0 million in 2024 (2023:
HK$52.8 million).

The gross profit for Core Business of the Group for the Year was
HK$51.5 million (2023: HK$75.0 million). The gross profit margin for
Core Business was 13.4% (2023: 15.3%) and the gross profit margin
for Non-core Business increased to 92.1% (2023: 90.9%) The overall
gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was 21.7% (2023: 22.1%).
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The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$94.8 million (2023: gain attributable to owners of the Company
HK$344.3 million) for the Year. The basic loss per share for the Year
was HK4.42 cents (2023: earning per share HK16.07 cents). The
primary reasons for the Group’s turnaround to loss for the Year are
consistent with the circumstances disclosed in the 2024 interim report.
Firstly, the domestic and international economic conditions continue
to deteriorate, coupled with the significant losses incurred in the first
half of the year, marking it difficult to reverse the loss situation of the
Group’s core business for the whole year. However, the primary reason
for the loss in the Year is still operating loss caused by the substantial
decrease in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and the
exchange rate losses. During the Year, several subsidiaries in the PRC
were deregistered and the significant depreciation in value of RMB to
USD during the Year when compared to the exchange rate when the
USD was injected to the said subsidiaries at incorporation has resulted
in tens of millions of foreign exchange loss. Furthermore, the Group’s

significant profit in the year 2023 was primarily attributable to the one-
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by the local government of Qingpu District, Shanghai Municipality, PRC.
The absence of such non-recurring gain in the Year, also caused to the

Group’s turnaround from profit to loss.

Segment results of Core Business

Year ended 31 December

& o AEETBA MBI E RS - e
REBERQE

TEERNDBEHR

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023 (re-presented)
HE-E-ME HE-_Z-=F
tTZRA=t—-HLEE +TZA=+—HIEFEE =)

Gross Gross profit Gross profit

Revenue profit margin Revenue  Gross profit margin

A e EFE WA EH ERE

HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %

HEBT HEAZX % BEET ABAET %

Handsets and 10T terminals business T4 K ¥IB 48 4% i 275 338.0 324 9.6 473.7 59.3 12.5

Automotive intelligent products BHEEERER 46.3 19.1 41.1 175 15.7 89.3

business

Total FCE 384.3 51.5 13.4 491.2 75.0 153

Handsets and 10T terminals business FHRYBRARIREL

The revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 28.6% to
HK$338.0 million (2023: HK$473.7 million) in 2024. As the global DR
economic and trade environment was poor, the overseas orders
were greatly reduced. In addition, the Group and other domestic
manufacturers were faced with the situation of oversupply and shortage
of demand. In order to improve the factory utilization rate, the Group BIT) °
introduced some business with relatively low gross profit margin in
2024, the overall gross profit margin decreased to 9.6% (2023: 12.5%)

for the Year. The revenue of ODM business contributed to approximately

89% of the revenue of this segment in 2024 (2023: 91%).
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Automotive intelligent products business

The automotive intelligent products business was operated by Shanghai
Zhenkang, which became a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company through acquisition last year, becoming a new business
segment of the Group in 2024. Figures for the year ended 31 December

2023 have been re-presented for comparative purpose.

In 2023, the revenue from this segment primarily came from non-
recurring engineering (“NRE”) fee. The Group had not capitalized the
R&D expenses based on the principle of prudence. As a result, although
the gross profit was high in 2023, this segment recorded significant
losses. In the second half of 2024, the Group completed the delivery
of orders to its customer. Revenue for the Year included NRE and
hardware revenue, with the gross profit margin decreased to 41.1%.
Similar to 2023, the Group had not capitalized the R&D expenses based
on the principle of prudence, thus this segment still recorded significant

losses for the Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$360.3 million (31 December 2023: HK$74.2 million), among which
89.9% was held in Renminbi, 6.6% was held in Japanese Yen, 3.4%
was held in US dollars and the remaining balance was held in Hong
Kong dollars, and short-term bank deposits of HK$580.8 million (31
December 2023: HK$693.7 million), among which 73.8% was held in
US dollars and the remaining balance was held in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2024, the Group did not have any pledged bank deposits
(31 December 2023: HK$22.0 million). The Group intends to finance its
working capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank balances.
The total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$29.2 million
as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$33.0 million), all of
which was denominated in Renminbi. All of the bank borrowings were

at floating interest rates and repayable within one year.
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The respective turnover period of inventory, trade and notes receivables,
trade and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business is

presented below:

Inventory turnover period FEREEE
Trade and notes receivables turnover period

Trade and notes payables turnover period

In 2024, the Group adopted the “just-in-time” supply mode and shifted
to a demand-oriented “pull” production and distribution model so as
to reduce the inventory level as much as possible. At the same time,
the Group has enhanced the sales management by achieving more
accurate forecast and response to customer demand, thereby reducing
the overstock or shortage caused by forecast deviations. As a result,
the inventory turnover period for the Year significantly decreased as

compared to that of year 2023.

In 2024, due to intensified market competition, in order to maintain
market share, the Group had to relax the credit policy for certain
selected customers and appropriately extend the credit period. As
a result, the trade and note receivables turnover period for the Year

significantly increased as compared to that in 2023.

In 2024, the Group’s sales declined leading to a corresponding
reduction in procurement volume. As a result, the balance of trade
and notes payables decreased. The Group implemented a restrictive
procurement policy to reduce the generation of trade and notes
payables. Therefore, the trade and notes payables turnover period in the

Year significantly decreased as compared to that in 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 3.1 times (31 December 2023: 3.3 times).
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The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory into
cash and its sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-

term and long-term obligations.

Treasury Policies
The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The
Group’s surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits

in reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables,
trade payables and bank balances are denominated in US dollars,
thereby exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. As at 31
December 2024, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign
exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposure

in US dollars when necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 2,143,351,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

No shares of the Company have been issued during the Year.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2024, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$1,921.2 million (31 December 2023: HK$2,149.5 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$29.2 million (31 December 2023: HK$33.0
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank

borrowings over total assets, was 1.5% (31 December 2023: 1.5%).

Through reviewing its gearing ratio on a regular basis and based on its
future capital planning needs, the Group strikes a balance between
shareholder return and capital security. It also adjusts its capital

structure in response to changes in the operational environment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

During the Year, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investment or capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
investment.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approximately 570 (2023:
688) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group may also offer
discretionary bonuses and grant share options under the share option
scheme of the Company to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs
incurred by the Group amounted to HK$137.7 million (2023: HK$189.1

million) during the Year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of

the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to factors including the
Group’s operating results, responsibilities of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market statistics.

The Company has maintained a share option scheme, the primary
purpose of which is to motivate the eligible persons referred to in the
scheme, which include executive Directors and employees of the Group,
to optimise their future contributions to the Group and to reward them
for their efforts. Details of the share option scheme of the Company are
set out in the Report of the Directors and note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
During the Year, the Group did not have any future plans for material

investment or capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events of the Group occurred since the end of
the Year.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology
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LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term value for our customers,
Shareholders and employees.

TARGET TO BECOME MARKET LEADER

Our target is to make the Company the market leader in handset and
IOT terminals product solutions and services. All employees of the
Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We continue to attend to, in a timely manner,
our customers’ needs through continuous innovation in technology and
management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.
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Care for our Future
BOERE MBI AR

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision,
the Group aims to make the world a better place through our continuous
efforts.

Support from the community is vital to any corporate development, thus
giving back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of
our limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take
up our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group)
should not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich
ourselves spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can
share and practice our charitable culture so as to create a better and
more harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and
started from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Mr. Wong Cho Tung (“Mr. Wong”)

aged 80, is the chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Wong is responsible for participating
in formulation of the direction, strategies and be
responsible for the development plan of the new
business of the Group. Mr. Wong is the chairperson
of Shanghai SIM Technology Limited and a director
of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom. Mr. Wong is also
the director of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info
Dynasty”) and Intellipower Investments Limited
(“Intellipower”), both of which are the substantial
Shareholders. Mr. Wong together with his spouse,
Mrs. Wong, an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated in 1968 from
the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(currently known as Beihang University), specialising
in electrical engineering. Mr. Wong has decades
of experience in the electrical, electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mr. Wong is the father
of Mr. Wong Hei, Simon, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs. Wong”)

aged 80, is an executive Director and a director of
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited. Mrs. Wong is
responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. Mrs. Wong together with her spouse,
Mr. Wong, an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Over the years, Mrs. Wong and Mr.
Wong had established a number of companies which
engaged in the electronics and telecommunications
business including Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, one of
the Group’s main operating subsidiaries which was
established in November 1993. Mrs. Wong has over
20 years of operational and management experience
in the electronics and telecommunications industry.
Mrs. Wong lectured at the Electrical Department of
the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs. Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji
University since 2003. Mrs. Wong graduated in
1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang
University), specialising in electrical engineering.
Mrs. Wong is the mother of Mr. Wong Hei, Simon, a
non-executive Director.
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Mr. Zhu Wenhui (“Mr. Zhu")

aged 43, is an executive Director and general
manager of the finance department of the Group’s
operations headquarters in the PRC (“PRC
Headquarters”). Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Tongji University in 2004.
From 2004 to 2005, he was credit manager at the
Shanghai branch of Bank of Communications where
he was responsible for corporate risk management
and credit assessment. He was responsible for
leading the establishment of a financial management
control system that meets the needs of the Group’s
strategic development and improving its financial
system in terms of comprehensive budgeting,
accounting analysis and risk management and
control. He also has extensive experience in capital
operations projects, international settlements,
taxation and capital management required for the
operation of PRC companies. He is a Certified
Management Accountant of the Institute of
Management Accountants in the United States of
America. Mr. Zhu was appointed as an executive
Director in February 2021.

Mr. Zhu Qi

aged 45, is an executive Director and the chief
operating officer (“CO0") of the PRC Headquarters.
Mr. Zhu Qi obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical
automation from Shanghai University in 2002,
minoring in computer science and technology. Mr.
Zhu Qi joined the Group in 2003. Prior to becoming
the COO in 2020, Mr. Zhu Qi had served in various
departments of the Group including the technology
research and development department, the sales and
marketing department and the resource department.
He has extensive experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry, especially in market
and product development and project management.
Mr. Zhu Qi is responsible for the deliveries,
operation, production and manufacturing, quality
control and information technology of the Group’s
business in the PRC. Since 30 September 2022, Mr.
Zhu has also been a core member of the Group’s
administration team in the PRC Headquarters, which
performs the roles and duties of the chief executive
officer of the Group. Mr. Zhu Qi was appointed as an
executive Director in September 2023.
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Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

aged 52, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Wong
Hei, Simon obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science
from Boston University in 1995, specialising in
electrical engineering. Prior to joining Sunrise
Technology Limited EEEFRBEER QA
(“Sunrise Technology (HK)”) in 1995, he worked
at the headquarters of National Semiconductor in
the Silicon Valley. He was appointed as director of
Sunrise Technology (HK) in 1999. He has been a
director of Sunrise Technology Group Limited £
B EEAB R AT since February 2000. He was a
director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited &£
FIEAFMRAF from February 2000 until 2013. Mr.
Wong Hei, Simon was appointed as the managing
director of Chinatronic Technology Limited from
2001 to 2003. He was the managing director of SIM
Technology HK Limited (RFEHEEBER QA
from 2004 to 2009. During the period from October
2003 to 2007, he was director of 82 MEFRl%
AR AR] (Shanghai Sunrise Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd.). He was director of Simcom International
Holdings Limited and Suncom International Holdings
Limited from 2004 to 2013 and a director of X=
ABR/AR] (Max Vision Limited), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, from 2006 to
2013. He served as an executive Director and the
president of the Company from 2005 to 2013.
At present, Mr. Wong Hei, Simon is a director of
multiple investment holding companies. He has
more than 26 years of experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry and extensive
experience in investment and business management.
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon is the son of Mrs. Wong and
Mr. Wong, who are both executive Directors and
controlling Shareholders. He is also a shareholder of
Info Dynasty and Intellipower, both of which are the
substantial Shareholders. Mr. Wong Hei, Simon was
appointed as a non-executive Director in December
2021.
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in January 2025.

Mr. Li Minbo (“Mr. Li”)

24

in February 2021.
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Ms. Lai Ka Fung May (“Ms. Lai")

aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director,
the chairperson of each of the audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee ”) and the nomination
committee of the Board (“Nomination Committee”).
Ms. Lai is a Certified Public Accountant and has
over 30 years of experience in accounting, taxation,
auditing and corporate finance. Ms. Lai is currently
the Principal Partner of May K.F. & Co. C.P.A. and
a Partner of H.H. Liu & Co. C.P.A.. She obtained a
master’s degree of Arts in International Accounting
from City University of Hong Kong in 2001. Ms. Lai
is also an independent non-executive director of
Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code:
° 997) and Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(stock code: 296), both of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director

aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director,
a member of Audit Committee, a member of
Remuneration Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1991, a master’s
degree in engineering from Beihang University
in 1997 and a doctor’s degree in engineering
from Tsinghua University in 2001. He worked
as Postdoctoral Fellow at National University of
Singapore from 2001 to 2002. From 1991 to 1994,
he was a college teacher at the worker college
of Changhe Aircraft Industries Company* (& 1]
M T 22 7]). He was a researcher at Kingdee
International Software Group Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 00268), from 2003 to 2004 and has been
an associate professor of the School of Computer
Science and Technology of Fudan University
since 2007. At present, he is the director of
the Manufacturing Data Research Office of the
Shanghai Key Laboratory of Data Science. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
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Mr. Yang Wentao (“Mr. Yang”)

aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Yang obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in automatic control, majoring
in control and manipulation system of fluid, from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(currently known as Beihang University) in 1990
and an executive master in business administration
degree from Tsinghua University in 2010. He has
over 18 years of experience in global procurement.
He was the chief procurement officer (CPO) and the
vice president of Lenovo Group Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with
HKD counter stock code 992 and RMB counter
stock code 80992) from 1998 to 2017. He also has
extensive experience in the investment industry.
From 2018 to 2020, he was the chief executive
officer of Beihang Investment Co., Limited. Mr.
Yang then founded Beijing Gold Master Investment
Limited and Beijing Rarsig Medical Limited in 2020
and 2023 respectively. Mr. Yang was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in January
2024.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Chan Chi Yin (“Ms. Chan”), CPA

aged 46, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”).
Ms. Chan joined the Company in April 2017 and was
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group.
Ms. Chan was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 28 June 2017 and appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company on 29 June 2018.
Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over twenty
years of experience in the field of accounting. Ms.
Chan obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree with majoring in Accountancy and a Master
of Science Programme in Finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 129.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the
Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/she/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2024 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 are set out on page
271 of this Report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

(including sale of treasury shares).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2024 were approximately HK$268,102,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and retained
profit of approximately HK$74,254,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.
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The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Cho Tung (Chairman)
Ms. Yeung Man Ying

Mr. Zhu Wenhui

Mr. Zhu Qi

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (resigned with effect from 25 January 2025)

Ms. Lai Ka Fung May (appointed with effect from 25 January 2025)

Mr. Wu Zhe (resigned with effect from 25 January 2024)

Mr. Li Minbo

Mr. Yang Wentao (appointed with effect from 25 January 2024)
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” section of this Report.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of

its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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changed as follows:

Name of Directors

Exps

Mr. Wong Cho Tong

FHREE

Ms. Yeung Man Ying

BXBE L

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

IHEE

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

BEHESE

Mr. Wu Zhe

HERE

Mr. Li Minbo

FHORSEE

Details of change
BBFE

The Group provided accommaodation, leased from a third party independent of the Company and its
connected persons (“Independent Third Party”), to Mr. Wong Cho Tung and Ms. Yeung Man Ying
for their use and that of their family members at no charge. The estimated aggregated monetary
value of the benefit in kind is approximately HK$1,148,000.
REBMETEREERGNELZ T EERIER EEB IR ARRLEBEATNE=77 (1B
VE=FD)  MERERAER - 2D RHOEAEEEEEL 1,148,000/ T

The Group provided accommodation, leased from an Independent Third Party, to Mr. Wong Cho
Tung and Ms. Yeung Man Ying for their use and that of their family members at no charge. The
estimated aggregated monetary value of the benefit in kind is approximately HK$1,148,000.
REBMTERLERGNEL LA ERMER EEB IR ARRLEBEATNE=77 (1B
VE=ZFD)  HERERAER - ZEDFRHOEAEEEEEL 1,148,000/ T

The Board resolved to pay a one-off additional director’s fee of HK$78,000 to Mr. Wong Hei, Simon
in the Year.

ERHARNAFEREBAEEIN—RIERINESRET8,0008TT

The Board resolved to pay a one-off additional director’s fee of HK$78,000 to Mr. Liu Hing Hung in
the Year.

EZERARRNAFERABEELEE SN —RIERIEREL78,000/ETT °

The Board resolved to pay a one-off additional director’s fee of HK$78,000 to Mr. Wu Zhe in the

Year.

EFEEFARKEFERRG EEN—RMEEINEEHR S 78,0008 T
The Board resolved to pay a one-off additional director’s fee of HK$78,000 to Mr. Li Minbo in the

Year.

BN AFERAFHOREE N —RIEREINERRL78,000ETT -
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AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES
As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

5979

R_ZE-_N&E+=-A=+—H BEERARA
FETBABRARE R, SEAEEEE
2 - RN RESF (EEREFRPE
RBIEXVER (BB EMIES71E) ((FH KR
16&011)) R EEE IRIRFE 5 R HR B & H1 3521650
FRARBATHEE2BRME - SRIE LT
A ERC3P L BITAESHITEFZIHH
EAESP AN ([1RAESFA]) B A AR RERZFT
ZIRRBmBKBIT

FEXDRARBZER

Approximate

Name of director

EEpR

Mr. Wong Cho Tung

THREE

Ms. Yeung Man Ying
T 3+

Mr. Zhu Qi
RETE

Nature of interest

REtE

Corporate interest (note 1)
NRiER (MEE1)

Personal interest (note 3)
& AR = (A/523)

Total

BE

Corporate interest (note 2)
NAVER (M522)
Personal interest
&A=

Total
BE

Personal interest
ENG 35
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Total number of

percentage of

ordinary shares of interest in
the Company the Company
/NS EA D B R
EERAH BHES
(note 4)

(Hizt4)

1,209,084,000 56.41%
23,912,000 1.12%
1,232,996,000 57.53%
734,857,000 34.29%
24,234,000 1.13%
759,091,000 35.42%
225,000 0.01%



1. Mr. Wong Cho Tung (“Mr. Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting
power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr. Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in
the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Wong is the sole director of
Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom
(BVI)") is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be
interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by
Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms. Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs. Wong”), the spouse of Mr. Wong, controls more
than one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs. Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in
the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

3. 3,098,000 of which are held jointly by Mr. Wong and Mrs. Wong.

4. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,143,351,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2024.

As at 31 December 2024, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

Share Option Scheme

The Company had adopted a share option scheme on 1 June 2016
(“Existing Share Option Scheme”). Unless otherwise terminated or
amended, the Existing Share Option Scheme shall remain in force until

1 June 2026, being 10 years after the date of its adoption.

i, FHERB AL ([E5£4]) #FlInfo Dynasty Group
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1z #EzE - AR T4 ZIntellipower Investments
Limited ([Intellipower]) #) 1 — 2 £ & Simcom
Limited ([Simcom (BVN)) B ESeE2 &S - 1R
BEHFRPEEOIEXVE  MELERERES
Intellipower & Simcom (BVI)ET# 2 2 AR &5 5
454,227 ,000% £.20,000,000/% % {7 #E# °
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Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to

recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources

that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds

an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Existing Share Option

Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the

following classes of participants to take up the options:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director) of

the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity; and

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity;
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and, for the purposes o
may be made to any company wholly-owned by one or more persons

belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
aggregate number of the issued shares of the Company at the day
on which the Existing Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was
255,789,630 shares, representing approximately 11.93% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report. The maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Existing
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate

exceed 30% of aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes (including exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the aggregate
number of issued shares of the Company from time to time. Share
options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their respective associates must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who or whose associate is the grantee of the
options). Where any grant of options would result in the shares issued or
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive Director
or any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the aggregate
number of issued shares and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant, such
further grant of options must be approved by the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.
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Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was payable on acceptance

of the grant of an option.

An option might be accepted by a participant for grant of the option
within such time as may be specified in the offer which shall not be later

than 5 days from the date of the offer.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target and
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised under the Existing Share Option Scheme.

An option might be exercised during such period as the Directors might
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from

the date of grant.

No option has ever been granted under the Existing Share Option
Scheme since its adoption. Therefore, during the Year, no share option
was granted, vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Existing Share
Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this report,
the total number of shares available for grant is and was 255,789,630

shares.

In view of the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
which became effective on 1 January 2023 (“New Share Scheme
Rules”), share options under the Existing Share Option Scheme shall
only be granted in accordance with and as permitted by the New Share
Scheme Rules. No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be

exercisable in relation to an option that has not been exercised.
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Share Award Scheme
On 30 September 2020, the Company adopted a share award scheme

(“Share Award Scheme”) involving existing shares of the Company.
According to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, it would remain in force until 29 September
2030. The Share Award Scheme was terminated by the Company on 13
March 2024 (“Termination Date”), having considered the Company’s
overall policy and the cost and benefit of maintaining the Share Award

Scheme.

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme were to recognise the
contributions made by certain eligible persons and to give incentives
thereto in order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Such eligible persons included any Director,
any employee of the Group, any director of the Company’s subsidiaries

and any consultant of the Group.

The total number of shares awarded or to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of the
issued shares of the Company at the day on which the Share Award
Scheme was adopted, which was 236,509,030 shares, representing
approximately 11.03% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this report. In any 12-month period, the maximum number of
shares which might be awarded to a selected grantee shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of the issued shares of the Company at the

day on which the Share Award Scheme was adopted.

The rules of the Share Award Scheme did not prescribe any uniform or
specific vesting period for share awards granted thereunder. Subject to
the terms and conditions of the Share Award Scheme and the fulfilment
of all relevant vesting conditions (if any), the awarded shares shall
vest in the selected grantee in accordance with a vesting schedule

determined at the discretion of the Board.

As at 1 January 2024 and the Termination Date, the number of share
awards available for grant under the mandate of the Share Award
Scheme was 194,879,030 shares. During the Year, no share award was

granted, vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award Scheme.
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Share ard cheme prior to the Year. Pursuanrt td Rule 17.07(1) of

the Listing Rules, details of the share awards granted to each participant

under the Share Award Scheme are disclosed as follows:

Category and

name of granteg

ERARRRIS

Directors

g

Mr. Wong Cho Tung

ThAzE

Ms. Yeung Man Ying

¢ ad

Tolat23t

Date of grant

AR

14122023

CEozE
+ZA1ER
14122023

—g-=

R —

+ZA1EA

Purchase  unvested awarded

Vesting period of ~price of awarded
awarded shares shres (HKS)

RRRAG -A-RHAEE

RARANERE  BERG

1 day from the date 0
of grant (note2)
AtRgER liE7)
1 day from the date 0
of gt (note2)
RtRgElR i)
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the Year  Termination Date
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average closing

price of the

shares

Closing price ~~ Fair valug of ~ Number of Number of ~ immediately
Purchase of shares  awarded shares unvested Number of unvested  before the date

priceof  immediately  atthedate awardedshares  Numberof  Numberof awardedshares  Numberof awarded shares onwhich the

Vesting period awarded  before the of grant asat  awarded shares ~ awarded shares cancelled - awarded shares asat  awarded shares

Category and of awarded shares  date of grant (HKS) 1January ~ granted during  vested during during  lapsed during 31 December  were vested
name of grantee Dateof grant ~ shares (HKS) (HKS) (note 3) 023 023 023 023 023 023 (HKS)
L RingE

BiREE  RENAE Hog0Z H-82zfF  KERGSR

RERAY  BEREE  NOVE  -B-RAM WoSSZF WOBCZE WOBCZE O WOBCIE fCASt-B 0 EREM
$ERH BEE  funE (B7) AEERE ARINED AEENED AHENER AANNRE  HABED NETHUGE

RRABAREA  RHRE HERE (#7) (#7) W3  BREER  RHER  RKAHE  REEE  RO¥E RERGEE (%7)
Directors
£
Mr WongChoTung ~ 14/12/2023 1 day from the 0 029 620000 0 20814000 20814000 0 0 0 03
deeofgant  (oke?)
THRESE o tuf=EcA L N7
t-ATER
Ms. Yeung Man Ying ~ 14/12/2023 1 day from the 0 029 620000 0 2086000 20816000 0 0 0 03

Gatgofgant  (nofe2)
e Tan et Ripges )

TZATRE
Totelt 12500000 0 41630000 41,630,000 0 0 0
Notes: B
1. There was no exercise period for the awarded shares. 1. HEEIAR 17D W AT H o
2. There was no purchase price payable by the grantee for the awarded shares. 2. AR SRR D T AR ARNBEE - SEERG
The awarded shares were transferred to the grantee at nil consideration on the REBAHUTREERTEEA

date of vesting.

3. The Company measured the fair value of the awarded shares at the vesting 3. RABREE B BIRIER DR B RGN FB
date, based on the weighted average closing price of the shares immediately EAAMNEESRTETEEBRONAF
before the date on which the awarded shares were vested. The fair value of B - BREMB/ROREL BBHRTFELNR03
each awarded share at the date of grant was approximately HK$0.3. BIT ©
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DEBENTURES
As disclosed above under the paragraph headed “Share Award
Scheme”, Mr. Wong Cho Tung and Ms. Yeung Man Ying were granted
20,814,000 and 20,816,000 shares respectively under the Share Award
Scheme on 14 December 2023. The awarded shares vested in them on
15 December 2023.

Other than the Existing Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme and save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year
nor at the end of the Year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities

(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
in the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any

time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the

Group was entered into or existed during the Year.
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CONTRACT OF

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted

between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there was
no contract of significance in relation to provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling Shareholders or

any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
During the Year and as at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have

any connected transaction (including continuing connected transaction).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this Report, permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is being

in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

BREE ERME

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(Htaz2) B A=

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(H1i23) B A=

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued

share capital of 2,143,351,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2024.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr. Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs. Wong are disclosed under the section headed
[Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares] above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr. Wong is disclosed under the
section headed [Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in

Shares] above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, there was no
other substantial Shareholder or person who had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence

with reference to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent. Particular consideration is paid in assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Director who has been
serving on the Board for more than 9 years and will be seeking to be
re-elected in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“Annual General Meeting”). When appropriate, reasons will be given
in the circular to explain why the Board believes he is still independent

and should be re-elected.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out

in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules.
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For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for 59.10% of the
Group’s total sales and the largest customer accounted for 16.40% of
the Group’s total sales.

For the Year, the percentage of the Group’s total purchases attributable
to the five largest suppliers was less than 30%.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares (excluding treasury

shares)) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication of
future development of the Group for the Year are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” in this Report. That discussion forms part of this report of the

Directors.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of

the Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1.

In 2024, due to the impact of Sino-US trade relationship, the
demand for overseas ODM business has reduced significantly,
resulting in a significant adverse impact on the Company’s
profits. While certain upstream suppliers of our ODM business
have lowered domestic production capacity and accelerated
the shift to overseas production, some failed to align their
strategies in time and experienced a breakdown in their capital
chain, and collapsed:

Due to evolving market needs and the impact of the Sino-US
trade war, the demand for the Group’s products from overseas
customers has decreased with certain production processes
shifting abroad, resulting in an increase in the Group’s operating
costs. While overseas ODM business continued to shrink,
demand for our domestic ODM business remained flat. This has
resulted in a more competitive landscape in our ODM business
and has further reduced the gross margin of our ODM business.
Market players are subject to heightened risk of supply chain
disruption amid conflicts in Sino-US trade relationship, leading to
tariff barriers and trade restrictions, which in turn have translated
directly into higher prices for raw materials and certain key chips.
The pursuit of alternative suppliers and materials to prevent
supply chain disruptions has further driven up the Company’s
operating costs. To cope with uncertainties along the supply
chain, the Company is required to expand the pool of supplier
resources to reduce dependence on any single source. We may
further need to increase our inventory levels to absorb the impact
of supply chain disruptions, posing higher requirements on the

Company'’s capital operation.
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certain tenants has experienced a significant decline in their
businesses. Therefore, we are subject to the risk of lease
termination

Affected by the general economic downturn across the nation
and the globe, businesses and merchants leasing the Group’s
properties are experiencing reduced market needs and
deteriorating performance to various extents. For small enterprises
with weak risk aversion abilities, their cash flow is prone to
shortage and they may go bankrupt. The Group may therefore
lose tenants and rental payments. The Group took the initiative
to reduce or waive the leasing fees for some of the tenants who
renewed their leases in 2024 so as to help them ride out the
storm. Even so, certain tenants have inevitably terminated the

lease.

In 2024, the Group’s refined management structure, optimized
personnel costs, and capital investment in new business
directions continued to increase

In 2024, the Group continued to adjust its management structure
and optimise its business composition, shifting the majority of our
R&D forces in the ODM department to Hefei, Anhui Province,
investing more to grow our R&D team in Hefei, downsizing the
R&D team in Shanghai, Beijing and Shenyang, and therefore
incurred a significant amount on personnel optimization
compensation. With the Group’s smart cockpit advancing to mass
production in 2024, personnel in our business center has shifted
from R&D based to delivery assurance based so we are expecting
a higher amount of R&D personnel optimization compensation

and an increased cost of material.
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The Group's success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

Employees

The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company.
The Group pays attention to self-improvement of staff and
provides them with a working environment full of fairness,
openness, sincerity, warmth and opportunities. The Group’s
competitive remuneration system brings long-term and stable
return for staff and also takes into account the long-term and
stable development of the Company. The Group determines
staffs’ remuneration and promotion based on their capacity and
contribution to the Group. The Company recognizes staff with
outstanding performance and the same values with the Company
as valuable assets. We keep trying our best to provide promising
career prospect and a platform for them to display their talents
fully. Therefore, the Company not only helps our employees
to improve their knowledge, skills and experience through
performing their own duties, but also creates good conditions
in facilities and environment suitable for their development. To
facilitate the proper allocation and development of high caliber
talents, the Company has set up an employee career development
system which focuses on both management and technical skills.
Through this system, each outperforming key member can seize
the opportunity to improve overall abilities by various ways. The
Company aims to create conducive conditions for talents to
demonstrate themselves and grow through career,and also build
solid team with talents.
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The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle of
mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards such
as 1IS09001, 1SO014001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict social
responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the supplies meets
our requirements and their production management systems also
comply with requirements on environment, occupational health
and safety management system as stated in relevant laws and
regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance to

meet delivery demand.

Customers

The Group establish complete management systems in
compliance with national standards and abroad, as well as
well-known clients’ requirements, which cover product quality,
environment, occupational health and safety, information
security and product safety management. Through survey on
clients’ satisfaction we conduct every year, our clients express
their positive feedback on quality, logistics, cost and service.
Among our clients all over the world, both new and old well-
known clients supervise and inspect each management system
of the Company every year. Apart from this, our Company also
implements Key Performance Indicator (KPI), internal control
scheme, management appraisal program in every aspect. In order
to continuously enhance management systems of the Company,
we set up a specific department to supervise operation and pass

the results to the management on a regular basis to review.
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Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,

but the responsibility of each of us. The Group initiates and strives
to minimize its environmental impact by using water saving facilities,
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. The Group also operates in strict compliance with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess all necessary
permission and approval from the PRC regulators. The Group also
has environment policies to reduce emission, raise efficiency use of

resources and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Group have
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant

impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the Year, the Group did not have any

material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Cho Tung

Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2025

BERHETEIAEEEBOET AL
e AWEE - AEERB—ZIE R
$$lﬁk%Lﬁm B . B IE K R

X E RSB AT B BRI - &
E@ﬁﬁ%&iﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁlMﬁv
Wi EHRRHEEE IV — )N BEFA] At -
AEEIE AR - REERERRRLSR
SEBREE -

HREERNEST
REBRNEBLERANRRETBENME AT
T MAREAS RIET BB RPTES - &
SEMEEXBRBBRTEEZREE - RA
FEARBERRE AL - AEEDETE
TEEBEEEAEBAEEAFENABED
KB -

B

RAEEFREERRAES - AREN
BEALHEBETHERRERERNES
RAFE  AEBBEZE S EMAREETRE
FERRERZER

REESS
THEE
E

BB
—E-RE=A-+—H

BANKEEERAR —F _UFFR

47



48

the Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasise a quality Board with sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing

Rules during the Year.

According to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. On 30
September 2022, Mr. Gao Jun resigned as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. Ever since the resignation of
Mr. Gao Jun, the Company has not been able to identify a suitable
candidate for the position of the chief executive officer and the office of
the chief executive officer therefore remains vacant. This constitutes a

deviation from code provision C.2.1.

However, a management team which takes up the roles and duties of
the chief executive officer has been set up by the Group since Mr. Gao
Jun’s resignation. The team comprises five members, including three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Cho Tung, Mr. Zhu Wenhui and
Mr. Zhu Qi, and two members of the management of the Company,
namely Mr. Yang Hanjie (the chief marketing officer of the Group’s
operational headquarters in PRC) and Mr. Yang Feng (the General
Manager of the ODM Division of the Group’s operational headquarters
in PRC). In light of the above, even though the Company has not been
able to appoint an individual to take up the role of the chief executive
officer since Mr. Gao Jun’s resignation, the Board considers that such a
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code is

appropriate under such circumstances.
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Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the
Company by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and
effective manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the

Company and its Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and ensuring

that the Company’s culture aligns with them;

2. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate

performance;

3. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between

management and Board members; and

4. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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As at ” Dgéber 2024 and the date of this annuai report, the Board
comprised four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Cho Tung (Chairman)
Ms. Yeung Man Ying

Mr. Zhu Wenhui

Mr. Zhu Qi

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Resigned with effect from 25 January 2025)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung May (Appointed with effect from 25 January 2025)
Mr. Li Minbo

Mr. Yang Wentao

During the Year, the Company fully complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. No
incident of non-compliance with the aforementioned requirements was
noted by the Company during the Year.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on
pages 21 to 25 of this Report.

Save as disclosed in this Report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship) with each other as required to be disclosed

pursuant to Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
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who was responsible for formulating the direction, strategies and the
development plan of the new business of the Group. As disclosed
above, until 29 September 2022, the role of chief executive officer was
performed by Mr. Gao Jun who took up the responsibility of the overall
management of the Group’s product and business planning, including
management of product definition, sales, procurement, production and
delivery. The roles and duties of the chief executive officer have been
taken up by the management team set up by the Group since Mr. Gao

Jun’s resignation.

The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Having assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, the Company considers that none of the independent
non-executive Directors fails to meet one or more of such guidelines.
Accordingly, the Company still considers the independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management
including the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by
the Board and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board

before public reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). All Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s
businesses, including relevant rules and regulations. Directors shall
have full access to information on the Group and are able to obtain
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors. No request was made by any Director for such independent
professional advice during the Year. The Company Secretary shall
prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for inspection by

Directors upon request.

The Board held six meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in the Year. The following is the attendance record of each
Director at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company

for the Year:

Number of general Number of Board
meeting attended/ meetings attended/
Number of general Number of Board
Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Mr. Wong Cho Tung 171 6/6
Ms. Yeung Man Ying 11 6/6
Mr. Zhu Wenhui 1/1 6/6
Mr. Zhu Qi m 6/6
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon 11 6/6
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
(Resigned with effect from
25 January 2025) 171 6/6
Mr. Wu Zhe
(Resigned with effect from
25 January 2024) 0/0 mn
Mr. Li Minbo 11 6/6
Mr. Yang Wentao
(Appointed with effect from
25 January 2024) i 4/4
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the

Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance,
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board. The
Company has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with the

Corporate Governance Code (“Board Diversity Policy”).

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board takes into account
various elements of diversity including but not limited to age, gender,
race, cultural and educational background, skills, professional
knowledge, and industry experience in determining the appointment
and reappointment of the Directors and proposed candidates. All
Directors appointments are based on merits and due regard is given to

the Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can benefit from it.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives, skills and experience
within the Board, a range of measurable objectives will be considered
when deciding on appointments of directors and the continuation
of those appointments, including but not limited to gender, age,
race, cultural and educational background, length of service, skills,
professional experience, regional and industry experience and any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate from time to time.
To implement Board diversity, the Company shall not only appoint
directors of the same gender. In addition, in forming its perspectives
on Board diversity, the Company will also take into account its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The Board was
satisfied with the diversity of the Board composition during the Year. As
at the date of this Report, there was one female Director on the Board,
namely Ms. Yeung Man Ying. Accordingly, the Company has not set any
numerical targets or timeline for achieving gender diversity on the Board
or adopted any measures to develop a pipeline of potential successors

to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board Diversity Policy and its implementation and

effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.
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Wo}k~fofce level. As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio of the

workforce of the Group (including senior management) was 58:42 male

to female.

INDEPENDENT VIEWS POLICY

To ensure that independent views are available to the Board, the
Company is required to have at least three independent non-executive
Directors and has adopted a policy (“Independent Views Policy”) in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, pursuant to which the

independent non-executive Directors are required to, among others:

(i) keep up-to-date with the Company’s business affairs and be
involved in scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving

agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance

reporting;

(i) bring independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct, and help review some of the Board’s major

decisions and the Company’s performance in relation to corporate

goals, and monitor performance reporting;

(iii)  take the lead where potential conflicts of interest arise; and

(iv)  serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the

Nomination Committee and other governance committees of the

Board, if invited.
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Accordiﬁg to :[he Independent Views Poli he independent non-
executive Directors shall allocate sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities and should not accept an invitation to serve as an
independent non-executive Director on the Board unless they can
devote adequate time and effort to the work involved. Independent
non-executive Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient time and
dedicate adequate attention to each board and board committee. In
addition, the independent non-executive Directors shall at least annually
attend meeting with the chairman of the Board without the presence of
other Directors. The Independent Views Policy and its implementation

and effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board met once
with all Directors present to review the policies and practices and
compliance by the Company and reviewed and monitored the training

and continuous professional development of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Further explanation as to how the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives is set out under “Chairman’s Statement” from

pages 2 to 7 of this Report.
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During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that
they complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Mr.
Wong Cho Tung, Ms. Yeung Man Ying, Mr. Zhu Wenhui, Mr. Zhu Qj,
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon, Mr. Liu Hing Hung (resigned on 25 January
2025), Mr. Wu Zhe (resigned on 25 January 2024), Mr. Li Minbo and
Mr. Yang Wentao (appointed on 25 January 2024), participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

On 24 January 2024 and 25 January 2025, Mr. Yang Wentao and Ms.
Lai Ka Fung May were appointed as independent non-executive Director
respectively. In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, on 22
January 2024 and 15 January 2025, Mr. Yang Wentao and Ms. Lai Ka
Fung May, respectively (i) obtained legal advice from a firm of solicitors
qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as regards the requirements
under the Listing Rules that are applicable to him/her as a Director
and the possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange; and (ii) confirmed that he/she
understood his/her obligations as a Director.

During the Year, the Company Secretary fully complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of professional
training. The Company does not engage any external service provider as

its company secretary.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.
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The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written

terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time; (iv) assessing performance of the executive
Directors; and (v) reviewing and approving matters in relation to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board are available on

the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year to
review the remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Group and to approve termination of the Share Award Scheme.

The attendance record is as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 4/4
Mr. Wu Zhe

(Resigned with effect from

25 January 2024) 1/1
Mr. Li Minbo 4/4

Mr. Yang Wentao

(Appointed with effect from

25 January 2024) 2/2
Mr. Wong Cho Tung 4/4

No Director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.
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whom are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Liu Hing
Hung (replaced by Ms. Lai Ka Fung May on 25 January 2025), Mr.
Wu Zhe (replaced by Mr. Yang Wentao on 25 January 2024) and Mr.
Li Minbo, and one executive Director being Mr. Wong Cho Tung. They
have substantial experience in human resources management. The
Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr. Liu Hing Hung during the
Year and is chaired by Ms. Lai Ka Fung May with effect from 25 January
2025.

In addition to considering the performance of individuals and the
profitability of the Group, executive Directors, who are assisted by the
Group’s human resources department, are responsible for reviewing
all relevant remuneration information, obtaining market conditions and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee remuneration packages
for Directors and senior management for consideration and approval.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options and share awards.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

serving every period of 12 months.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options and/or share
awards to executive Directors in accordance with the share option
scheme(s) and share award scheme(s) adopted by the Company from

time to time.
Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a discretionary bonus as

determined by the Remuneration Committee based on the performance

of the Group and that of the individual Director.
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ong Hei, i
Company to serve as a non-executive Director for a term of one year
commencing from 31 May 2024, unless terminated by not less than
one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other and
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other related

provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Each of Ms. Lai Ka Fung May, Mr. Li Minbo and Mr. Yang Wentao
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an
independent non-executive Director for one year commencing from 25
January 2025, unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in

the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
the Corporate Governance Code. The Company fully complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules during the Year. No
incident of non-compliance with the aforementioned requirements was
noted by the Company during the Year. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process

and other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met two times in the Year to review with
senior management and the Company’s external auditors the internal
and external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and
discussed auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters (including the 2023 annual financial statements and
2024 interim financial statements before recommending them to the

Board for approval).

imon entered into a letter of appointment with the
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Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr. Wu Zhe

(Resigned with effect from

25 January 2024) 0/0
Mr. Li Minbo 2/2

Mr. Yang Wentao
(Appointed with effect from
25 January 2024) 2/2

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Hing Hung (replaced by Ms. Lai Ka Fung May
on 25 January 2025), Mr. Wu Zhe (replaced by Mr. Yang Wentao on
25 January 2024) and Mr. Li Minbo. The Audit Committee is chaired by

Mr. Liu Hing Hung who has professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed this Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules

and the Corporate Governance Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i) reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; (iii) assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
(iv) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and their succession planning, in particular
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the
Board are available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock

Exchange.
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to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and matters

relating to the re-election of the retiring Directors.

The following is the attendance record of each member at the

Nomination Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr. Li Minbo 2/2
Mr. Wong Cho Tung 2/2

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Liu Hing Hung (replaced
by Ms. Lai Ka Fung May on 25 January 2025) and Mr. Li Minbo, and
one executive Director being Mr. Wong Cho Tung. The Nomination
Committee was chaired by Mr. Liu Hing Hung during the Year and is
chaired by Ms. Lai Ka Fung May with effect from 25 January 2025.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company endeavors to ensure the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
required to support the execution of its business strategy and ensure it is

effective.

According to the nomination policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of the Board will be made on a merit basis and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria. The selection criteria used

in assessing the suitability of a candidate include:

o the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and knowledge which
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy);

o the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;

o the candidate’s character and integrity;
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in discharge of a director’s duties;

o whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and length of service;

i (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the candidate is in
compliance with the criteria of independence under the Listing

Rules; and

° any other factors as may be determined by the Nomination

Committee or the Board from time to time.

In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director, or the Nomination
Committee may invite nomination from members of the Board for
consideration. The Nomination Committee will then evaluate the
personal profile of the candidate based on the criteria set out above,
undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. For the
nomination of independent non-executive Director, the Nomination
Committee will also assess the candidate’s independence in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules. For re-
appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee will
review the candidate’s attendance at the Board committee meetings,
Board meetings and general meetings of the Company, his/her level of
participation and performance in the Board and make recommendations
to the Board and the Shareholders for re-election at the general

meetings of the Company.
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third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years at each Annual
General Meeting. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which
he/she retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but
as between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among

themselves) be determined by lot.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$2.42 million as audit fees and HK$0.50 million as non-

audit fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2024.

The following table sets out a reconciliation of the auditors’ remuneration
as disclosed above and in note 12 to the consolidated financial

statements in this Annual Report.

Services rendered HKD'000
Audit services 2,420
Non — audit services

Interim review fee 500
Total 2,920

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 121 to 128 of
this Report.
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The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review
them at regular intervals. The Board does not have a designated risk
committee.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management and external auditors, the Board has
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review
covers a whole financial year. However, such systems are designed to
limit the risks to which the Group exposes to an acceptable level but
not eliminate them. Hence, such systems can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements in financial

information and record or loss.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by
key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-down
approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified,
prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish

the Group’s objectives.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.
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optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking into
account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the Year, the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
material internal controls system and is of the opinion that the resources
for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function are adequate and sufficient. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with
the present risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and up
to the date of this Report, nothing has been found which requires

substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all
other major components of the internal control system of the Group for
the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) in
compliance with code provision F.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. Declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company can declare dividends
from time to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the financial performance of the Group, the Group’s expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans, retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group, the Group’s
liquidity position, the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group, and any other factors that the
Board deems relevant.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time by
the Board and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be proposed
or declared in any given period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds
to requests for information and queries from the investment community
via the investor relations personnel.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(“Shareholders’” Communication Policy”) which provides for different
communication channels between the Company and the Shareholders.
According to the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, in order to enable
the Shareholders to engage actively with the Company and exercise
their rights in an informed manner, the Board is committed to providing
clear and full information of the Group to Shareholders in a timely and
effective manner. As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 9 February 2024, the Company shall make available its corporate
communications (as defined in the Listing Rules) to the Shareholders
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
Hard copies of the same will also be provided to the Shareholders upon
request.
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and enquiry lines of the Company and may at any time make a request
for the Company’s information to the extent that the same is publicly
available. In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend or appoint
proxies to attend on their behalf the Annual General Meeting to raise
their enquires. The Annual General Meeting provides a good opportunity
for communications between the Board and Shareholders. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and related papers are made available to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting. The
Chairman and Directors (if applicable), or the duly appointed delegate
will answer questions from the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting about the Group’s business. The Company’s external auditors
will also attend the Annual General Meeting. During the Year, the
Company held its Annual General Meeting on 7 June 2024, which was

attended by members of the Board and the Company’s auditor.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s share registrar and the results
of the poll will be published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Financial and other information are made
available on the Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

In light of the above, the Board was satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy during the
Year.
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A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS

A.
1,

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more of those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing
Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a
special general meeting will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the
nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.
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meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as
Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
and the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, (i) the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general

meeting will not be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, the Company did not amend its constitutional

documents.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
SIM Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (the “Report”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (“2024" or the “Reporting Period”). This
Report describes the Group’s management measures and performance

in environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects.

REPORTING SCOPE

All information contained in this Report reflects the Group’s performance
in environmental protection and social care in 2024. The management
of the Group determined the scope of disclosure of this Report after
considering the Group’s resource allocation and the operation of its
different segments. The general scope of disclosure of this Report
includes all existing business segments of the Group, namely handsets
and Internet of Things (“IOT”) terminals business, automotive intelligent
products business and property management business. As far as
environmental data is concerned, this Report includes entities in all
segments that have significant revenue contribution to the Group and
relevantly significant ESG impact, namely the headquarters in Shanghai,
the factory located in Tongcheng and the factory in Shenyang for lease.
The production lines of the Qingpu factory have been moved to the
Tongcheng factory in the year ended 31 December 2023 (“2023” or the
“previous year”), and the relevant data has been included in the data of

the Tongcheng factory.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Stock Exchange”). This Report provides an overview
of the performance of the Group in ESG aspects. The information in
this Report is derived from the official documents and statistical data
of the Group, as well as the monitoring, management and operation
information compiled by its subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant
systems of the Group. The last chapter of this Report contains a

complete content index for easy reference.
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balance and consistency in the preparation of this Report. The Group
has applied these reporting principles in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide, details of which are as follows:

Materiality: During the Reporting Period, the Group analysed its material
ESG issues through materiality assessment, and regarded the identified
material issues as the focus of the preparation of this Report. The
materiality of different material issues has been reviewed and confirmed
by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and senior
management. For further details, please refer to the sections headed

“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: This Report, where appropriate compares quantitative
key performance indicators (the “KPIs”), and explains the standards,
methods, assumptions, and sources of key conversion factors when

calculating relevant information.

Balance: This Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s
performance and avoids selections, omissions, or presentation formats

that may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the reader.

Consistency: This Report describes the information about changes in
the public domain and calculation methods as appropriate. Qingpu
Factory’s production lines were relocated to the Tongcheng Factory in
2023; the relevant changes are set out in the explanatory notes in the

chapters in which the affected data are presented.

If you are in doubt or have any recommendations in regards to this
Report, or the Group’s ESG plans, you are welcome to email us at
ir@sim.com.
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The Group has established an ESG structure to ensure that ESG is in
line with the Group’s business strategy and integrated ESG into the

Group’s business operations and decision-making process.

The Board is fully responsible for the Group’s ESG matters, including
formulating strategies, monitoring the Group’s ESG performance,
ensuring the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, and reviewing and approving the disclosures in the ESG
reports. To promote a consistent ESG management across the Group,
the Group has established an ESG working group (the “ESG Working
Group”) to handle ESG-related matters on behalf of the Board. The
ESG Working Group is composed of senior management responsible
for ESG matters and general staff from different departments including
operations, human resources and finance departments. The ESG
Working Group is responsible for implementing the Group’s ESG
measures, collecting and analysing ESG information, reviewing the
implementation of ESG-related matters by different departments of the
Group, as well as reporting to the Board on the progress of its work at
least once a year at a Board meeting and advising the Board on ESG
matters as and when appropriate. The Board has the appropriate skills
and experience required to meet the Group’s business needs, including
ESG related issues. The Group has also engaged the ESG consultant to
facilitate the collection and analysis of relevant data of the Group and to

provide advice on ESG management and practices.
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To further enhance

environmental-related targets for the year ended 31 December 2021
(“2021"). The Board would arrange meeting and review the progress
of achieving the relevant targets at least on an annual basis for the
discussion of ESG relevant topics, review and approval of the ESG
report, and ensure that the ESG Working Group has sufficient resources
to achieve these targets. During the Reporting Period, the Group
reviewed its four environmental targets set in 2021. The Group believes
that through setting targets and implementing relevant measures,
the Group will continue to raise the ESG awareness of employees,
promote behavioural changes, and ultimately integrate the concept of

sustainability into the Group’s operations and development.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s stakeholders refer to groups and individuals that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business or would be affected by the
Group’s business. The Group’s stakeholders include not only internal
directors, management and employees, but also external shareholders
and investors, customers, suppliers and partners, regulatory authorities
and government agencies, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”),

media and other various types of community groups.

The Group is committed to achieving mutual benefits and joint
development with its customers, staff, shareholders and other
stakeholders, so as to benefit the society by sharing the fruits of
its growth. Thus, the engagement of the stakeholders is a crucial
component to the Group’s business development and fulfilment of

corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group interacted with stakeholders
through a number of channels on both regular and ad hoc basis. The
following are the communication channels between the Group and
different stakeholders during the Reporting Period, and the expectations
and requirements of stakeholders that the Group understands through

these channels:
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BHE

Directors and management

SEMEEE

Employees

Shareholders and investors

PRERFIREE

M REER

° Compliance operation

° Economic performance

o AREE
o BRI
o Remuneration and benefits

° Development and training

° Employee care
° Employee communication
° Occupational health and safety

o HMEEF

o BRI

e EBIME

e EBIESA

o BEREEZRZE

° Return on investment

° Improving product and service
quality
° Market position

° Compliance operation
° Information transparency

° Risk management

e Corporate governance
o RAER

s  RBAERERKES
o THIGHIL

o ARk

. EEEAE

o [l f B 1R

o DEEA
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Internal training and seminars
Intranet

Regular meetings

AWERE IR &
NER A RE

&

Internal system
Staff meetings
Training
Annual meeting
Notice board

N EP A RE
BIg®

b=l

Fg

I

/

>

Social media

Mass media

Shareholders’ meetings

Annual reports, financial reports and
announcements

Website

e

KRB

BRE®

FiR - UHHRERLE
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Customers

P

Suppliers and partners

HER A ER

Regulatory authorities and
government agencies

B ERBBUA S

NGOs and media

FEBR T A A AN R B

Customer privacy protection
Stable relationship
Customer service quality
Business integrity and ethics
Health and safety

RIEZ LR
REREF

fEERE

Business ethics and reputation
Long-term relationship
Fair tendering

EESLEL
REAFER
AFRIE

Regulatory compliance

Policy implementation

Tax payment

Responding to national strategies
BER

BT

BT

LR R

Environmental protection
Health and safety

Giving back to society
Social welfare

RE R
fe e 2
G} ta -4
HEtEF

BEEE

Mobile applications
Social media

Website

Hotline

Satisfaction survey form
Direct communication
FHememER

FEAZ IS

)

HARE R
mEEREEX
HEER

Direct communication
Regular review
Performance assessment
On-site inspection
HEER

EHIRrE

BHIFHE

RISER

Qualification review
Meetings
Direct communication

AHTE
&

BEAR

Mass media
Mobile applications
Website

Social media

Visits

RBREH
FrerEMARER
R

RS
RanEE
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expecta(')“;.f the Group. Looking forward, té Gyr‘oup will continue
to maintain and enhance its communication with stakeholders, collect
opinions from stakeholders through various channels more extensively,
so as to present the content and information of the ESG reports in a way

that meets the expectations of stakeholders better.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group determines the scope of its ESG disclosures with reference
to the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide. The Board and the
ESG Working Group identify a series of material ESG-related issues by
regularly considering the Group’s business operations and industry
standards, and regularly inviting the Group’s stakeholders to conduct
materiality assessment. The priorities of these material issues are
assessed based on their importance to the sustainable development of
the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment relates to the current
stage of development of the Group and may change in the future. The

following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:
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@
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=

Influence on stakeholder assessment
O ENZE

Low

Materiality Assessment Matrix

[

Influence on the Group’s business

HAEKEXEBHTE

High
=
5
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The Group regards
important indicator for the Group’s future ESG planning and policy
formulation, and continuously promotes the Group’s sustainable

development process based on these material issues.

ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSIONS

As an industry-leading mobile communication and 10T enterprise,
the Group insists on operating its business in an environmentally
responsible manner, adheres to the concept of sustainable development
and adopts various measures to reduce the potential impact of
production and business activities on the environment, so as to achieve
harmonious coexistence between the society, the environment and
different stakeholders. We strive to integrate innovation and green
concepts into the entire product life cycle, as well as the whole process
of research and development, production, logistics and customer
service, and make unremitting efforts to reduce energy consumption,

resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

In view of the global trend of emission reduction, the Group has
established an environmental management policy, including the
“Management Manual” that is in compliance with 1ISO9001 and
ISO14001, as well as a set of rules and regulations, to monitor the

environmental impact of the Group’s activities.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the “Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the “Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”. To this
end, the Group regularly evaluates the sources of factory emissions, and
collects data on welding tin emissions and domestic sewage discharge
for monitoring and analysis. In terms of factory air emissions, the Group
turns on the ventilation device over its production line at appropriate
time, organises qualified entity to monitor the industrial gas outlets, and
regularly inspects and maintains the exhaust pipe to ensure that the
exhaust gas meets the emission standards. The air emissions from the
factory were not significant. The Group’s air emissions! mainly come

from the fuel used by vehicles owned by the Group.
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Indicator! Unit

g By

Nitrogen oxides tonnes

REY N

Sulphur oxides tonnes

v et N

Particulate matter tonnes

R N

Note:

1. The information with reference to the air emissions data includes but is not

limited to “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

The Group’s GHG emissions mainly come from direct (Scope 1) GHG
emissions generated by the fuel use of vehicles, and the use of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) in staff canteens, as well as energy indirect

(Scope 2) GHG emissions from the purchased electricity.
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Indicator?

B&

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions

Bk (BE-)REREBIHRE

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions

fREE (BED) REREBERE

Total GHG emissions

REREBHRES

Average GHG emissions generated per
full-time employee?®

BE2BRERETHEENREREINES

Average GHG emissions generated per
square foot of factory area*

B HREETFEERNREREYNE

Average GHG emissions generated per
HK$'000 revenue®

BFATRG THEENREREINE®

Unit
By

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

N E RS

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

N E g S

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

NSRS

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
generated per employee

RE—SrixEE BB

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
generated per square foot

RS E S FHR

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
generated per HK$'000 revenue

NS LiRER TR

2024 2023
—E-mE —EC=F
53.75 86.22
4,257.29 6,436.57
4,311.04 6,522.79
10.78 13.91
0.015 0.010
0.011 0.013
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This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s tenants.
GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and is
based on, but not limited to, “The GHG Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange”, “Announcement on the Release of the 2023 Electricity Carbon
Footprint Factor Data” issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of
China, “Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions from Electronic Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National
Development and Reform Commission of China, “Gasoline for motor vehicles”
(GB17930-2016) and “Automobile diesel fuels” (GB19147-2016) issued by
Standardisation Administration of China, “Global Warming Potential Values”
from the IPCC Sixth Assessment Report (AR6), and the “Energy Statistics

|

Manual” issued by the International Energy Agency.

The number of employees used by the Group to calculate this GHG emission
intensity as of 31 December 2024 was the number of full-time employees, i.e.
400 (as of 31 December 2023: 469 full-time employees), which are also used

for the calculation of other intensity data.

In 2024, the area used by the Group to calculate this GHG emission intensity
is the factory area and the office area of the headquarters, i.e. approximately
285,690.91 square feet (2023: approximately 661,451.99 square feet), which
are also used for calculating other intensity data. During the Reporting Period, as
the Shenyang Factory generated income for the Group in the form of property
leasing, only the office area of the Shenyang Factory actually used by the
Group’s staff, i.e. approximately 68,869.80 square feet (2023: approximately
71,005.14 square feet) was included in the gross area for the purpose of
calculating the intensity data. The production line of the Qingpu factory was
moved to the Tongcheng factory in 2023, so its area is not included in the total

area.

In 2024, the Group’s revenue used in calculating this GHG emission intensity,
which is the revenue generated from the core business, amounted to
approximately HK$384,336,000 (2023: approximately HK$491,177,000),

which are also used for calculating other intensity data.
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The Groﬁp set its first GHG emissions targewi 01, aiming to reduce
GHG emissions intensity (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$'000
revenue) by 5% by the year ending 31 December 2025 (“2025”) as
compared to the level in 2021. To make meaningful comparison against
the target set in 2021, the GHG emissions intensity (approximately
0.009 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$’000 revenue) remained
equivalent to the level in 2021 (approximately 0.009 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent/HK$'000 revenue). The GHG emissions intensity
of the Group in 2024 (approximately 0.011 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent/HK$’000 revenue) decreased by approximately 15% as
compared to the level in 2023 (approximately 0.013 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent/HK$'000 revenue), this is mainly due to the relocation
of the production line of the Qingpu factory to the Tongcheng factory
in 2023 and the decrease in the Group’s total electricity consumption
in 2024. The Group will continue to review the Group’s GHG emissions
intensity and implement GHG emissions reduction measures to ensure
that the GHG emissions intensity remains up to standard in the next

reporting year.

To achieve the target, the Group actively adopts electricity saving and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions, including strict
control on the use of air conditioners, lighting facilities and office
appliances. Specific measures will be described in the section headed

“Use of Resources”.

In addition, the Group has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations and has formulated safe operating procedures for the
collection and storage of hazardous waste. The waste generated should
be placed in special collection points and temporarily stored by trained
specialists in temporary storage of hazardous waste equipped with fire
extinguishers, storage boxes and water sources. The Group also has
stringent requirements and rules for the disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Group would only enter into agreements
in relation to waste disposal with companies that meet its standards.
The Group collects the relevant licences of such companies, such
as business license, the Shanghai Dangerous Materials Business
License, Road Transportation License of the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the amount of hazardous waste generated by the Group was
insignificant, so the relevant data was not disclosed in this Report, and

the target related to hazardous waste is not applicable.
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emissiolﬁ»d wastage reduction, it has signed relevant undertakings
with the suppliers. The suppliers also actively cooperate in minimising

unnecessary plastic packaging of some components and parts. The

Group also encourages suppliers to recycle and reuse packaging

materials.

The performance of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is as

follows:

Indicator Unit

it By

Waste paper boards tonnes

BEARAR N

Waste plastics tonnes

[E¥ERB NI

Total amount of non-hazardous waste® tonnes

EEREEDEES NI

Average amount of non-hazardous waste kilogram per employee
generated per full-time employee

BERIBEETHEENESTEEYE Fr/EE&

Average amount of non-hazardous waste kilogram per square foot
generated per square foot

BYAREEFHREENEZEENE TR/ TFAR

Average non-hazardous waste generated kilogram per HK$'000 revenue
per HK$'000 revenue

BTFAETWG TEEENBEEEEY S Fr,/ FEWE

Note:

6. During the Reporting Period, as the operation of the Shenyang Factory did
not generate waste paper boards and waste plastics, the total amount of non-
hazardous waste only includes the amount of non-hazardous waste generated
by Shanghai headquarters and the Tongcheng factory.
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The Group set the target for non-hazardous waste for the first time in
2021. The target is to reduce the non-hazardous waste generation
intensity (kilogram per HK$'000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared
to the level in 2021. To make meaningful comparison against the target
set in 2021, the non-hazardous waste generation intensity of the two
factories of the Group in 2024 (approximately 0.053 kilograms per
HK$'000 revenue) increased by approximately 121% as compared
to the level in 2021 (approximately 0.024 kilograms per HK$'000
revenue). This is mainly due to the relocation of the production line
from the Qingpu factory to the Tongcheng factory in 2023. After the
relocation, some materials continued to be used at the Tongcheng
factory, while others were disposed of in 2024. As a result, there was
a significant increase in the total amount of non-hazardous waste in
2024. During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous waste generation
intensity (approximately 0.054 kilogram per HK$'000 revenue) of the
Group increased by approximately 86% as compared to the level in
2023, which was mainly due to the relocation of the production line
from the Qingpu factory to the Tongcheng factory in 2023. After the
relocation, some materials continued to be used at the Tongcheng
factory, while others were disposed of in 2024. As a result, there was
a significant increase in the total amount of non-hazardous waste in
2024. In addition, the Group has set a directional goal for the previous
year, namely holding at least one waste reduction related activity to raise
employees’ awareness in this regard. During the Reporting Period, the

Group’s employees participated in an event related to litter picking.

To achieve this target, the Group reduces the generation of waste
through the adoption of automated testing robots, technological
innovation, replacement of aging equipment, personnel integration, and

addition of automated assembly lines.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
including but not limited to the “Air Pollution Control Ordinance” and
the “Waste Disposal Ordinance” in Hong Kong, and the “Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law

of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.
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The Group is of the view that efficient use of resources is one of the
development priorities in sustainable development. Thus, improving
the efficiency of resources utilisation not only enhances environmental
performance, but also lowers cost and optimizes operational efficiency

in the long run.
The Group’s main energy consumption comes from direct energy
consumption of fuel used by vehicles and LPG used in canteens, and

indirect energy consumption from purchased electricity.

The performance of energy consumption by the Group is as follows:

AEERE  AREREREARERREN
Z— BMELENEREAYETMERITRR
MR - KR F IOBERA RS EERE -

AL E T ERLRBFER B WAL A A H
MREFERBHBCABRAEENERERHE
o ARBINBE N ELREELRIBR o

AEEREERBERRROT

Indicator’ Unit

it By

Direct energy consumption MWh

HEERER KBS

Indirect energy consumption MWh

B2 REIR B FE KBS

Total energy consumption MWh

BEIR AR S KBS

Average energy consumption per full-time MWh per employee
employee

BREBIES TIRIRERES KR EE

Average energy consumption per square foot MWh per square foot

¥ HREEFIRERERES KEE,FHR

Average energy consumption per HK$'000

MWh per HK$'000 revenue

2024 2023
—E-NE —EC-=HF
121.72 202.93
6,861.07 8,030.81
6,982.79 8,233.74
17.46 17.56
0.024 0.012
0.018 0.017

EE

revenue
BFE T TR EREE KER/ Tl
Note:
7. This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s tenants.

The data used in the calculation of energy consumption conversion has made
reference to, include, but are not limited to: “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange and the “Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of GHG
Emissions from Electronic Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National
Development and Reform Commission of China.
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he Group set its first target for energ . The targ
reduce the energy consumption intensity (MWh per HK$'000 revenue)
by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in 2021. To make meaningful
comparison against the target set in 2021, the total energy consumption
of the two factories of the Group in 2024 decreased compared to the
level in 2021, and the energy consumption intensity (approximately
0.015 MWh per HK$'000 revenue) increased by approximately 67%
as compared to the level in 2021 (approximately 0.009 MWh per
HK$'000 revenue), which was mainly due to a decline in the revenue
used for calculating intensity in 2024. During the Reporting Period,
the energy consumption intensity (approximately 0.018 MWh per
HK$'000 revenue) increased by approximately 6% as compared to the
level of 2023, which was mainly due to a decline in the revenue used
for calculating intensity in 2024. The Group will continue to review the
Group’s energy consumption intensity and implement energy-saving
measures to ensure that the energy consumption intensity remains up

to standard in the next reporting year.

To achieve this target, the Group has strengthened internal efforts on the
promotion and control measures of energy conservation. For example, it
reduces electricity consumption of air conditioners in winter by utilising
the residual heat of patch production lines, while adopting cold-water

air-conditioning and energy saving lighting systems in summer.

The Group maintains strict compliance with the Directive on the
“Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment” (“RoHS”) and “Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals” (“REACH”) in product
design and manufacturing, so that its products meet the environmental

quality standards for exportation to the European Union.

The Group consumes water supplied by the municipal tap water
company and has not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is

fit for purpose.

MEZ  BEEZEEAS: E_7_£$ 2 ﬁzﬁ/ﬁ
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FRRERERAER S - —FKEEM
B - MAETREREZE (£90.016K FLES, /T
T E) B =T = —FHIKF (90.009 A K E
B TR N T 4967% 0 EEXERMH
EA_?_mi)ﬂ{’ﬁﬁ“ﬂ*a’ﬂlﬁzm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁT
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Indicator Unit

it By
Total water consumption® cubic meter
ke SR

Average water consumption per full-time cubic meter per employee

employee

BEE2HIES FRKE SNHKREE

Average water consumption per square foot  cubic meter per square foot

ST ARAAFIEKE ST TR

Average water consumption per HK$'000 cubic meter per HK$'000
revenue revenue

T FIORKE MK T

Note:

8. This information does not include water consumption by the Group’s tenants.

The Group set the target of water consumption for the first time in 2021,
which is to reduce the water consumption intensity (cubic meter per
HK$'000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in 2021. To
make meaningful comparison against the target set in 2021, the total
water consumption of the two factories of the Group in 2024 decreased
compared to the level in 2021, and the water consumption intensity
(approximately 0.05 cubic meter per HK$'000 revenue) increased by
approximately 25% as compared to the level in 2021 (approximately
0.04 cubic meter per HK$’000 revenue), which was mainly due to a
decline in the revenue used for calculating intensity in 2024. During
the Reporting Period, the water consumption intensity (approximately
0.09 cubic meter per HK$’000 revenue) of the Group decreased by
approximately 31% as compared to the level in 2023, which was mainly
due to the production line of the Qingpu factory was relocated to the
Tongcheng factory in 2023. The Group will continue to review the water
consumption intensity of the Group and implement water conservation
measures to ensure that the water consumption intensity remains up to

standard in the next reporting year.
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2024 2023
—E-IF —E-=F
34,303.00 64,275.35
85.76 137.05

0.12 0.10

0.09 0.13
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are as follows:

We do a good job in energy and water conservation promotion
and education, so that every employee of the Group can fully
understand the importance of water conservation, with their sense
of responsibility being enhanced, and we widely encourage every
employee to actively and consciously achieve and develop a habit

of water conservation;

Promote the use of water-saving sanitary ware in the Group to

reduce waste and save water; and

A regular inspection system has been established, and designated
personnel are responsible for inspecting and recording the water
supply facilities within the Group to ensure normal use of water
by the Group. If problems are found, measures will be taken to

prevent water leakage in a timely manner.

As for the consumption of packaging materials, the recyclable packaging

containers and packaging component materials of all the Group’s

finished products have identification marks and labels in accordance
with the requirements of “GB/T 18455-2010 Packaging Recycling
Marks”.

The performance of consumption of packaging materials by the Group is

as follows:

Indicator Unit

b B

Total packaging material consumption® tonnes

BEME A S AIE

Average packaging materials used for finished kilogram per finished mobile
mobile phones per unit phone

FEMFHRIUKQOTFHREMEEREE TR/ FREKR

Note:

9.

In 2024, the Group calculated the packaging material intensity by using
approximately 329,538 (2023: 325,238) mobile phone finished products.

T

o  MIFEREKEERETLH  BAKE
BB IRNBBEKNERE - 18
BEMR  BzaBE-LEITHEEA
BHMEBIEK - BB ® THEN—ETT
~HEE

s HGEAKREERNHEERESKEEGER
A RDRE - SOMAK: R

o  ERKEHREHE  HAEIARRHA
SEAKREETLR RS R -
REAEEERMAK - HEBROEER
R ERERAR ARG I - BRRRKERRE A -

REEMEREREAE - AEBABRKRAI ]
B FIFA R B AR BZME R A S MRS E
SRR EER - f4 (GB/T 18455-20108
F BT K -

ARENBEMEUEFERBELNT

2024 2023
—E-NE —EC=F
21.83 18.94
0.066 0.058

EE

9. WN-TF - AREFEL RN EEMRB

ZF BN GBBEX R329,538F(ZFE - =F ¢
325,238f[) °
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used for finished mobile phones per unit (kilogram per finished mobile
phone) increased from the level in 2023, mainly due to different product
types with higher packaging requirements and the increased weight of

packaging materials required.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The factories of the Group are primarily engaged in manufacturing
handsets and IOT terminals, the process of which may give rise to noise
pollution and chemical leakage. To reduce the impact of noise pollution
and to aim at complying with the noise emission industry standards,
the Group educates employees on the prevention of diseases caused
by noise pollution, supervises employees to equip themselves with
the necessary ear plugs, earmuffs, cotton balls and other protective
equipment at work. At the same time, the Group also regularly monitors
the noise pollution in the workplace. In terms of chemical leakage
management, the Group has also formulated a series of management
measures, including random checks on whether there is any sign of
chemical leakage and ground hardening. Once a chemical leakage is
found, the Group will rectify it in a timely manner in accordance with
its “Chemical or Oil Leakage Emergency Plan”. In addition, the Group
has also established the “TC01-012 Hazardous Waste Management
Plan” and the “TC09-027 Chemical or Oil Spill Emergency Plan
Inspection Report” as guidelines for the collection, storage and transfer
of hazardous waste, and regularly inspects the disposal of waste
chemicals. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any

issues related to chemical leakage.

At the same time, in order to control the environmental impact of its
business activities, the Group has formulated a number of procedural
documents, namely the “SC22-QP5.04 Procedures for Identification,
Evaluation and Control of Environmental Factors” and “SC22-QP5.06
Procedures for Identification, Evaluation and Control of Laws and
Regulations and Other Requirements”, as well as to ensure the effective

implementation of this environmental protection system.
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Group has also formulated
Measurement and Control Procedures for Environment and
Occupational Health and Safety” to closely monitor and assess the
environmental impact of its business activities, so as to facilitate timely
identification, monitoring and management of material environmental
issues. The Group also ensures that all products designed and
manufactured are in compliance with the requirements under the
internal document “SC22-042 Restricted Use of Hazardous Substances
Management Regulation”. To reduce impact on the environment and
natural resources, all of the production processes of the Group are in
compliance with the RoHS green standards, including the utilisation of
materials that are of RoHS green standards in the process of mounting
with the surface mount technology, the testing of printed circuit board

assembly and the assembling and packaging process.

The Group adopts a green management system in various business
aspects, including research and development, resources development,
standardisation of materials, supplier management, product
development and quality management, and establishes green indicators
to enhance the safety, environmental friendliness and energy saving
performance of its products, services and operations, as well as to

facilitate effective utilisation of resources.

The Group strictly follows and implements the requirements and
standards of various laws and regulations of the European Union such
as RoHS and REACH. The Group has also set up internal management
standards in compliance with the national limits on toxic and hazardous
substances in electronic information products in the PRC. In addition,
the Group has introduced comprehensive assessment procedures for
new materials that take into account the environmental requirements,
their price and quality. The Group estimates the feasibility of designing
using green materials when sample raw materials are delivered and
attaches extra care and attention to the specification of restricted
materials in design and research and development, so as to minimise

the use of restricted materials.
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The impact of global climate change on the global ecology and different
industries is becoming increasingly significant, and the Group is fully
aware that climate change will affect its business operations in different
aspects. Therefore, while practicing green and low-carbon operations,
the Group has incorporated climate-related topics into its internal control
procedures, and formulated “Climate Change Policies” to identify,
monitor and manage climate change-related risks, assess relevant
impacts, and formulate response strategies. Based on these policy

procedures, the Group has identified the following climate-related risks:

Physical risks

First of all, climate change has brought about more frequent and more
severe extreme weather events such as typhoons, floods, heavy rains,
etc., which may cause interruptions to transportation services, resulting
in delays in delivery of raw materials and the Group’s products. At the
same time, the rising global temperature may lead to an increase in
electricity consumption in the production process, which will in turn
drive up the cost of raw materials. The Group’s supply chain may be
adversely affected in view of the possible increase in raw material costs
and transportation disruptions due to climate change. In addition,
flooding caused by extreme weather or rising sea levels may also cause
physical damage to the operating sites owned by the Group, increasing
the Group’s maintenance, disaster response and insurance related
expenses. In serious cases, the normal operation of the Group may be
affected, and the personal safety of employees may also be threatened.
If the Group does not deal with such incidents properly, it may also have

a negative impact on the Group’s reputation.

In response to these physical risks, the Group has purchased insurance
for employees and its related assets to protect related interests and
reduce potential financial losses. In addition, the Group has backed
up the IT system and job-related files stored on the server and offsite
locations to minimise the potential impact of business interruption
events and their impact on the Group’s business. In addition, the Group
reviews and updates its business continuity plan on a regular basis to
ensure the normal operation and proper execution of core business

functions in case of any significant events.
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ransition risks
In addition to the physical risks mentioned above, the Group is also
exposed to transition risks arising from the transition to low-carbon
economy. The transition to low-carbon economy, which is subject to
constantly evolving and more stringent environmental regulations,
and the related innovations in energy-saving materials, processes and
methods of operation, may lead to an increase in the cost of goods and
services. Such transition risk may increase the cost of raw materials
used by and production of the Group. In addition, more stringent
environmental laws and regulations may increase the risk of claims and
litigation arising from its failure to comply with compliance requirements,
which may in turn affect the Group’s reputation. As a result of these
risks, the Group’s related capital investment and compliance costs may

also increase.

In response to these transition risks, the Group regularly monitors
current and emerging climate-related trends, policies and regulations,
and is prepared to alert senior management where necessary to avoid
reputational risk arising from increased costs, non-compliance fines
or delayed response. The Group has also set targets to reduce energy
consumption and GHG emissions in 2021 to facilitate the Group’s
sustainable development progress. In addition, the Group also actively
explores low-carbon and energy-saving materials and production
methods in order to seize any opportunities arose during the transition

to low-carbon economy and to maintain competitiveness in the market.

SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards its employees as its greatest asset. Thus, it fully
respects and protects their legitimate rights by establishing relevant
rules and systems. The Group issues the “Staff Manual” to employees
when they join the Group to ensure they are fully aware of their rights

and duties.
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The Group treats all employees equally and provides them with
opportunities to develop their talents. When recruiting new staff, the
Group comprehensively analyses and gives fair consideration to each
applicant’s knowledge, abilities, experience, integrity, health conditions
and suitability to the position. As for remuneration and promotion,
the Group takes into account the abilities, efficiency, development of
abilities and knowledge as well as future development potential of each
employee based on his/her performance evaluation, thereby offering
employees the appropriate remuneration and development. The Group is
of the view that diversity in gender, culture, background and experience
will bring vitality and creativity to the development of the Company. The
Group has implemented related policies on compensation and dismissal,
working hours and holidays and anti-discrimination in compliance with
the relevant laws of the PRC and Hong Kong as stated in the section of
“Labour Standards” in this Report, such as providing sufficient notice
upon dismissal, providing statutory compensation and holidays. The
Group is also against discrimination on the grounds of religion, race or

gender, details of which are set out in the “Staff Manual”.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had
a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, including but not limited to the “Employment Ordinance” in
Hong Kong, and the “Chinese Labor Law” and “Chinese Labor Contract
Law” in PRC.

In terms of employee welfare, the Group regularly organizes team-
building activities and encourages employees to participate in events
such as party-building meetings to care for their physical and mental

health, and to strengthen cohesion and collaboration among teams.
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at 31 December 2023: 688 employees). The number and proportion of

employees by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

region are as follows:

Gender

3]

Male

Female

Employment type
EEER

Full-time

Temporary/part-time

Age Group
FleAH R

Under 30 years old
30 - 50 years old
Over 50 years old

Region
&

Mainland China
Hong Kong, PRC

EElEd
pegid

2

GRS 3

30T
30 - 505%
#R3B508%

AR
A

Number of

Number of

Number of

Number of

57058 T (R-FE-=F+=A=+—HB1t -
688%) - IR - IEIBER - R R

EDWE T ABMELAINT

2024
TEC-IWF
Percentage
employees (%)
BT AE AL (%)
330 57.9
240 42.1
2024
TEC-WF
Percentage
employees (%)
BT AE AL (%)
400 70.2
170 29.8
2024
TECDIWF
Percentage
employees (%)
BT AH A DL (%)
206 36.1
332 58.3
32 5.6
2024
—EB-ImF
Percentage
employees (%)
ETIAE B (%)
567 99.5
3 0.5

2023
—E-=F
Number of Percentage
employees (%)
BT AH B (%)
411 59.7
277 40.3
2023
—E-=F
Number of Percentage
employees (%)
BT AH B (%)
469 68.2
219 318
2023
—E-=F
Number of Percentage
employees (%)
BT AH B (%)
249 36.2
405 58.9
34 4.9
2023
—EB=F
Number of Percentage
employees (%)
BT AH B (%)
685 99.6
3 0.4
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was approximately 148.9% (2023: approximately 221.2%), which
was mainly because of the high mobility of temporary workers in the

factories. The employee turnover rate!® by gender, age group and

geographical region is as follows:

Gender

g3l

Male

Female

Age Group
FeE R

Under 30 years old
30 - 50 years old
Over 50 years old

Region
HE

Mainland China
Hong Kong, PRC

Note:

10. The employee turnover rate of the Group is calculated by dividing the total
number of employees in the category who left the Group in the financial year by
the total number of employees in the category as of the end of the financial year
and multiplying by 100.
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EEji
pegid

308 AT
30 - 508%
HBIB50RR

B AP
EES

2024

—E-mE

Number of
employee
turnover
REAETAE

553
296

2024

a1 3

Number of
employee
turnover

REBETAH
490
344

15

2024

—EB-IF

Number of
employee
turnover

RERETIAH

849

=

=%

#221.2%) EEXERERT

BREERRT 8576 T ARBNEERK © RIER - iR
ARIRIEE DM E TRAROMT

Turnover
rate (%)
TRZE(%)

167.6
123.3

Turnover
rate (%)
TR E(%)

237.9
103.6
46.9

Turnover
rate (%)
TRZE(%)

149.7

EE

2023

—E-=F

Number of
employee
turnover

REAETIAY

1,005
517

2023

—E-=F

Number of
employee
turnover

FREEIAE
833
667

22

2023

—B-=HF

Number of
employee
turnover

RERETAE

1,522

Turnover
rate (%)
TEKE(%)

244.5
186.6

Turnover
rate (%)
FKRE(%)

334.5
164.7
64.7

Turnover
rate (%)
FrKRE(%)

222.2
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

In product design and manufacturing, the Group attaches great
significance to the aspects of product quality and safety, environmental
protection, energy conservation, comprehensive utilisation of resources
and public health. It adopts a green management system to ensure a
safe workplace for staff and protects them from occupational hazards.
The Group has also developed robust monitoring and assessment
procedures in relation to environmental protection and occupational
safety and health. According to relevant procedures, the Human
Resources and Administration Department is responsible for the
supervision and inspection of the prevention of fire and danger,
hazardous substances and safe production, as well as the regular
assessment of compliance with laws and regulations, cooperating with
the supervision, review and assessment of the government and relevant
departments, as well as the inspection of labor discipline, position and
staffing, and the awareness and training of employees and related
parties. The Manufacturing Department is responsible for the safety
management of production sites, daily supervision and inspection of
environmental and occupational health and safety conditions and safety
of production equipment. The person in charge of each department also
regularly conducts self-inspection and supervises the implementation
and effectiveness of the environmental and occupational health and

safety activities of the relevant department.

During the reporting period, the Group organized various health and
safety-related educational and promotional activities for employees, such
as anti-terrorism campaigns, anti-telecom fraud campaigns, and fire

drills, aiming to enhance employees’ safety awareness and emergency

response capabilities.
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for its staff's health and safety. It maintains strict compliance with laws
and regulations while adopting a “green” management approach. It
also diligently implements the 1ISO9001:2015 quality management
standards, 1SO14001:2015 environmental management standards,
ISO45001:2018 occupational health and safety management standards,
ISO80079:2011 explosive atmospheres quality management standards,
and ROHS directive.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any work injury
case, recording 0 day (2023: 30 days) lost due to work injury. In
addition, there were no work-related fatalities recorded in the past
three years including the Reporting Period, and the rate of work-related

deaths was 0%.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases” and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact

on the Group.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group advocates the corporate culture of “attracting talents with
success and pursuing success with talents”, which promotes staff
enhancement driven by business growth while supporting corporate
development with staff enrichment. The Group has a comprehensive
training system in place that establishes a network-based career
path for its employees. It also creates ample learning opportunities
and a knowledge sharing environment for its staff through a series
of measures, including position and ability management, skills
enhancement programme, various training opportunities, online learning
programme, internal promotion system, key employees development
programme, succession plans for key positions and leadership
development programme. Such comprehensive training system allows
employees to improve their abilities comprehensively and acquire more
opportunities of personal development in the process of promoting the

development of the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

ZEEEMEE  BRETISHEERE
BOBEIGE SR REERER
ISO9001:2015E EI2EE R + 1S014001:2015
RIFEIRE R - 1S045001:201 8B 2R %
2EEEZX - 1S080079:201 171 L &2 5
Z » REFTROHSIES »

RBEHRR - AEBREIHBER - %5H
THRANTIEABROR(ZT == :30
B) - it BEREHREANBE=F1
BRI CHARE  BALEMEAMETHLE
#0% ©

KGR - AREY T ABERERRE
FEZE2NHEMEAREIMNEAEE 818
RN E (P EARKXMBER R E%E)
REBNBEZZ RGN MEAEKE
BREARTENOBR -

BR R
AREEEAREREAT - UATRBLE
EINEEX  EEEXRETTHETK
£ UBTIRERREDERE - AEEEIH]
EBRRTE  RETRETHRBEERE
R WEBRAIE N EE - B TReERE
3 FEEIIKE  BIRLEE  ANRD
HE - BHETRRS - BRELAIH
2 RENBREFE RETRHEENSE
BEMRFNABARAE  ETHERSEH
ZREERINEHUMBENRT  EHESHAE
EEHROBETESEZHEAZRES




The Human Resources Department keeps a personnel file for eac

employee since the day of interview. Meanwhile, the Group’s internal
human resources consultants carry out career planning through
communication with staff. Depending on the development needs of
different departments and businesses, career plans of the employees
are subject to changes from time to time. In terms of staff education and
training, on one hand, the Group offers generic courses and trainings
based on the operational needs and job requirements; on the other
hand, it customises employees’ career planning by offering focused

courses and trainings.

The Group provides company-level and departmental-level courses
and training to its employees. In addition, it arranges external courses
and training largely based on the stages of development of the
employees. Junior staff and technical management personnel are
offered with various training sessions on technology and skills which
primarily address the operational needs and project requirements of the
Company. In most cases, employees are able to tackle actual problems
at work after they have completed the training sessions. Hence such
training sessions enable employees to achieve growth and enhance skills
as well as resolving work problems. For managerial positions, company
level training sessions are offered in general, where staff members are
equipped with management skills required for their positions through

training that address specific issues at work.

Apart from internal training, the Group also invites external trainers to
conduct training sessions and arrange out-of-office training sessions, as
well as going out and utilising external faculty to meet the training needs
of the Group. The multi-dimensional, multi-perspective and multi-tiered
training system allows staff members to attain their goals in relation to

operational needs, career development and skills enhancement.

During the Reporting Period, the number of the Group’s employees
trained was 570 (2023: 688), representing 100%1! (2023: 100%) of the
Group’s employees, the average training hours of each employee was
approximately 6 hours'? (2023: approximately 6 hour). The percentage
of trained employees by gender and category of employee!® and the

average number of training hours per employee!# are as follows:
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FHETEALL (%)

Gender 5
Male Sk
Female g
Category of Employee EEEH
Management BEE
Managers KIBAEB
General employees —MET
Average training hours per employee (hours)!*

BT AZIIREE ()1

Gender 5l
Male St
Female g
Category of Employee EEEH
Management BEE
Managers KIBAEB
General employees —MET

Notes:

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Group’s overall percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the total number of employees trained during the financial year by the total
number of staff at the end of the financial year and multiplying by 100.

The total training hours per employee of the Group is calculated by dividing
the total training hours in the financial year by the total number of employees
trained in the financial year.

The Group’s employee training percentage by category is calculated by dividing
the total number of trained employees of that category during the financial year
by the total number of employees of that category at the end of the financial
year and multiplying by 100.

The Group’s average training hours per employee by category is calculated
by dividing the total training hours of employees of that category during the
financial year by the total number of employees of that category during the
financial year.
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The Group is committed to taking up social responsibilities. It complies
with and incorporates relevant laws and regulations into the rules and
codes of the Group. Apart from the “Staff Manual”, the procedures of
the Group also stipulate specific requirements on prevention of child

and forced labour.

To prevent child labour, the Group has clearly specified that all
employees must be 18 years old or above in its recruitment and
employment management system. During the recruitment process,
the Group requires candidates to provide true and accurate personal
information, which shall be handed over to personnel responsible for
recruitment for a rigorous examination, including academic credentials,
identity cards, etc. The Group has set up an established recruitment
process that requires checking of candidates’ backgrounds and a formal
reporting procedure to deal with any exceptions, it would also conduct
regular reviews and checks to prevent any child labour in its operations.
If a child labourer is found to have been wrongfully employed, the Group
will immediately stop the child labourer’s work and follow up on the

situation.

In order to protect employees’ entitlement on rest hours and holidays,
it has expressly stipulated relevant provisions relating to working hours,
rest hours and holidays, labour protection and working conditions in
the employment contracts and attendance system. The Group currently
implements a five-day work scheme with 8 working hours per day,
and prohibits forced labour and forced overtime work. When any
violation is discovered, the Group will promptly investigate and report
the investigation to the management for appropriate punishment or
dismissal of the employees concerned. If necessary, the Group will
further improve the labour mechanism in response to violations.
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Group follows the relevant employment regulations, policies and
guidelines of the jurisdictions in which it operates, including but not
limited to the “Employment Ordinance”, “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong
Kong and the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the
PRC” and “Law on the Protection of Persons with Disabilities of the
PRC” in the PRC, to protect the human rights of the employees and

prevent child and forced labour.

In 2024, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group requires upstream suppliers to follow its policies on
environmental protection and sustainable development. To uphold
the Group’s reputation, suppliers are requested to give undertakings
regarding environmental protection requirements as well as health,

safety and social responsibility standards.

The Group has a supplier assessment team, comprising staff from the
Purchasing Management Department, the Resources Department,
the Research and Development Department and the Supplier Quality
Management Department. This assessment team strictly enforces
supplier-related policies and systems such as the “QP7.04AE Supplier
Evaluation and Control Procedure”, “QP7.03J Procurement Control
Procedure”, “QP7.051 New Materials Introduction Procedure”, and
requires suppliers to comply with relevant policies to ensure the
implementation of measures such as environmental protection, health
and safety. Pursuant to the procedures, the Group will inspect and
evaluate each of the suppliers to monitor and ensure their compliance
with the relevant standards, laws and regulations. In case where
suppliers are in breach of such regulations or standards, they will be
removed from the suppliers list of the Group unless they rectify the

breaches within a prescribed time limit.
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he Group attaches great significe g
environmental and social risks in the supply chain. In the procurement
process, the Group evaluates the environmental and social performance
of suppliers to ensure that suppliers understand the social, ethical
and environmental issues related to their business, and requires major
suppliers to have a management system to deal with relevant issues
and risks. In addition, the Group is committed to supporting the local
economy and giving priority to local suppliers to reduce carbon footprint
during transportation. The Group also has strict requirements for
selecting and evaluating qualified green suppliers, and has established
a management system for suppliers’ environment and hazardous
substances matters, implemented a special inspection and evaluation
process, required suppliers to provide green compliance test reports
and hazardous substance data summary forms, and sign the “MR005J
Green Supplier Commitment Letter” to ensure that the materials
supplied must meet the requirements of restricted substances. The
Group will continue to review regularly the performance of its suppliers
along the supply chain and the environmental and social standards in
order to minimise the potential environmental and social risks in the

supply chain.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 354 major
suppliers (2023: 491 suppliers). All major suppliers have passed the
review of the above practices during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any major suppliers
having any significant negative impact on business ethics, environmental

protection, human rights and labour practices.

Number of suppliers of the Group by geographical location is as follows:

Location of suppliers
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following honours:

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has always been customer-oriented, actively developing
products in multiple fields, focusing on industry applications, and
creating 5G + Al scenario solutions, including but not limited to express
logistics, financial payment, aviation and heavy industry inspection,
smart home, police affairs, elderly care management, education,

medical health, automotive intelligence, among other fields.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its products received the

Shanghai Simcom Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, has been
awarded the “National High-tech Enterprise” certification jointly
issued by the Shanghai Science and Technology Commission,
Shanghai Finance Bureau, and Shanghai Taxation Bureau of the

State Administration of Taxation for 16 consecutive years;
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In March 2024, the Group has been awarded the “2023

Outstanding Partner” award by a partner client;
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the “2020-2022 Shanghai Foreign Trade Independent Brand
Demonstration Enterprise” issued by the Shanghai Chamber of
Commerce and Import and Export under the guidance of the

Shanghai Municipal Commerce Commission.
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The Group strives to ensure product safety. The Group’s main
businesses, namely handsets and 10T terminals business, 10T system
and operation business, as well as the intelligent manufacturing
business, place product safety as their first priority. In the course of
production, the Group always adheres to stringent product quality and
control standards, so as to maintain product quality and safety as well
as compliance with the ISO9001 quality management standards. During
the Reporting Period, none of the products produced by the Group and

sold was recalled for safety and health reasons.

The Group values customers’ feedback and complaints, which serve
as an important reference to improve and enhance product quality and
corporate competitiveness. The Group has a set of rules and procedures
designed for managing customers and product complaints, such as
the “After-Sales Service Procedures and Management Measures” and
“Customer Complaint Handling Procedures” which are handled by a
dedicated department. Customer feedback received during the course
of product design, research and development is usually addressed in a
timely manner. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive

any material complaints regarding product quality and services.
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In rélation to observing and protecting intellectual property rights,

the Group has assigned dedicated personnel to take charge of the
management of intellectual property, maintenance of a list of intellectual
property, filing and classification of intellectual property based on its
actual value-creating potential, materiality to the Group’s development
and maintenance costs. The Group has its own intellectual property
data platform, enabling it to closely monitor the latest international
and domestic developments so as to avoid waste of resources due
to repeated research efforts and prevent infringement of intellectual
property rights. The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding
the Group’s interests by the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual
property rights. With reference to cost and expected return analysis,
the Group applies for registration of intellectual property rights that
may have material impact on the Group, such as trademarks, patents,
copyrights and domains, thereby protecting the Company’s interests
as far as possible. When cooperating with other entities or individuals,
provisions regarding the ownership, scope of authorisation, term,
allocation of subsequent research outcomes of the intellectual property
involved are set out in detail in the relevant legal documents to be
entered into between the Group and other entities or individuals. In
practice, the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual property rights
effectively protects the interests of the Group.

The Group has established regulations on product quality assurance
and recall procedures. The Group has established various control
procedures for design, development and production processes, such
as “Quality Control Plan”, “QP7.06 Design and Development Control
Procedure”, “QP8.10H Environmental and Occupational Health
Monitoring and Measurement Control Procedures”, “QP7.08 Control
Procedures for Logistics, Storage, Packaging, Protection and Delivery”,
and “Tongcheng Factory Non-Conformance Control Procedure”
which sets out the requirements for raw materials, auxiliary materials,
packaging materials, semi-finished products and various inspection
items of finished products, inspection methods and contents. The
Inspection Department, New Product Introduction Department and
Manufacturing Department of the Group also follow rigorous quality
assurance procedures to facilitate timely identification of quality issues
and hidden risks by such departments. These departments will also
address those issues promptly, if any, to ensure the product pass rate
is in compliance with the contractual requirements. In recent years,
the Group has also actively carried out digital transformation and
recorded all the data of each procedure in the production process in the
database to achieve process traceability. Through big data analysis and
mining, the direction of improving product quality is exported. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to product and service

quality.
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iroup’s policies in connection with advertising and labelling o
Group’s products and services are in compliance with all the laws and
regulations, such as “Advertising Law in the PRC” and “Law of the PRC
on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”, to ensure that they are
not misleading to the Group’s customers. The Group provides users with
clear instructions manual and labels to facilitate their understanding of
its products. The Group has also established the “Advertising and Fair
Trade Control Procedures” to ensure fair competition within the industry.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any matters of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters concerning the Group’s products and services.

The Group puts great emphasis on information security and
confidentiality, especially those related to clients and consumers. The
“Staff Manual” and “Intellectual Property Protection Control Procedure”
set out strict and clear regulations on confidentiality, intellectual
property, business rules, professional ethics of employees, conflict of
interests and relevant awards and penalties. In addition, the Group has
also established the “Information Security Management System” and
“Information Security and Confidentiality Regulation”, which include
details of related descriptions and requirements of information security
and confidentiality so as to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations such as “Regulations of the PRC for Safety Protection
of Computer Information Systems” and “Regulations of the PRC on the
Prohibition of Infringements upon Trade Secrets”. All employees have
entered into information security and confidentiality agreements with
the Group, under which they are obliged to keep the information of
clients and customers private and confidential. Every year, the Group
organises a number of trainings on confidentiality, ensuring that every
staff member is involved and trained. The Information Department of
the Group attaches great importance to the security of the information
system. Thus, dedicated personnel are assigned for the system’s

maintenance to ensure a safe and effective operation of the system.
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The Group has established relevant systems such as “Business and
Ethics Requirements Control Procedure” and “Anti-corruption Operation
Control Procedure”, while the Group’s “Staff Manual” also sets out its
anti-corruption rules and guidelines. The Legal Affairs Department of the
Group supervises the implementation of procedures with reference to
relevant standards and legal requirements, such as “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery” while the Human Resources and
Administration Department of the Group handles complaints of
behaviours that are in breach of the Group’s rules and regulations on
anti-corruption, with the aim of stopping unethical behaviour arising
from the Company’s operation. Each year, the Group provides its
Directors and employees with anti-corruption training or learning
materials. During the Reporting Period, 5 Directors and 36 employees of
the Group received online training courses in relation to anti-corruption,
of which the total number of training hours for Directors amounted to
approximately 10 hours and the total number of training hours for staff
amounted to approximately 72 hours. Through the relevant training, the
Directors and employees at different levels have more clearly defined
their corresponding roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption and

business ethics, as well as the precautions for compliant operation.

The Group has in place detailed whistle-blowing procedures. Employees
can report any fraudulent activities for seeking illegitimate benefits
by means of telephone, email, letter, etc. The Group is responsible
for managing the relevant reports, conducting internal assessments,
carrying out investigations and preparing written records, and reporting
the investigation results to the management or the Board in a timely
manner for proper handling. The “Whistle-blowing Policy” also ensures
the protection of whistle-blowers, including confidentiality of identity and

personal information, against reprisal for reporting in good faith.
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on anti-corruption, prevention and investigation of bribery, extortion
and money laundering, in the “Staff Manual”. It also implements the

following measures to fight against corruption:

1. enhance promotional efforts to create a suitable environment for

efficiency monitoring.

2. improve investigation and adopt active monitoring in replacement
of passive monitoring. The Group focuses on monitoring key
areas in production and operation, such as major projects,
material procurement, waste disposal and writing off of bad and
doubtful debts, thereby further enhancing efficiency monitoring
on specific issues. The Group also actively participates in major
management activities so as to gather information on operational

and management decision-making and implementation.

3. establish rules and procedures for comprehensive governance,
with a view of treating both the symptoms and the root cause

instead of just treating the symptoms.

4. attach importance on rectification, directly identify and close the

loopholes in management through investigation and prevention.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its

employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to the “Criminal Law
of the PRC”, the “Company Law of the PRC”, the “Bidding Law of the
PRC” and the “Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC” of PRC and
the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” of Hong Kong that would have a

significant impact on the Group.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has a long-standing commitment to serving the community
and creating positive value, and has established a set of “Community
Investment Policy” to encourage the Group’s employees to actively
participate in social and community activities, understand the needs
of the society where they are located, and create effective and lasting
benefits for the community by considering community investment. Ms.
Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs. Wong”), an executive Director of the Group,
was a recipient of the China Charity Award which was awarded by the
Ministry of Civil Affairs of the PRC in recognition of her outstanding

achievement in supporting the community.

The Group’s staff provided more than 158 hours of volunteer services in
2024, including but not limited to the following activities:

o On 31 January 2024, the Group’s employees participated in the
2023 “Most Beautiful Caregiver” Awards Ceremony and the 2024
Spring Festival celebration, performing programs for the elderly at

the nursing home to celebrate the New Year together.

° The Group’s employees who are party members actively signed
up for the “3.5 Learning from Lei Feng volunteer service theme
event” held on 5 March 2024. During the event, employees
donated digital product accessories to groups in need to provide
them with convenience and assistance. At the same time, party
member volunteers also provided digital product maintenance
services on-site, solving the practical difficulties of community
residents, which was widely praised and demonstrated the good

spirit and social responsibility of the Group’s employees.
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The Group’s employees, accompanied by their children,
participated in the “Little Volunteers Co-Creation Activity” in
celebration of World Book Day on 13 April 2024. Parents and
children collaborated to explore the charm of reading, and their
creations were showcased alongside the works of children from
Dazhai Ethnic Primary School in Daxing Town, Lvchun County,
Yunnan Province, at the “Scholarly Campus: Reading a Book
Together” project exhibition on 22 April 2024. The employees
of the Group also served as volunteers to arrange the children’s
works for display and organized interactive sessions such as

bookmark and postcard making at the event.
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On 21 July 2024, the Group’s employees brought their children to
Xinjing Nursing Home to participate in the “Hand in Hand: Warm
Summer” summer volunteer service activity for the elderly. With
great enthusiasm and talent, they presented lively and engaging
performances for the elderly, bringing them laughter and touching

moments.
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o On 7 August 2024, the Group’s employees volunteered to
distribute thoughtful cooling gifts to outdoor workers passing by,

expressing care and concern for outdoor workers.
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° On 9 September 2024, the Group’s employees participated in
the “Jiu Jiu Public Welfare Festival,” donating unused items,
organizing a charity market, and conducting interactive games
on-site. All proceeds from the charity activities were donated to
the “Mountain Children Protection Program,” and they actively

promoted the public welfare project to passersby.
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SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

GUIDE” OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG

KONG LIMITED

REARE L) R

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Section/Statement

BRENERE

g L

Governance Structure

Environmental, Social and

Governance Structure

BaRE

RE B RERRE

Reporting Principles

Reporting Principles

B ¥R R B bE ER R A
Reporting Scope Reporting Scope
HE SR & HEHE

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[T <FRERRE 53 Ei::pu =5, 89
Aspect Al: Emissions

FEEAL : BB

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

(@) the policies; and

hazardous waste.

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

— MR FEBERAEREEYN - MUKRTHEEET - BEREE | FRY
FEEYHEESR
(@ BE: &k
(b) BEFHBITABERZEOEBEERELBROEER
KPI'Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
RAREERUEIZALL BERIE SR RABRABER R o BER)
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SectionIStatef .

RRAEDEL B IRATRIRE TR -

omply or explain” Provisions | Description

[ 37 ph AR RE | 15k 3T it =589

KPI'Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse | Emissions
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BARERUEIRAL2 Hix (BE) keeREE (EE2) )REREHRE CAMEFTE) | BE
R (nEm) % E (MASES B - §IERMEE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RS AR IETRAL3 FELEEEEYRE UEHHE) K (ER) BE (WAE | Y
E2EBA - BEREE)

KPI'Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FARETURIZALS FESEEEEYEE UBEHE) R (ER) BE (WAE | By
E2EA - BERBH)

KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to Emissions
achieve them.

BARERUEIRALS HIFTE] VBN 2 B IR R BIESE L B IZFT SR P8R © | BERYD

KPI'Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Emissions
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

BAREERUEIZALG HMREEEREEEFEYN L - RIEMATETZAREE | By

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,

water and other raw materials. °

Use of Resources

—RIE

BRERER(BIEEER - KR EAD R B9BR

BIRE A
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“Compiy or explain” Provisions Dééi:fiption
[ T3 <F RhARRE |5k 3T it EH B
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of Resources

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

FABHAE IEIRA2.1

BRABISHER R XEEER(WNE - [aoh) EEE
ATETEEFE) R2E ASESEN - SRR
) -

BIRE A

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Use of Resources
production volume, per facility).

BB BUEIRA2.2 RFKEREE (WMABES B - BIEREAH) - EIR{E A

KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.

RASREEUIEIRA2.3 IR PTE] S 8RR IR (P R e B IR R R B iE L B AR PTERER Y | BIR(E A

KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Use of Resources
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

FARETURIZA2.4 H U SREGE A KR A B AR - LARFTET S MK E | BIRE A
BIERAETEL B IRFTRENE 28 -

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of Resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

RSB UEIRA2.5 SRR EE CAERE) K (WER) BEEE | BREA

ffGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

[EHEA3 : BIRERARER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the

environment and natural resources.

The Environment and

Natural Resources

—RIEE
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RERARER
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SectionIStatef .

omply or explain” Provisions | Description
[ 37 ph AR RE | 15k 3T it =589
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the The Environment and

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

Natural Resources

RASHAE IEIRAS.1
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BT ENTTE o
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Aspect A4: Climate Change

BHEA4 : RIzE1L

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate
related issues which have impacted, and those which may

impact, the issuer.

Climate Change

— MR BRIREHELERATREGHBITAEELENEARIZIEA | RIxEE
EENBCER -

KPI'A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Climate Change
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

FRERUETAL] B E R HBITAEATENEARBKIEREZE - | RIFE
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Aspect B1: Employment

BEBL : &

General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
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(b) BTEHBITABERFENHEEEAZRBHINER -
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“Compiy or explain” Provisions Dééi:fiption

[ T3 <F RhARRE |5k 3T it EH B

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Employment
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.

RSB BUIEIEBL.1 RIERI - RIEEE (2R - FRARIREEISH | EE
EEMHE -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region.

RBERURIEBL.2 RIERI - AR KR E S REBMALLE o (=4

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2 : @ERZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

— M FHERMZE2TERRLREREBBEBELEEN fERmEee
(@ BE: &
(b) BEFHBITABERZEOEEEZLBROEER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | Health and Safety

the past three years including the reporting year.

FABHAIE1RB2.1

BEZF (BRERFE) SFRTTHRNABRLEE -

fREEzE

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety

RIS EIEEB2.2 BAIEGEETIIERE - fRREZ S

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
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omply or explain” Provisions

Description

SectionIStatef .

[REF R R

i

= BH

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : #ERIFI

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

Development and

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. | Training
—REBE BERAEERITIIEBENAB R REERBER © sl | 3R RS
EE o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Training
management).
BB TURIEB3.1 RUFIREEEN (NSREERE PREERE) SIDHNZI | 2R ERIF

BEBDL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. Training
BB RUEIEB3.2 RURIREEENE D - BREBTHZINNTIERE - | 8RS
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : & T%H|
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—AR R EREMTIEE T SaaH ST ¢ 25 TAER|
(@ BXE: K
(b) WFEHETABERZENEMEERIRARER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards
avoid child and forced labour.
B ETURIEBA.1 R BB AR R E T RIEHIZT o 4 TR
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“Compiy or explain” Provisions Dééi:fiption

[FEF R R Ei::pu =5, 89

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | Labour Standards
discovered.

BB BURIEBA.2 B IE RIS N R ER A @B R 5 - BT AR

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EHEBS : HtIEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain
supply chain. Management

— AR B IER AR At g BB o HpEEEIR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain

Management

B A BURIEBS.1 kiR E S e EREE - HrEEE R

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB AE RUEIEB5.2 f A B R EREED - MERITERIENINHIERR | HEEER
B - ARAERARIT RER A -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.

RAR B BUEIEBS.3 il @HEA RS ARG IRE R g AR ED - U | HEREE
FABRIT REER 7% o

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Management
and how they are implemented and monitored.
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omply or explain” Provisions

Description

SectionIStatef .
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BHEB6 : EmMEE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

Product Responsibility

WIUEEEERRERALBEER - ARBERITRERT
A o

— MR FHMREERTNRENERELZS  BES BERLEBE | ERER
HIARFRITERD
(@ BE: R
(b) BEFHBITABERZZOEMEERELBAOEER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls | Product Responsibility
for safety and health reasons.

RSB BUIEIEB6.1 EEIRExEMMEHETEZREFEEAMARKNE S | EREE
L e

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Product Responsibility
and how they are dealt with.

BB RUEEB6.2 BREENE M IRGEIRFE B AREE 7% - EmEE

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Product Responsibility
intellectual property rights.

RS AR E1EB6.3 el BB A R R ARPE AR E A FARIE D - EmEE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Responsibility
procedures.

RSB BB 1EB6.4 S ST BEREmBIBIERF © EREE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Responsibility
and how they are implemented and monitored.
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“Compiy or explain” Provisions

Dééi:fiption
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[E®EB7 : R&ES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

— AR ER BE LR - BR - BEFRERER k&3
(@ HE: R
(b) EFHEITABERZEBHEREERIROIMER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | Anti-corruption

brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

MR ERIEIRBT.1

RERBAE T ALE BB R Y EEAENESHARM
EBIE MAFRLER

k&R

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BRERUEIERT.2 AP E S e R R IRIZFE o DA NMABRRSIT R ERER 5k - R&5

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption
and staff.

RBERUEIEBT.3 HimES R B TRENRE)SHF - R&3

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

Community Investment

—RIE

BRI RS B2 EM i B FENEREES A
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KPI B8.1

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

Community Investment

MABAEIE1EBS.1
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HEEE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. | Community Investment
RSB RUEIEBS.2 EEFBEMEHAER (NS ERRRE) o HREE
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

5t

BEANKREBERATKRR
(REFEK A EIR A A])

=R

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 129
to 269 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BEEINSEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the
significant estimates associated with
the determination of the fair value of
investment properties.

All investment properties of the Group
are measured at fair value based

on the valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional
valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by

the Company and the chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with
the Valuer to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques
and key inputs. The Valuer adopted
income capitalisation approach to
arrive at the valuation of investment
properties as at 31 December 2024.
Details of the valuation techniques
and key unobservable inputs,

namely capitalisation rates and
market rentals used in the valuations
are disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
The Group's investment properties
amounted to HK$574,540,000 as at
31 December 2024. Loss on changes
in fair value of investment properties
of HK$56,031,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December
2024.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

o Understanding management’s
process over the valuation of
investment properties, including
the involvement of the Valuer
engaged by the Company;

o Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer engaged by the Company;

o Understanding the valuation
techniques and key inputs applied
on selected investment properties
by holding discussion with the
management and the Valuer, with
the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists;

o Checking, on a sample basis, the
tenancy information included in the
underlying lease contracts; and

o Assessing, with the involvement of
our internal valuation specialists,
valuation techniques and the
reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation on selected
investment properties including
capitalisation rates and market
rentals of similar properties.
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How our audit addressed
Key audit matter the key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties
(continued)

Impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment, right-of-

use assets and intangible assets

in handsets and Internet of Things
(“10T”) terminals business

We identified the impairment
assessment on property, plant and

Our procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of property, plant
equipment, right-of-use assets and and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets allocated to the intangible assets in handsets and 10T
single cash-generating unit (“CGU") of  terminals business included:

handsets and 0T terminals business

as a key audit matter due to the o
significant degree of judgement made

by the management in determining

the recoverable amounts of these

assets in handsets and 10T terminals
business.

Understanding management's
process over the impairment
assessment, including the
involvement of the Valuer engaged
by the Company;

o Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer engaged by the Company;
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Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment, right-of-

use assets and intangible assets in
handsets and 10T terminals business
(continued)

As disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements,
the management concluded that
there was an indication of impairment
in the handsets and 10T terminals
business and performed impairment
assessment by estimating the
recoverable amounts based on value-
in-use calculation. The chief financial
officer of the Group works closely
with the Valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs including
budgeted sales, gross profit margin,
annual and terminal growth rates
and discount rate. Based on the
result of management's assessment,
no impairment loss was recognised
against the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible
assets during the year ended 31
December 2024. After the impairment
assessment, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets in
handsets and 0T terminals business
of the Group were HK$24,865,000,
HK$3,559,000 and HK$73,000,
respectively.

124

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Understanding the valuation
techniques, key inputs and
assumptions applied in the
value-in-use calculation by
holding discussion with the
management and the Valuer, with
the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists;

o Assessing, with the involvement
of our internal specialists, the
valuation techniques and the
discount rate applied; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of
the budgeted sales, gross profit
margin and annual and terminal
growth rates against historical and
current financial performance of
the Group, and with reference to
relevant market information.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

Ht&EH

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

gﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% ME

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Pik Fung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2025
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Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Reversal of (impairment losses) under
expected credit loss model, net

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

WA
$HE MRS A

EH

HAA

HAd s 518

BEREEBERA T
B ORER1R) F8

MERFAEER

HHE R IR

TR

DIRBE R AR

BRA AT (B51R) A

BiA

REE (B1R) 4 F

TR REEFE (BR)EF -

RABHEBA
FEiE AR

BR(BR) B Gl
- 2N

NOTES
Wiz

21

11
12

14

2023

2024
—EoNEF —E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
429,370 543,940
(336,425) (423,611)
92,945 120,329
58,091 57,099
(79,814) 508,947
894 (17,607)
(101,076) (136,926)
(20,483) (24,368)
(73,848) (81,618)
4,039 (3,940)
(805) (4,973)
(120,057) 416,943
15,940 (83,769)
(104,117) 333,174
(94,780) 344,285
(9,337) (11,111)
(104,117) 333,174
(4.42) 16.07
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2024 2023
—ENF —ET-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Loss) profit for the year REE (EHE) g £l (104,117) 333,174
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hih 2w (k)
[tem that may be subsequently reclassified to HEAgeENy HEAFEEm A
profit or loss for the year: g -
Reclassification of cumulative translation AN ERR R RN REE
reserve upon deregistration of foreign ¥ro%E
operations 30,764 -
ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified ~ EEBTEEHHEE
to profit or loss during the year: REFE=m2ER :
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets 1L A EE AR
and property, plant and equipment to L b E /NI
investment properties at fair value AR Z IR E Y 2 Btk 476 1,305
Fair value gain on investment in equity KERIRAFE AEM
instrument at fair value through other 2AEWE (AT EFTAREME
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) EEs ) IR T A
Z RAFERE 4,833 10,618
Deferred tax relating to items that will not BRI EH Y EEEEN
be reclassified to profit or loss HE B2 ELERIE (1,327) (2,981)
Exchange difference arising on translation MEE25|EREL 2
to presentation currency [ERER (34,172) (21,803)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hip 2@k A () 574 (12,861)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ArEE2E(FD) WetE
for the year (103,543) 320,313
Total comprehensive (expense) income THIEIBEGZE () W
attributable to: 4T
Owners of the Company AAREA A (94,206) 331,424
Non-controlling interests PR i A (9,337) (11,111)
(103,543) 320,313
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Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Trade and notes receivables

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (“FVTPL")
Pledged bank deposits
Short-term bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

FRBEE

BEME

ME - BB R BE

EREEE

A B
i/ e

RO E AR M2 E R
ZIRATA

RBEE

&
FrEHEM X
Hib YRR - &2
RIER IR
BAFEFARR (RATVE
FAABRDZEREE
BEHEMIRITERK
RHIRITER
RITHEBRERE

NOTES
Wiz

15
16
17
18
21

22

23
24
25

25

22
26
26
26

2023

2024

—EoNEF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
574,540 640,111
31,428 56,243
15,658 17,482
294 553
49,798 46,616
71,726 68,130
743,444 829,135
52,720 86,323
- 469
110,823 82,440
72,768 360,807
291 468
- 22,000
580,821 693,679
360,313 74,219
1,177,736 1,320,405
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2024 2023

—E-OF —FT-=
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FAET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and notes payables B E SRR EE 27 86,792 77,920
Deposits from tenants A% 27 2,699 3,620
Deferred income FEIEIA 27 1,097 1,116
Other payables and accruals H b e BR TR S B AT F0E 27 64,931 75,084
Contract liabilities aRAaE 28 97,731 80,065
Bank borrowings SRITIEE 29 29,162 33,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 2,344 2,509
Tax payables FER A 97,478 122,083
382,234 395,397
Net current assets REBEEFE 795,502 925,008
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 1,538,946 1,754,143
Capital and reserves EXEf#E
Share capital f& R 31 214,335 214,335
Reserves Ee 32 1,225,651 1,405,591
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 FliEA A &GRS 1,439,986 1,619,926
Non-controlling interests IR 2 40 (10,070) (733)
Total equity TERARE 1,429,916 1,619,193
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Deposits from tenants HRES 27 6,278 6,078
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 80 2,194
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBE & 20 75,748 89,976
Deferred income FEIEUA 27 26,924 36,702
109,030 134,950
1,538,946 1,754,143

The consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to 269 were ~ MR ZE129E2698 2 & MK ENR =S F

approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2025 and are =—A-+—BEZZeitE  THUTEEARE
signed on its behalf by: =

Wong Cho Tung Zhu Wenhui

FHEHE KRIE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE =
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At 1 January 2003

Profitloss)for he year
Other comprefiensive income
(expense) for e year

Totel comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Repurchase and cancellaion of
ardinary shares

Transfer o Satufory resenve

Release upon deregistation ofa
Subsidiary

Aequistion of partal nfrest in 3
Subsidiary

Aequistion o 3 Subsidiary

R5-=F-F-A

TEREHER)
L
SENERER

TEREANE
X 48
Eufhaan

EAZrERE
R
HEATRAE
YE-RHELR
i
YE-RHELR

Transer outuponLand Resumption R 4558

(as defned in note 7)
Transfer upon forefure of shere
apton
Shares granted under the share
aerd sheme

At 31 December 2023

Loss forthe year
Other comprefiensive income
(expense)for e year

Total comprefiensive income
(expense) for e year

Transfer o statutory resene:

Didend pid (note 13

Transfer upon forfeure of
Share opton

Transfer upon deregistration of
Subsiciares

Disposalofsubsiciaries

At 31 December 2024

(&AM
HRMERES

&g
RERDRE

R
i

+2f=1-8

BEEER
L
Y

FERRANE
(Ax)a%
ERzhede
Biha i)
NRERRRER

Aftributable o owners of the Company

RAEREAER
Retaned

Statutory Sharehased  Employee  Propertis  Assels  Capial profts Non-

Share Share  surpls Other ~ payment  sharetust  revaluation  revaluation redemption  Translation  (accumulated controling
capil  premium resee resewe  resee  fesene reseme  resene fesene  fesene loses) Tl inferests Total

E B BERH I i &z RERA R
Br  BBEE EORE RMBR (RRE  GARR  EMRR  EMBE  WERE  ASRE (EHER) & B ait
HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TRr TR A AR TR Th TR TAR T

Moes) — (Moed) e 38)
W %)

2082 7ML %1 gL (1663 3B 36 BB B LY LM KB 186
- - - - - - - - - - % M%) BN
- - - - - - 9 193 - (8 - (28 - (1280
- - - - - - 99 18 -8y M B4 (Ll 3038
(o7 (1278 - - - - - - 510 - A (182%0) - (18%%0)
- - R - - - - - - - s = - =
- - - - - - - - - - - - (162 (762)
- - - - - - - - - - - - (813) (813)
- - - - - - - - - - - - R @l
- - - - - - B3 - - - BN - - -
- - - - 0% - - - - - 9269 - - -
- - - - - 1663 - - - - [ 1259 - 12
MBp IRI6 197 %A 8602 - A U0 M 62 Bl06 161996 (13 161919
- - - - - - - - - - (4780)  (4780) (9331 (104117)
- - - - - - B 365 - (3408 - 514 - 574
- - - - - - ¥ 365 - (3408 (947800 (94200 (9337  (103543)
- -\ - - - - - - - (L - - -
- - - - - - - - - - B @) - (BT
- - - - 86 - - - - - 860 - - -
- - (1%) - - - - - - - 1,946 - - -
- - - - - - - - - (551) 551 - - -
433 733716 118498 95271 - - 526 1455 4422 57763 (114536) 1439986 (10,070) 1429916
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(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year,
the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net
profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where
the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
(the “Board”) of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve was arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the considerations
paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon the acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of trade receivables

Write-off of trade and other payables
(Reversal of) impairment loss on financial assets
and other items under expected credit loss

model
Share of results of associates

Reversal of write-down for inventories
Changes in fair values of investment properties
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL

Interest income

Effect of realised exchange difference

Share-based payments expenses

Loss on disposal of interest in an associate
Impairment loss on properties held for sale
Impairment loss on interest in associates

Impairment loss on goodwill

Gain on disposal of assets held for disposal
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTOCI

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in properties held for sales

Increase in trade and notes receivables
Decrease (increase) in other receivables,

deposits and prepayments

Increase (decrease) in trade and notes payables
(Decrease) increase in deposits from tenants

Decrease in deferred income

Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities
(Decrease) increase in other payables,

deposits received and accruals

Decrease in amounts due from associates

Cash used in operations
Interest received
PRC tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RETED
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BERA
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PN D B4R
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2024 2023

—E-E =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
(120,057) 416,943
805 4,973
18,833 20,921
1,714 4,190
1,066 411
30,764 -
7,892 (934)
- 1,804
(2,554) (3,511)
(894) 17,607
(4,039) 3,940
(13,088) (73,969)
56,031 16,000
177 1,134
(30,871) (23,932)
(12,496) 29
- 12,549

- 1,581

- 7,142

- 3,342

- 2,282
- (537,816)

- (7,157)
(66,717) (132,471)
45,617 170,919
467 433
(29,796) (3,130)
10,021 (6,176)
12,904 (78,347)
(561) 961
(9,262) (2,226)
19,296 (24,242)
(8,971) 27,039
- 17,391
(27,002) (29,849)
19,578 23,932
(20,341) (4,687)
(27,765) (10,604)
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Placement of short-term bank deposits
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Receipt of consideration receivables
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Development costs paid

Net proceeds on disposal of assets held for disposal
Proceeds on disposal of leasehold land
Dividend received from an associate and equity

instruments at FVTOCI

Proceeds on disposal of an interest in an associate
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at

FVTOCI

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Dividend paid

Interest paid

Interest paid for lease liabilities
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repurchase of shares

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances and cash
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2024 2023
—ECNE ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
21,900 165,062
(582,791) (612,394)
693,289 82,389
1,366 5,868
1,251 12,242
(4,193) (7,732)
(814) (409)
245,989 496,089
39,986 =
- 7,157

- 6,941
- (22,280)

- 2,668
415,983 135,601
29,539 33,420
(32,850) (238,953)
(85,734) -
(710) (4,736)
(95) (237)
(2,551) (5,352)
- (18,260)
(92,401) (234,118)
295,817 (109,121)
74,219 191,814
(9,723) (8,474)
360,313 74,219




GENERAL INFORMATION

—REHR

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), as the directors
of the Company consider that it is a more appropriate
presentation for a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and for
the convenience of the shareholders. The Company is an
investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 40.

The management of the Group had reassessed its forecast
and concluded there was indication for impairment in the
handsets and Internet of Things (“IOT”) terminals business.
It conducted impairment assessment of the single cash-
generating unit and no impairment loss was recognised
during the year. Details of the impairment assessment are
set out in note 19.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

P& TR B ASAS RT B PR B B 3R
B EAIREMETEREH

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2024 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance
and IFRS 7 Arrangements

The application of the amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

2. ERHE RS BERMBERE
%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁf&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been

B M AR B 14 AR 25 B2 $ 5T I AR5 5T B PR B 3 3
SRR

AR B 1 AR BB R R AR IA T BB AR 1B 1 R AR
¥l RERT R s s g st R

issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

B B B 75 e e 2 R B 957 % B PR B s s o
ERNE 75 2185

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

I A B 75 i 5 2E B B 0515 % BB B s Sl s
ERIE 75 28]

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B PR B 75 i 5 2RI 25 10555 2 BB &t 4E B
F285% 2 {EET

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards

BB B T S g R A 2 (85T

Amendments to IAS 21

BIpR @ s AERIE215% 2 1&5]

IFRS 18

B B B 745 e 5 HE R S8 1855%

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 1

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments®

TRTASBEKAE 2R

Contracts Referencing Nature-Dependent Electricity?

Wk BNKRBELE 1 2 & 4P

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture!

HREEFEENHENRREERFE L ANEENEITE!

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 113

BIRR B s SR Al 2 FEUCE — F 111

Lack of Exchangeability?

TR Z 7] 2332

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements*

M mERNZ7 R EE

NFEEE A Bisk 2 12 Rt 2 SF E B A3k

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 2 RZZ-AF—A—AkzABzFEHRMEE
131
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 3 KT RF—A—HAkzgABzFERMEE
131
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 REZZT-_tF—A ARz FERMEE
131

Except for the new and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other amendments to
IFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

B TR RT RIS R BIBR B 75 R 2 w1 22 A
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BESTEINZETRAERRRK I EELERE
MBHRRELEATE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

F& 3T 5] R ASAS T BIPR B 3R
%ﬁff{ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁf&%ﬁ‘l‘l&%ﬁ@

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture”

The amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures” deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained
in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method)
to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

P& R TR B ASAS BT B PR B 3R
{éﬁfﬁ{ﬁﬂﬂ&ﬂf&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@

IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”

IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements” (“IFRS 18”), which sets out requirements
on presentation and disclosures in financial statements,
will replace IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
(“IAS 17”). This new IFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in IAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss;
provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and
improve aggregation and disaggregation of information to be
disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some IAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and IFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. Minor amendments to
IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” and IAS 33 “Earnings per
Share” are also made. IFRS 18, and amendments to other
standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2027, with early application permitted.

The application of the new standard is expected to affect the
presentation of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures
in the future financial statements. The Group is in the
process of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

REMBRREREERERG
TBERER

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the IASB, on a going concern basis and under the historical
cost convention except for equity instruments at FVTOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL and investment properties, which
are measured at fair value. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Basis of consolidation (conTINUED) HEHE(E)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wa

PAESRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETTBEER(E
Interests in associates REE L 52w

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“IAS 36”) as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BENKBRREREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Interests in associates (CONTINUED) RBE Q2w ()

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in notes 5 and 28.

Leases

Definition of a lease

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception of
the contract. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVNBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Leases (CONTINUED) HE @&
The Group as a lessee AEBEDERBA
Short-term leases fHHE

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises and warehouse
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAEFHBURER ()
Leases (CONTINUED) HE (@&
The Group as a lessee (coNTINUED) KEFERBRBA )
Lease liabilities HEERE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease (see below for
the accounting policy for “lease modifications”).

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEUKBRREHREERERSE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Leases (CONTINUED) HE @&
The Group as a lessee (cONTINUED) KEFERBERBA (B)
Lease modifications HEEE,
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate MHIR THER - AEBEHESEIIERE—E
lease if: BYHE AR

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases
All leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BENKBRREREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 FAETEEER (E)
Foreign currencies Shig

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in RMB to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEVBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBCRE R (18)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Borrowing costs EERA

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants where primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis in the period in
which they become receivable. Government grants relating
to compensation of expenses are deducted from the related
expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Employee benefits EEREA
Retirement benefit costs BIKEFEK L

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For long service payments (the “LSP”) obligation, the Group
accounts for the employer MPF contributions expected to
be offset as a deemed employee contribution towards the
LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure
on a net basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the relevant employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVNBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Share-based payments N8R EN
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions UERBZERGNIMZES
Shares/share options granted to employees RTES 2R TERE

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits
(accumulated losses).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BENKBRREREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Share-based payments (CONTINUED) DARR 33 7% (88)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions LERZERA M 25 (&)
(coNTINUED)
Share award granted to employees BT IES 2R 17226

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
employee share trust reserve. At the time when the awarded
shares are vested, the amounts previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve and employee share trust
reserve are transferred to retained profits (accumulated
losses).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revisits
its estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share trust reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEVBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBCRE R (18)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Taxation (CONTINUED) I (&)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

EERBAGEMBHRRANEER B EREE
HAERRTUENAARARENECGRER
AfR - BER BB BBEGMAE TR E
ERHER  EERRTOEN A A R E £
BIIER - AT A AR E i E R R IR T
MBAEE  WE LR ERBIIRER BT
ERFAVENRETEN 2 HMEERAE
(RBAPHRINEL - BERXZBTELR
EFHRMT R AENEREE - AT EeRRE
BEENARE -

EEHRBRENERRMBRRARBE AT ZE
BEMaIBZERRERZRMER - EEAK
B R R B E R R EEE AT
SN RBHRZ BB ZIERAERIN - BZFR
BRI E R E R E L RERRE
B BERAERRANREREZRENRE
ARBUE A - WM A RS RO - 7'
EITHER

AR R A B 2 BRI (A R BRI AT -
R AT B 2 SRE R BRI ) 2 5 26
P EEBMER, -



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Taxation (CONTINUED) E (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land,
which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEVBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBCRE R (18)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Taxation (CONTINUED) I (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position, except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEMBEBRRGHREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 REFTBERE R (H)

Property, plant and equipment (coNTINUED)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits (accumulated losses).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVNBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Investment properties (CONTINUED) BREYE(E)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BENKBRREREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Intangible assets (CONTINUED) wmEE (&)
Research and development expenditure (coNTINUED) HEREZEH (&)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZKEMKBRRGREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTBCRE R (18)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETBEER(E

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated to the assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of the asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(CONTINUED)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RENKBRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBCRE R (18)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Inventories 78

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include inventory costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) @I A (H)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (“IFRS 15”). Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RENKBRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBCRE R (18)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) SRET A (&)
Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BENKBRREREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (E)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) £RT A ()
Financial assets (conTINUED) LHEE &)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (coNTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits (accumulated losses).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEUKBRREHREERERSE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETEERER (E
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) SRIT A (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE ()

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (CoNTINUED)

(i)

(iir)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/
(cONTINUED)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE—_Z-_WF+-A=1+—HIEtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAREEERER (E
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SET A (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“IFRS 9”)

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including
trade and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivable, amounts due from associates, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment is done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances or credit
impaired and the remaining balances are collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVNBBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER(E
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) SRIT A (&)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) THEE ()
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment B E A (B X BB B TR A E R 92 R
assessment under IFRS 9 (contivuep) 1EFEETAEIR (42)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (FE)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) £RT A ()
Financial assets (conTINUED) 2HEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment BB E A (B T BB B TR A E R 92
assessment under IFRS 9 (contivuep) 1EFLETAEIR (48)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (conTiNUED) (i) EEERAEENE)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understand
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

REMBRREREERERG
STCRER (R

3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (conTiNUED)

(if)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(ifi) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (FE)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) £RT A ()
Financial assets (conTINUED) 2HEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment BB E A (B T BB B TR A E R 92
assessment under IFRS 9 (contivuep) 1EFLETAEIR (48)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets (coNTINUED)

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

REMBRREREERERG
STCRER (R

3.2

Material accounting policy information (conTINUED)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTiNUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEVKBRRFEREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBERE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (FE)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) £RT A ()
Financial assets (conTINUED) LHEE &)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment BB E A (B T BB B TR A E R 92
assessment under IFRS 9 (contivuep) 1EFLETAEIR (48)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (conTiNUED) (v) FEHAEEEBRGERIER ()

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration of the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, notes receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from associates and consideration
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

EEBHGEE  ARBEHENERE
EEE AT R IERE

o BHEWOR:

o  [BERANME BEREITE R

o IIMEMEEFAR(NA) -

EREEREMAMBTTE - UERSE
AMAKIEE #FRUNEERRE
o

MEBMAZeREENEEREENE
HESBEERSEERERRI - ME
ZERT  FEBRADREMEENE
HHPXANETE -

AEEEAEMASRTANKREE
REBERARERSERER - ERNE
SRR - BRERE - B EKRFR - &
Y Hst & RIRIR K R WA B RO AR FE B
BIBERBEIREITIRID -

173

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR



174

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

REMBRREREERERG
STCRER (R

3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED)
Financial assets (conTINUED)
Forejgn exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period.

Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the ‘Other gains and losses’ line item as part of the net
foreign exchange gains (losses);

o For financial assets measured at FVTPL, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item as part of the fair value
change on financial assets at FVTPL;

o For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange

differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the assets revaluation reserve.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BENKBRREREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAETBERER (FE)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) £RT A ()
Financial assets (conTINUED) 2HEE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets A ER B

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, but transferred to retained profits
(accumulated losses).

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ey

PAESRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

HREMBRREREERERS
ATERERER (R

3.2

Material accounting policy information (conTINUED)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables and bank borrowings) are initially measured
at fair values and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line item in profit
or loss as part of net foreign exchange gains (losses) for
financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

RETBRER ()
ST A (#)
EHREE (&)
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

RS R A T REMLN
ERRR ()

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

Key Sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

BASE S ot H B I A5t A REE MY
EERIR (&)

Valuation of investment properties

The management estimates the fair value of the investment
properties with reference to fair value determined by the
Valuer as defined in note 15 using income capitalisation
approach. In making the valuation, the Valuer used key
inputs including capitalisation rates and market rent of
similar properties. The key inputs used are intended to
reflect conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Where there are any changes in the key inputs used,
the estimated fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2024, the fair
value of investment properties is HK$574,540,000 (2023:
HK$640,111,000). Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 15.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets in handsets and
10T terminals business

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key inputs and assumptions
applied in estimating the recoverable amount in the cash
flow projection. The Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong.
Changing the key inputs and assumptions, including the
budgeted sales, gross profit margin, annual and terminal
growth rates and discount rate in the cash flow projection,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts. Details
of the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-_ME+-_A=+—HILFE

BASE S o BT & (A5t A REE M
EEZRIR (&)

Write-down for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and writes down obsolete
and/or slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials primarily based on the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. If the
market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net
realisable value for such finished goods and raw materials,
additional write-down may be required. As at 31 December
2024, the carrying amount of inventories is approximately
HK$52,720,000 (2023: HK$86,323,000). During the year
ended 31 December 2024, net reversal of write-down for
inventories of HK$13,088,000 (2023: HK$73,969,000) was
credit to profit or loss.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on past-due status of individual
debtors or as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The individual assessment and collective
assessment are based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the
ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes
39 and 25 respectively. The net carrying amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2024 is HK$83,338,000 (2023:
HK$48,623,000).
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5. REVENUE S

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)  DTFEEFEAIMA
customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-E-ME+-AZ+-ALFE

Segments Automotive
pak: Handsets and intelligent
10T terminals products
business business Property

FHRMBR EHEE  management Total

ESTES)S Em¥ER YEHEEE @t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TEn TiEn TEx FTER

Types of goods or services &R IRIELER
Sale of handsets and [0T SHE FH R AR

terminals 338,039 - - 338,039
Sale of automotive intelligent  $HEEHDHEER
products - 46,297 - 46,297
338,039 46,297 - 384,336
Property rental by ESabic| - - 45,034 45,034
Total by 338,039 46,297 45,034 429,370
Timing of revenue recognition Y¢ AFESREERS
At a point in time RE—E % 337,254 46,297 N/AT3E A
Over time i 785 - N/ATE A
Total 5t 338,039 46,297 N/ATER
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REVENUE (coNTINUED)

5. WA (&
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)  DFEEFEAIBA (B
customers (CoNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-=F+-_A=1t—HIt5E
Segments Automotive
pak: Handsets and intelligent
|OT terminals products
business business Property
FHle R A BE#HSE  management Total
FSTES S EmxT  VEHEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT THET FAT FAT
Types of goods or services &R IR LER
Sale of handsets and 10T SHE T R AR
terminals 473,660 - - 473,660
Sale of automotive intelligent  $HEEHEDEEER
products - 17,517 - 17,517
473,660 17,517 - 491,177
Property rental bEutii| = = 52,763 52,763
Total st 473,660 17,517 52,763 543,940
Timing of revenue recognition 42 A\ FEF2 B f
At a point in time A — B8 439,963 17,517 N/ATNiE A
Over time i 33,697 - N/ATNER
Total 5t 473,660 17,517 N/ATEF
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

A

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (CoONTINUED)

Geographical markets

The PRC

Europe

United States

Hong Kong

Other Asian countries

The PRC

Europe

United States

Hong Kong

Other Asian countries

AR
0

£

B

R NER

AR
B

£

B
HATNER
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() DHRELEFRA (B)

HEW S

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-ZE-ME+=-A=+—HLFE

Automotive

Handsets and intelligent
10T terminals products Property
business business management
FH R EHERE LESN
EEESTTES S Em¥xi 4§
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TR FHBT
267,874 46,297 45,034
7,838 - -
14,747 - -
12,132 - -
35,448 - -
338,039 46,297 45,034

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+-_A=1T—HILFE

Automotive

Handsets and intelligent
|OT terminals products Property
business business management
F i K sk - MM
CERSTE Em kTS EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
284,963 17,517 52,763
34,918 - -
55,094 - -
822 - -
97,863 - -
473,660 17,517 52,763




5. REVENUE (conNTINUED)

5. WA (&

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and IOT terminals

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals and
own-branded products manufacturing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of usage, distribution and price to sell the
goods, and has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit
term is O — 90 days upon delivery. The Group typically
receives a 30% — 50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

For the electronics manufacturing services, revenue
is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the Group creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The normal credit term is O — 15 days. The
Group typically receives a 30% — 50% deposit before
the provision of services. Management considered
the nature of business is similar to the own-branded
products manufacturing and grouped the revenue in
“Sale of handsets and IOT terminals” during the year.

Sale of automotive intelligent products

For the sale of automotive intelligent products,
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the customer’s specific location (delivery). The
handling activities before customers obtained control
are considered as fulfilment activities. Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. The normal credit term is O — 90
days upon delivery. The Group typically receives a
10% — 50% deposit before the sale of goods.

(i)

EFEHZEBHIRIT

HEF R YA

MEHEFREYHEREREE RER
BEmE  WARERRESEER (BE
mBE M EERFREEE (BERM)) R
R - RR[NE - BREAIZEREE R
WERAR  DEHEEE BERHEEER
M ARETEES  WAERERIEH
HRERIBRER - EREEHARN
Z0ZE0K - AEBEBENIHEE AT
H30% Z=50% KRS -

REFRERBT S - WARAKEER
BROTREESRA TP EEERANE
AR TTE AT B RO B E R BERS R R R
BHEME - EREEMROEIGK - A&
BB FE R IR ARFE AT ER30% E50%H
Be BERERRUERBHEEER
EmiEERBERU - YBFRHEA
DERAMHEF R ERE] -

HEEHEFER
MHEEHEEERMS - WARER
MEFCEE (AMERENEEEFH
HIEHE (B X)) R - REFIE
ZHI AT R EE SRR SEAEE - ©
RV BEAZEREERMDHET
AREE  AREEEMBARIER
£ WAERERAREAEHRELIERRE
& - EREEHA/RXMNIROEIOR - A%
BEFERIHEEEmAT I 10%E50%H
BE -
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5N RkEyNUE (CONTINUED) -

5. A ()

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and |OT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing and sale of automotive
intelligent products, are for period of one year or less.

(iv)  Leases

For operating lease:
Lease payments that are fixed

BRARENE

EREERNR

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised HK$41,467,000 (2023: HK$47,986,000)
profit, being the difference between gross rental
income and direct operating expenses, as a property

lessor.
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(i)

(iv)

DEEEF A TENEFNRS
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HEFREYBBELS  BARMER
HERHEERHERERNARG R —
FHLAT ©

HE
2024 2023
—EC-NE —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT F#IT
45,034 52,763

HE_Z-_NF+=—A=1+—HILFE -
NEEEAYHE N ARERAL1,467,000
BT (Z B =4 : 47,986,000 7T) 2%
B BNEES WA BEEEERY 2 M
HOZ=EE o




SEGMENT INFORMATION

2 EER

Segment information is presented based on internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), being
the executive directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance.

To cope with the Group’s recent business development in
automotive intelligent products, the information reported to
the CODM included a new segment, automotive intelligent
products business, during the year ended 31 December
2024. Accordingly, each of these segments is considered
as a separate operating segment by the CODM, resulting in
changes to the presentation of the Group’s operating and
reportable segments on the Group’s segment results and
the Group’s segment assets and liabilities. Figures in the
segment information for and as at 31 December 2023 have
been re-presented for comparative purpose.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

DEBERBEIZZERRE ([TELERK
E]) BIARBMTES) EMENEHAKE

BRED ZABHREZS - UEDRERT D
BRFHARRS -
REAAEEIPNEFHELERT EHER

BR OEEZT-_NF+_A=+—HILF
B RMEZEERAREZROERBIE—EH
SR BHERERES o At - ZFHBE
BRFEEERRERABILENE 4K
SEEKERAREDRE D 2 AEB SR
BRAEESEEERBBZE27BEEZT) -
E—E_=F+ - A=1t—RILFEZH
BREURE C TS AELLE -

TRASEBEET2RRE
EH -

BN ZWARE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-E-OF+-AZ+-HLFE

Automotive
Handsets and intelligent
10T terminals products Property
business business management Consolidated
FHRMBR HHEE M
FSTES S Em¥EL HEEE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT T TR THER
Revenue WA
External sales HINHE 338,039 46,297 45,034 429,370
Segment loss HEER (61,488) (30,774) (24,376) (116,638)
Unallocated other income and A&7 B E 4 A B E A
other gains and losses W M EE 7,422
Share of results of associates 91 EE & A 74 4,039
Corporate expenses RNEHX (14,170)
Finance costs BER A (710)
Loss before taxation BRETRIEE (120,057)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

6. TEEF (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BEZZ-_=F+t-A=T—HIFE
Automotive
Handsets and intelligent
|OT terminals products Property
business business management Consolidated
Fe R 48 BHEEE /ES
FSES EmEL HEER R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL TAL FAL
Revenue WA
External sales HIMNEE 473,660 17,517 52,763 543,940
Segment (loss) profit 238 (E518) 5w Fl (78,710) (20,533) 16,706 (82,537)
Unallocated other income and R DB E AU K E At
other gains and losses W K B 534,405
Share of results of associates i A 7] 4R (3,940)
Corporate expenses NGRS (26,249)
Finance costs AR A (4,736)
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 416,943

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss,
fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL, loss on
deregistration of subsidiaries, certain other income and
certain other gains and losses, corporate expenses, share of
results of associates and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. PEEE (H)

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment 1% + BE R

Right-of-use assets
Interests in associates

Equity instruments at FVTOCI
Financial assets at FVTPL

Other receivables, deposits

and prepayments

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash
Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Bank borrowings
Tax payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

NERE

ERREE

R E AR s

BAVERARLEZE
Wizs 2 BATE

BAVEF AR
THEE

Hit YRR - ek
BNFUR
RHRITER
RITERIRS

HREE

nERE

Hb BRI
FERT TR

RITEE

FENBOR

EXHBRE

FARE

PHEEREE
TR AEFBRAIZHREEENHENNE
ERAED

At 31 December 2024
R-B-ME+=-A=+—-H

Handsets and
10T terminals
business
FHRREMEBR
ES
HK$'000
THER

219,210

201,686

Automotive
intelligent
products Property
business management Consolidated
HHER LJES
Em¥E% HEER &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
33,878 574,540 827,628
6,156
12,099
49,798
71,726
291
12,348
580,821
360,313
1,921,180
30,274 10,133 242,093
46,783
29,162
97,478
75,748
491,264

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR 187



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (contnued) 6. 535! ()

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED) PEEEREE (@)

At 31 December 2023
RZBZ=F+-A=1+—H

Automotive
Handsets and intelligent
|OT terminals products Property
business business management Consolidated
Fie R A BE DY ES
FSTESS EmES HEERE FoNe)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 268,482 20,064 640,111 928,657
Property, plant and equipment 7% - B K& /& 7,014
Right-of-use assets FREEE 12,577
Interests in associates REEE AR 46,616
Equity instruments at FVTOC! $2A (&St AR A 2
Was 2 RAT A 68,130
Financial assets at FVTPL & F{ERHABRZ
SRBE 468
Properties held for sale BELEME 469
Other receivables, deposits ~ EfEWRER « Z& R
and prepayments ERFIE 295,711
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 22,000
Short-term bank deposits K HRRI T 693,679
Bank balances and cash RITEREE S 74219
Consolidated assets REEE 2,149,540
Segment liabilities HEERE 270,153 991 11,405 282,549
Other payables and accruals — EftERMERZR
[E&TFIA 2,739
Bank borrowings RITIEE 33,000
Tax payables FERTIE 122,083
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAAE 89,976
Consolidated liabilities rEBE 530,347
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) |

6. DEERGE)

Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain right-of-use assets, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, interests in associates, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, properties held for sale, financial assets at
FVTPL, and certain other receivables, deposits and
prepayments; and

o corporate liabilities include certain other payables and
accruals, bank borrowings, tax payables and deferred
tax liabilities.

PHEEREEE)
REESBRAREEDEROEER

s KBETHE BERRE HTERE
BE CDHEARTENR  EHRTHE
Ko RITEBRRIRE  RBERRZE
& BAFEFAREMEERE B
TR RAVEFABRZEREE -
FAESHE YR A R B T A YR -
B MENFKEIN FEEEHIER
A2RREENE R

s DHEBEESERTHEMEMNERRREST

A RITEE - BARERELERR
AR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. SEEE ()

Other segment information

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Additions of property, plant
and equipment

Additions of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Net reversal of impairment
loss on consideration
receivables

Net reversal of write-down of
inventories

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in fair value of
investment properties

HENRRGEINREE
WREEHE

AEDE  BERK

NEEREEE
nE - BEREEZNE

EREEENE

B BESH

BRREZRESE
el

F RO %
HEMFE - BER&

2R
BENEATERD
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Hittp BER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-B-ME+-A=t-HLEHFE

Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business
FHR
L)
ESTE S
HK$’000
FTER

4,193

18,173

1,230

979

(1,251)

(13,088)

7,892

Automotive
intelligent
products Property
business management
5HE L/ES
BERER HEER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TEr
502 -
87 -
- 56,031

Unallocated

RAE
HK$000
TR

376

158

484

Consolidated

wa
HK$000
TR

4,193
376

18,833

1,714

1,066

(1,251)

(13,088)

7,892

56,031




6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

6. DEER (@)

Other segment information (conTINUED)

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Additions of property, plant
and equipment

Additions of right-of-use
assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Written-off of trade
receivables

Impairment loss on
consideration receivables

Impairment loss on goodwill

Net reversal of allowance of
inventories

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in fair value of
investment properties

BENBERIDPEE
WRAEH

REME - BERR

REEREEE

mE  BELRREZNE

EREEENE

B AESE

MK E 5 8RR

FEURREZRERE

AEREBR
FERERTIFR

BN BERRE
2t
RANEATFEAD

Hittn BEHR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_T-_=—F+-_A=1t-HIFE
Handsets  Automotive
and 10T intelligent
terminals products Property
business business management Unallocated Consolidated
FHR
MEE BEEHER ES
mumkrs  Emxl HEERE AHME e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT TAET FAT TAT
7,732 - - - 7,732
- - - 920 920
20,756 - - 165 20,921
4,042 = = 148 4,190
411 - - - 411
1,804 - - - 1,804
31,908 - - - 31,908
2,282 - - - 2,282
(73,969) = = = (73,969)
934 - - - 934
- - 16,000 - 16,000
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6. SEG‘ENT INFORMATION (cONTINUED) 6. DEERGE)

Geographical information ith B &R

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong REBRPBIARERBEASEEER ©

Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external EBRAAREBERBIINIEE ZMATIREBERER 2
customers is presented based on the location of the HEZS] - BEAASEERBEENER TR
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets BEEMEMEVEZS -

is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
REIMBEE ZWA FkRBEE
BE+-A=1t—HILEE Bn+=—A=+—H
2024 2023 2024 2023
—ECNE —Eo=F —E-ME —Eo=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T THT BT
The PRC elEy N 359,205 355,243 671,452 760,943
Europe BN 7,838 34,918 - =
United States xE 14,747 55,094 - =
Hong Kong B8 12,132 822 266 62
Other Asian Countries EH b aaMEEIER 35,448 97,863 - =
429,370 543,940 671,718 761,005
Note: Non-current assets excluded equity instruments at FVTOCI. HieF - ERBDEETERBRAFEF AL MEZEKEZ
EARTEH -
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HHERA - WERER

Other income:

Refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT")
(note i)

Government grants (note i)

Interest income earned on bank balances

Interest income earned on consideration
receivables

Others

Other gains and losses:

Gain on Land Resumption (note iii)

Written-off of trade and other payables
(note iv)

(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Changes in fair values of investment
properties

Impairment losses on property held
for sale

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on interest in an
associate

Loss on disposal of interest in an associate

Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries
(note v)

Net foreign exchange gain (loss)

Written-off of trade receivables

Fair value change on financial assets
at FVTPL

HebUWA :

BER (BSER]) RBE
(Hiati)

TRFTIE B YA (B 22i)

SRITAERRBREN 2 7 WA

FEUA B BRE 2 FI B U A

HAft

Hipl s R g8

el + 3t Wk (W aii)

HSHFE A B 5 Bk S B At 3R
(Hiaziv)

HEME - BEREREZ
(B518) s

FHEHEME ZRERR

BRI ERE
AR ERERE

HER A RR 2R 2R
SEEHTE AT 2 EE

(Hiz#v)
[E 5 Wezs (B518) /#58
MEHE 2 EUGRIE
BAFEFTABRZEREE

2024 2023
—E-EF =ER==4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
1,118 3,015
24,689 20,322
30,036 22,232
835 1,700
1,413 9,830
58,091 57,099
- 537,816

2,554 3,511
(7,892) 934
(56,031) (16,000)
- (7,142)

- (2,282)

- (3,342)

- (1,581)
(30,764) -
12,496 (29)
- (1,804)

(177) (1,134)
(79,814) 508,947
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

7. EAWA - s R EE (8)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) was engaged
in the business of distribution of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test equipment and
software. Under the current PRC tax regulation, they were entitled
to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test software in the
PRC in 2024 and 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the amount represents
unconditional government grants of HK$1,896,000 and HK$Nil
(2023: HK$2,816,000 and HK$7,565,000), which was granted to
encourage the Group’s research and development activities and
subsidies for investment in local region in the PRC. In addition,
the Group has received conditional incentive payments of
HK$8,152,000 (2023: HK$9,941,000) from the local government
in the PRC and the amounts were fully credited to profit or loss
upon the fulfillment of conditions.

In July 2023, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“SH Sunrise”),
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a land resumption
agreement (“Agreement”) with the PRC Government in respect
of the resumption (“Land Resumption”) of the land use rights
of the piece of land owned by it in Qingpu, Shanghai together
with all buildings, structures, and attachments thereat. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the compensation payable to SH Sunrise
for the Land Resumption comprised of three parts. The first
part and second part were compensation of RMB374,435,165
and RMB255,919,316, respectively. The third part was an
incentive for SH Sunrise to relocate on schedule. If SH Sunrise
and all the tenants completed the relocation within 180 days
after the effective date of the Agreement, SH Sunrise was
awarded an additional incentive of RMB118,470,547. The
Land Resumption was completed in November 2023. The
gain on the Land Resumption of HK$537,816,000, after
netting off HK$296,375,000 disposed assets, related expenses
and compensation to tenants, was recorded in “other gains
and losses” of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023. The aforesaid three parts of compensation of amount
to RMB224,647,000 (equivalent to HK$245,989,000) and
RMB524,178,000 (equivalent to HK$583,934,000) which were
fully settled by the PRC Government in February 2024 and
December 2023 respectively.
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Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FEBESEM (LB BRAR(TLEFERE])
WESHBTRRREEZRN - URAEED
(LIRS - REBEFBIRTZHREER R=F
—MER-F-_=FETRERHEEATHERE
EZ8M  URREBEBERAREEAN 28
BERAZEERM -

HE-_T-_WNE+_A=+—HLFE " Kt
HBE R (FER AT B A 1,896,00078 7T & T i
TT(ZE =4 : 2,816,000/ 7T 2 7,565,000/%
TT) + Ty RSB ANE B R B R B E B R AE A
BB E ML o thoh - AEEE AHRE
R TR (6 B2 £:8,152,000/8 7T (=&
Z =4 : 9,941,000 7T) * A BRIBE R I&E
TR 8 BEGT A IBE -

RZBZ=Ft A AQFANHBLARLER
REWBEFRBRARAR ([ HERRA]) HRE
BUR & eT U 1% ([Z 8 ]) - WA ARKE
(MigEl L3 ]) R BB EmAN— Rtz +
wiERERFTA FEREY  BEYPRER
W) o RIBZ IR - RKEHHEN T EEREY
HESHERE=MY - F—BoRE=-HBHZ
EESEH R AARMI74,435,165T R AR
255,919,3167T * £E=#H & LIGR FEURFRE N
RSEE) - 10 EIERE R Z H T AT B E &
121808 NTEKRE - Bl BRI ESE
S 42 A R 118,470,547 7T » WE LB =
Z_=F+— A%k - MBRELEEE - HHBER
% R B (8296,375,000/8 7T 14 » Ug[El LAY
W #5537,816,0008 TERBE-T_=F+=
A=+—BIEFE RS ARE B[ H i &
BiEl - A E=TFEHEEEREBRF 28
R-E—mMF—AR—ZE=_=F+=AHRXfH
AR#224,647,0007T (18 & 72245,989,0007 7T)
R AR#524,178,0007T (48 % 74 583,934,0007#
To) °



7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(CONTINUED)

7. B - EE S ()

(iv)

(v)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has
written off trade and other payables of HK$2,554,000 (2023:
HK$3,511,000). The trade and other payable accounts had no
movement over the last three years and no repayment request
received on such liabilities from creditors. The management
considered the creditors had forfeited the right of collecting the
relevant liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Shanghai Wide-
Top Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and Guangdong SIM Technology
Co., Limited, both of whom were wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC, were deregistered. A reclassification of
cumulative translation reserve upon deregistration of amount of
HK$30,764,000 has been recognised to profit and loss.

(iv)

()

BE-_T-_WNE+-_A=1+—ALEE  &x&EH
B HUsH e B 2 BR TR I B A 5K IE 2,554,000 7T
T =4 :3,511,00087T) - ZEENE SR
RREMHERIBE=FRILEEE - EEAT
BEEREEZSEE EHERAERABREX
BIIER B EaER -

BE—T-_NE+-_A=1+—ALEE ' AQF
RAEBEHEEHRBAR LEHSRERERRA
AIREREARHE AR AR - FiHE
RETIE R EEER S S 530,764,000 T E R
B o
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8. REVERSAL OF (IMPAIRMENT LOSSES)
UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS

8. FMEEBREN N 2B E
EER) R

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Included in the reversed impairment loss recognised on
amounts due from consideration receivables is an amount of
HK$1,251,000, which was fully impaired as at 31 December
2023, represented the settlement of balance by the debtor during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

Included in the reversed impairment loss recognised on amounts
due from associates for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
an amount of HK$10,604,000, which was fully impaired in prior
year, represented the settlement of consideration in the share
transfer agreement with Shanghai Zhenkang Electronics Limited
(“Shanghai Zhenkang”).

Details of the impairment losses under expected credit loss
model, net of reversal are set out in note 39.

9. FINANCE COSTS

Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

MODEL, NET
2024 2023
—ET-E =rd==as
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Reversal of (impairment losses) recognised Bt N7 IR E OR(EERE)
on:
— Trade receivables —ENE Z RN 397 1,845
— Other receivables — H At fEURER K (754) 806
— Consideration receivables (note i) — RUWRAB (B3 1,251 (31,908)
— Amounts due from associates (note i) — PR & A B FRIE (B a2in) - 11,650
894 (17,607)

EEARERE A (E 2 B R AR E B
1,251,000 ' ER—E=-=#+-fA=+—H
R ERME  BEBAREE 2 _NE+_A
=+ —BIEFELAHRTHRE -

AABE-T_=F+_A=1+—HILFER
FE T4 B LB 5 /A ] < 58 R RR 6 UL MBS 4B R )
10,604,000/ 7T (K FE2BURE) » BIZfFE |
BERETFARAR ([ BRI ZHRNE
EipERRE -

BEHEEBEEXT ZRERRE GIREE) &
(CESITE R

BE R A

Interests on bank borrowings
Interests on lease liabilities

RITIEER S
HEREN S
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2024 2023
—E-ME —TE_=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
710 4,736

95 237

805 4,973




10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND  10. % * BE#T

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

ERESNE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors” and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EERERITEMS
RIBER LRI R BB R RGBT HEE 2 A

FEEERERNTEZHESMT

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-B-ME+ZAST-ALFE

Retirement
benefits
Directors’  Salaries and Other scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus benefits  contributions  emoluments
BIREF
EEHE  HoREw 4 Hit g7 SHEMR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n Ti#n TiEn TiEn T#n Ti#n
(Note i) (Note vi)
(Hiti) (Hstvi)
Executive Directors HiTEE
Ms. Yeung Man Ying EXBAt - 499 158 574 - 1,231
Mr. Wong Cho Tung THR%E - 986 329 574 - 1,889
Mr. Zhu Wenhui RXERE - 537 250 - 159 946
Mr. Zhu Qi (Note i) REEE W) - 631 395 - 160 1,186
Sub-total U] - 2,653 1,132 1,148 319 5,252

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

PRHTEEREFERTEME T ZANE A
ARIRAREEHCERE -

Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon TBEE 234 - - - - 234
Independent non-executive Directors B F:H{TEE

Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEMEE 234 - - - - 234
Mr. Wu Zhe (Note fv) RA KA Wit 88 - - - - 88
Mr. Li Minbo TR EE 234 - - - - 234
Mr. Yang Wentao (Note v) BXCERE W) 146 - - - - 146
Sub-total Nt 702 - - - - 702

The non-executive director’'s and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Total &5t 936 2,653

PRFATEST B TES IS ER
AR EEREARRES -

1,132

1,148

319

6,188
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

10. %l;; FBERIITEREENE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

Executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Man Ying
Mr. Wong Cho Tung
Mr. Liu Jun (Note i)
Mr. Zhu Wenhui

Mr. Zhu Qi (Note i)

Sub-total

yirEs
Bt
THR%E
ELE Witii)
AXBELE
RS (Writi)

st

ESRERITENS (@

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BEZZ-ZET-A=t-HIL4RE

Retirement
Share benefits
Directors'  Salaries and award scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus scheme  contributions  emoluments
R RN
B2  HeRER bzAN L] STl i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Note )
(Wit
- 718 - 6,275 - 6,993
- 1,387 - 6,274 - 7,661
- 568 11 - 118 697
- 477 85 - 161 723
- 180 - - 4] 21
- 3,330 96 12,549 320 16,295

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Hing Hung

Mr. Wu Zhe (Note iv)

Mr. Li Minbo

Sub-total

FUTES
E 7

BUFHTES
BEfLE
RELLE (Witi)
FHREE

st

LRAHTEEREFRHITEMS T R@NE AR
RAIRAKEEHZER

156 = = = = 156
156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
156 = = = = 156
468 = = = = 468

The non-executive director’'s and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Total

o5t
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624

3330

FRIFRTEE BN TEEIHETE
AR REREARRES -

%

12,549

320

16919




10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

10. ’(iﬂ;; FBERIITEREENE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of directors and the Group’s operating results.

Appointed as executive director with effect from 28 September
2023.

Resigned as executive director with effect from 28 September
2023.

Resigned as independent non-executive director with effect from
25 January 2024.

Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect from
25 January 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group provided
accommodation, leased from a third party, to Ms. Yeung Man
Ying and Mr. Wong Cho Tung for their use and that of their family
members at no charge. The estimated aggregated monetary value
of the benefit in kind is approximately HK$1,148,000.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2023: two)
directors for the year ended 31 December 2024, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2023: three) individuals, being senior
management of the Company, are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Bonus
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

¥ KRk
TEAT

RIRGERFT IR

EERERITENS (@
Wit

(i) FERERECARHATNEESKEREEL
RERBEARAEE 2 EEEEMERE ©

(il R-B_=FhA-—+N\BEERHTES -

(i) RZZBZ=FhA=1+/\BEHTHRTES -

vy R-B-WF-—A-THHBEBIIFNTE

v) RIE-NF—-A-THREERBMIFRTE

4t

Vi) REBEZZ_NF+_A=+—HBILFE K&
ERBXELt R TARLERBREREAS
=HNEBRHERERAGER - BRI T
A HBED 51,148,000/ -

EEMS
HE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HLEFE &
LREFMATEE=2CZE_=F: W)
EE HMESERLEXBE BT =_H (=T
Z=F =R AL (BERRAERERAER)
2SI

2024 2023
—E-NE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHBT
1,783 2,532

110 567

212 356

2,105 3,455
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 10. £ EEHTEREEM S

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED) (#)
Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED) EEM<E (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE 2 S ELATATSIE6E:
2024 2023
—E-ME —Eo=F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEA™ BB A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 L Z1,000,000/%8 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7t 2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group REEF  AEBWARAERESRAGBTR=H
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals A T ZAERBE - (EAFERFIMALRS
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B AR 5 INA AN 5 B B [R5 5 S 45 2 AR (AT 5Kk
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived 18 - REABERAE - RMEFEEEEEN
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years. EZRENEEAHNE -
11. TAXATION 11. #iE
2024 2023
—ECME —TE-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Taxation comprises: BEEE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) A1 2 FTASEL ([ SEFTISHL) 256 6,879
Overprovision in prior years LATE S B RE RS (2,188) (3,783)
(1,932) 3,096
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) AR B R (E R ([ g ER ) - 70,805
Deferred tax charge (note 20) EERIBRAZ (Ha220) (14,008) 9,868
Taxation (credit) charge for the year REEHIE L) X (15,940) 83,769
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11. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

11. B8 ()

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Shanghai Simcom is classified as New and High
Technology Enterprise and are entitled to adopt a tax rate of
15%. The relevant annual tax rate used for PRC EIT for the
Group’s subsidiaries ranged from 15% to 25% (2023: 15%
to 25%).

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({FhZEE AR
B+ 12 E T E 1T I651)) effective on 1 January 1994,
and the Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT ({2 A RAE 1 3%
ERETIENEmARL)) effective from 27 January 1995,
all income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use
rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
of the appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including borrowing
costs, land costs and property development expenditures in
relation to the gains arising from sales of properties in the
PRC effective from 1 January 2004.

HRAEEAETEL BELERVGEN - WE
AR EFREELT BN ST -

EMEHNT MAEHHESRR - IZHEE
FAE 2 BITHEFE - EEFBBWTA
[ Rl - WHEERA LSRR o K
SEMBRRRAZRECEMSHEBREER
MENF1I5%E2% ZH(ZZTEZ=F : 156%
Z25%) °

BE-—NANAOE—A—BREBH(REAR
HME IR ERE TR - UR—ANE
F-—A-+tHRBERN(PEARKFHL
I ERETIEGEEALD)  HEREHER
B L AR - Y R EM BTS2
A+ BIRFHERE N T30% 2 60% K8 T
RN T ISER - FHEREIRLEMEMS
FIERAINEAY - 80 F—/F—H
B EPEMERSRSHBOEERAN - +
AR MEBRRA -

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR
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11

. TAXATION (coNTINUED)

11. B8 ()

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

Taxation at the PRC income tax
rate of 25% (2023: 25%)

Tax effect of share of results
of associates

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of super deduction
for research and development
expenses (Note)

Qver provision in prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Provision for LAT for the year

Tax effect of LAT deductible
for PRC EIT

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Income tax on concessionary rate

Tax (credit) charge for the year

Note: In PRC, the State Administration of Taxation has implemented
the policies for weighted deduction of research and development
expenses. Qualified research and development expenditures are

BRI AT (B518) 4 7
BRBFEHHRE25%

(ZZ =% : 25%)5tE 2 BiE
DEMERRREZHBTZE
PAMBZ A 2 BT &
BERR ARG E
MEFASERENNRETE (i)
VA E BB A
RERRBBIEZ R E
RERAMRE R EER I RBHE
FARLHIBENRE
AR B R AT S A LR E T A

MR e

HRBERER ZHBER

REBREFE ZREH
AEREBIA(ER)FX

eligible for 70% to 100% tax deduction.

AEREHIA KR Fx
BRAT (B51R) M AIERRAN T

B ABR RPN
2024 2023
—Z-MEF —TE-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
(120,057) 416,943
(30,014) 104,236
(1,010) 985
11,373 37,733
(19,281) (74,400)
(6,426) (16,054)
(2,188) (3,783)
31,183 38,380
3,681 17,372
- 70,805
- (17,701)
(3,258) (1,397)
- (72,407)
(15,940) 83,769

HisF - EHRE - BRBEEEE E IR0k
BUR - BERAEFRZAIZHF70%Z2100% TR
B



12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. AR OB ER

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Amortisation of intangible assets
— (included in cost of sales and services)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FET

2,370
1,040

3,410

411
(411)

20,921
(12,282)

2024
—EomE
HK$’000
Fiist
AEE (F18) wHE MG
EYNE
P CILE
—EEHRE 2,420
—IEEHIRT 500
2,920
m AR GEANER
RIS AA) 1,066
W DEAMLHEE (1,066)
W . BERRETE
18,833
B BEERENEE (10,953)
7,880

8,639
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12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(CONTINUED)

12. 24 5 (B 1) 26 ()

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Net (reversal of) allowance of inventories
— (included in cost of sales and services)
Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense (included in cost of sales
and services)
Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 10)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Gross rental income from investment
properties
Less: direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

EREEERE

& (B m) B3
FEASHE RARBARA)

ERARAX 2 FERA
FFAHE RARFEKA)

BT :

EEME BaE10)

HAh 8 THRA
—TEREMER
— RIRREFIFT Bl

B BEEAMENER

REMELBS WA

B REMEZEREERX

2024 2023
—E-OEF —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
1,714 4,190
(13,088) (73,969)
336,025 413,864
6,188 16,919
107,718 145,131
23,801 27,037
137,707 189,087
(9,160) (37,166)
128,547 151,921
(45,034) (52,763)
3,567 4,777
(41,467) (47,986)




13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
At the board meeting held on 26 March 2024, the directors BERN T _MNE=ZA-_+"HBITHNEEZ
proposed a special dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary 2HEERREERRE TR EBRAASN -
share, in an aggregate amount of HK$85,734,000. The 42 %8/585,734,000/8 7T © B IE AR S
proposed dividend was paid during the year. BERANEEIRST ©
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final ESVITEERBEE S _NFER T _=F
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. +Z A=+ —HUEFERMRBARS -

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. R (E5#H) &R

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

(Loss) earnings figures are calculated (E5#8) BRIEFEMT :

as follows:

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of FREEK (E518) &5

basic (loss) earnings 2 (B8 87|
per share
Number of shares BHEE

AR RS AR SR (B1R) BRI T0HA
T -

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR EFAER (518) 2F

shares for the purpose of basic (loss) B MNETFIEE

earnings per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share has been adjusted
for the impact of shares repurchased by the Company.

2024 2023
—ECuE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
(94,780) 344,285
2024 2023
—ECuE —Eo=F
000 ‘000

Fh TFh&
2,143,351 2,142,497

AR ESRER (BR) B8 E B INEF
BHEERAREBBRAMRL

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15.

REWRE

FAIR VALUE

At 1 January 2023

Transfers from property, plant and
equipment

Transfer from right-of-use assets

Decrease in fair value recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2023

Transfers from property, plant and
equipment

Transfer from right-of-use assets

Decrease in fair value recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2024

Unrealised loss on property valuation
included in profit or loss in 2024

Unrealised loss on property valuation
included in profit or loss in 2023

AFE
R-ZE-_=%—H—H
HEEEYE - BB &EE

EERACRAEEE
RERER 2 A FERD

ERER

RZZEZ=F+=A=+—

BEAYE  BEMR

HERAEREEE
REBRERZ A FERD
ERER

R-ZE-—NF+=—A=+—

R-T_MFFAB&HEZ
RERYEHERE

R-T-_=Fst AR
RERYXREERBRE

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
the respective dates of transfer from property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 (with details as set out below)
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by HG Appraisal & Consulting Limited
engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”), independent
qualified professional valuer not related to the Group. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with the
Valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs.
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HK$'000
THETT

664,865

2,258
713

(16,000)
(11,725)

H 640,111

628
186

(56,031)
(10,354)

H 574,540
(56,031)

(16,000)

AEBAUNTBEZ ZREMERTIRE S BHEAOR
5o

BE_ T NMFER_F_=F+_HA=t+—H
LEFEGEEHINT) ARERSAREE
BHREYE  BERRBAREAEEEZ
BEWME A FEDREAR AR M EAKE
BB B AARMMEMEENERERSE
RAB(MEEED]) N&Z B ETZEEMSE
AEBPBRERGEMEREIE - UM
EEAENGEERT MERBARE -



15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

15. REWE (&)

During the year, property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets fair valued at HK$628,000 and HK$186,000
(2023: HK$2,258,000 and HK$713,000), respectively were
transferred to investment properties upon change in use of
certain properties. The management considered the end
of owner-occupation when the Group entered into various
operating leases with external third parties or when the
properties are vacant but are held to be leased out under
operating leases. The management assessed the fair value
of these investment properties which are determined based
on valuations performed by the Valuer. The valuations are
carried out on the respective dates of transfer, by using
income capitalisation approach, which was arrived at
by reference to the key inputs, including the term rent,
capitalisation rates and market rent of similar properties.

The fair values of investment properties as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 were determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows of the market rentals of the
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rates are determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar commercial and
industrial properties in Shanghai and Shenyang adjusted
to take into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

RAEE - RFEDHIA628,000% T &
186,000/ 7T (ZE = =4 : 2,258,000/8 7T &
713,000/ 7T) 2 M3 ~ BB Kk fE A R fE A
BEERETHEZAEEHMEREREY
¥ o  EAREEEINIEZ R ZIELLTE
YEEEERIFLCETHEF LR - 8
EEEBERAETHHETAA BEEEHE
PEEMTETHEMESE 2 ZEREWEA
FEEITRE o ARG ENSHEREERBRIR
BRABERMEEREST - ZEEE2EBREBA
HiE(PETHES  ERMLERREMEZ
TiGAE)BH »

KEMER T _MFER=_T=_=F+=A
=t+—HAZAFEIREBERAERCEEE -
Bt - S EMENE R LEEN 2 TiEHE
& - WIKREEH WEYEMTER 2 mi%E R
BRI - i S IRR A R B Emi5HE
SHEEIARRRESRAE - ENMERA2ES
MESREGREIEYEHEERIZB/HZEK
WmEBTE  CRABUGTAMEREENTSE
B URBAEEREMENFTERE ° BE
RIS AT FEATRAEER -

AR ATES - NEY B RRER
BAEEAMSE -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

15. REWE (&)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2024

ERAEATTEEGABRBETAPETREZ
&x
TRETEEREMEAHEMAZHBERD
RIGERAAZ TR SR AR

R-_ZB-_mE+=-HA=+—H

Fair value Valuation Unobservable
Hierarchy techniques Fair value key inputs
AHERE RERD AVE

HK$'000

THET

Investment properties in Shanghai - Retail

REBZRENE-FE

Level 3 Income capitalisation 72,449 (i) Capitalisation rate
F=H approach (i) B ®
WAER(LE

(ii) Market rent
(i) T5HE

Investment properties in Shanghai - Office

REBZRENE-RAE

Level 3 Income capitalisation 371,388 (i) Capitalisation rate
E=M approach (i) B E
WAER(LE

(i) Market rent
(i) Ti5HE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

Range of unobservable
key inputs
TABE

TUEERREA\BE BREAYEEE

5.5% -6.0%
5.5%%6.0%

RMB4.91 - RMB13.64
per month
per square meter
BRETHK
AREAILE
ARHE13.647T

5.0%- 5.5%
5.0%%5.5%

RMB1.42 - RMB4.45
per month
per square meter
BABYAXR
AR¥142E
ARHEA457T

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TURERAHE
HAVEZHE

Aslight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BReRmEiEs 288N
TEMAERE - 24 o

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

THHEHARLN  EHD
TEMAELN - RZHA o

A slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BEReRmEiEs @880
TEMARERE - RZHA o

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

THHSHARLN - §EHD
TEMAELN - RZHA ©



15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

REWE (H)

15.

ERAEATTEEGABBETAPETEZ

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024 (conTINUED)

Fair value Valuation

Hierarchy techniques Fair value

ATERE HERD AVE
HK$'000
TAT

Investment properties in Shenyang - Commercial

REGZREME-HX

Level 3 Income capitalisation 12,486
E=M approach
WABRMEE

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

REGZREME-T%

Level 3 Income capitalisation 118,217
E=M approach
WABRE

' ()

R-ZE-_ME+=-A=+—H (&)

Unobservable Range of unobservable  Relationship of unobservable
key inputs key inputs inputs to fair value

TIBE TOBREBARE
TUBEREGABE BEGANBEE HAPEZEE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) B X

(i) Market rent

5.5% - 6.0%
5.5%%£6.0%

RMB0.85 - RMB1.18

A'slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BEMEERNENES - 28HA
TESABRE - RZIA

A significant increase in the

(i) AL per month market rent would result in a
per square meter significant increase in fair value,
FABFHK and vice versa.
ARE0.85TLE MSHSHAREN - SEHD
ARKELIST TEMAREN - RZMA

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) B

(i) Market rent

5.5% - 6.0%
5.5%%26.0%

RMB0.28 - RMB1.32

A'slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BEMEERNENLS 85D
TESABRE - RZIA

A significant increase in the

(i) AL per month market rent would result in a
per square meter significant increase in fair value,
FABFHK and vice versa.
ARE0.28L2 MEHSHAREN - SEHA
ARE1327 TEMAREN - RZMA
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

15.

REWE (H)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (coNTINUED)
As at 31 December 2023

Fair value Valuation Unobservable
Hierarchy techniques Fair value key inputs
AHERE RERD AVE

HK$'000

TET
Investment properties in Shanghai - Retail
REBZRENE-BE
Level 3 Income capitalisation 79,101 (i) Capitalisation rate
F=H approach (i) B %

WABA %

(i) Market rent
(i) mHHE

Investment properties in Shanghai - Office

REBZRENE-PAE

Level 3 Income capitalisation 418,099 (i) Capitalisation rate
F=H approach (i) B
WAB K%

(if) Market rent
(i) mHHE
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ERAEATTEEGABRBETAPETREZ

EH ()

RZE=Z=F+=-A=+—H

Range of unobservable
key inputs
TIBE

FIBERREE NS BREANEEE

5.5% - 6.0%
5.5%%£6.0%

RMB5.01 - RMB14.98
per month per square
meter

SASTHK
ARE501TE
AR#14.987T

5.0%- 5.5%
5.0%%5.5%

RMB1.40 - RMB4.32
per month
per square meter
SASTHK
AR%140%E
ARHEAZ2T

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABREBARE
HAPEZEE

A'slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BMEERENLS  gEHD
TESABRE - RZIA

A'slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

MSHSHAREN 28R
TEMAELM - RZHA

A'slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

B RMEGES 288
TESABAE - RZIA

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

MiHHSHAREN 28R
TESABEN - RZIA



15. INVESTME

NT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

15.

SRR ()

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2023 (CONTINUED)

Fair value
Hierarchy

DYERE

Valuation

techniques Fair value

RERD AYHE
HK$'000
TET

Investment properties in Shenyang - Commercial

REGZREME-HX

Level 3
E=]

Income capitalisation 12,902
approach

WABRMEA

Unobservable
key inputs

EREATTERBARBETAVENEZ
BRH ()
R-Z-=F+-A=+—H®E)

Range of unobservable  Relationship of unobservable
key inputs inputs to fair value

FURE FBREGAUE

FIBERREA\UE BREANELE BAVEZBE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) B

(i) Market rent
(i) AL

5.5% -6.0% A'slight increase in the
55%%6.0% capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BEMEERENES 85D
TESABRE - RZIA
RMB0.85-RMB1.20 A significant increase in the

per month market rent would result in a

per square meter significant increase in fair value,
FABFHK and vice versa.

ARKEO0.8TLE MSHSHAREN - 25HA

AREL207T TEMAIELM - RZHA
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED) 15.

REWE (H)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (coNTINUED)
As at 31 December 2023 (CONTINUED)

FRAEATTBRGAHIBETAFETEZ
&3 (E)
R=E==f4=F=4—E )

Fair value Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Hierarchy techniques Fair value key inputs key inputs inputs to fair value
TAER TURZRAHE
AFERE RERT AVE TITEZREG\BE BRAAYEEE EATEZBR
HK$'000
THET
Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial
REGZRENE-T¥
Level 3 Income capitalisation 130,009 (i) Capitalisation rate ~ 5.5% -6.0% Aslight increase in the
E=5 approach (i) EAfLE 55%%6.0% capitalisation rate would result
WABALE in a significant decrease in fair

(i) Market rent
(i) ML

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did not

pledged investment properties to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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value, and vice versa.
BMEERENLS  gEHD
TESABRE - RZIA
RMB0.31-RMB0.97 A significant increase in the

per month market rent would result in a
per square meter significant increase in fair value,
FABFHK and vice versa.

AR031TE MEREHAEEN  SEHA
ARKO097 FEMABEN - R2ZITA °

BEZ-_MER-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—H
IEFE MEERE SRS =f -

AEEMAREBKLHERSFALFERDNESH
BAREBERENYFERER  GRAATFEER
SAERDERARIBIREYE -

R-B-MER-_F-_=F+-A=+—8
ARELFREMED FHER - AR EEH
RS —RETRE S IR -



16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% - BERRE

COST KA

At 1 January 2023 R=E-=%-f-H
Exchange differences ExzZ

Additions NE

Disposals e

Transfers to investment properties E&FRENE

At31 December 2023 RZBZ=5+-A=1-H
Exchange differences ExZE

Additions RE

Disposals irkS

Transfers to investment properties ERERENE
At 31 December 2024 RZZZRE+=A=T-H

DEPRECIATION AND RERAE
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-f-H

Exchange differences ExZZ

Charge for the year REEHR

Disposals e

Transfers to investment properties ERFRENE

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+-A=1-H

Exchange differences ExzZ

Charge for the year REER

Disposals e

Transfers to investment properties ERFRENE

At 31 December 2024 RZEZMETZA=1—H
CARRYING AMOUNTS RAE

At 31 December 2024 RZE-REF-A=T-H
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=%+-A=1-H

Equipment,
furniture and
Leasehold fixtures Plant and Motor

Buildings  improvements X% &fh machinery vehicles Total
BF HENERE REE  BERKES AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
56,203 20,312 215,094 302,631 6,730 600,970
(959) (363) (3,761) (4.878) (113) (10,074)

- - 5474 2258 - 7732
- - (11,802) (44,090) (571) (56,463)
(2.518) = = = - (2,518)
52,126 19949 205,005 255,921 6,046 539,647
(904) (345) (3,187) (4,158) (86) (8,680)

- - 3,705 488 - 4193

- - (31,372) (20,989) (1,468) (53,829)
(510) = = = = (510)
51,312 19,604 174,151 231,262 449 480,821
48,062 14,109 213440 237,764 5377 518,752
(869) (281) (3,751) (3.925) 97 (8923)
2670 2480 2221 12983 567 20,921
= = (7,065) (38,519) (493) (46,077)
(1,269) = = = = (1,269)
48,5% 16,308 204,845 208,303 5,354 483,404
(869) (310) (3,152) (3612) (80) (8,023)
2,59 2,200 795 12830 410 18833
= = (31,372) (11,877) (1322) (44,571)
(250) = = = = (250)
50,073 18,198 171,116 205,644 4362 449,393
1,239 1,406 3035 25,618 130 31,428
4132 3641 160 47618 692 56,243

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR



16

. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

16. ¥ - BERRE ()

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings BF
Leasehold improvements HEMHEERE

Equipment, furniture and fixtures %% - R NES

Y% - R LR T IR E R AR E RIS EE
WAELER THIFRITE

Shorter of the land lease or 5%

TR E K% 2 BEE

Shorter of the lease terms or 5 years

HEHROF 2 EEE
20% — 25%

Plant and machinery RE K ias 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles B 20%
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FREEE
Land use Office
rights Warehouse premises Total
tifE AR RE  BAEYE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT THT THL
At 1 January 2024 R-E-ME-A—H
Carrying amount REE 15,193 1,662 627 17,482
At 31 December 2024 RZB-RE+=A=+-H
Carrying amount REE 14,278 823 557 15,658
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ—E-E+=-A=+—8
EE
Depreciation charge NEER 585 765 364 1,714
For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z—E=-=%+-A=+—8
LEE
Depreciation charge NEER 1,441 1,388 1,361 4,190
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

17. EREEE (&)

Expense relating to short-term leases %2 HAFH E4HRIBI X
Total cash outflow for leases

EREEERE

Additions to right-of-use assets

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 year to 5 years, but may have extension
and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable. The addition of right-of-
use from lease contracts with corresponding lease liabilities
during the year is HK$376,000 (2023: HK$920,000).

In December 2023, Guangdong SIM Technology Limited
(“GD SIM"), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a termination agreement with the PRC Government in
respect of the right to use of a land in Guangdong. Pursuant
to the termination agreement, GD SIM is entitled to a
refund in the amount of RMB38,700,000. After netting
off the related expenses of amount RMB2,183,000 to
the PRC Government, the aforesaid refund of amount to
RMB36,517,000 (equivalent to HK$39,986,000) was fully
settled by the PRC Government in January 2024.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

ME 2R ER

2024 2023
—E-EF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
1,451 1,663
4,097 7,252

376 920

RBEFE AEEHHEZEARRE - B
BEEEZR - HEAGHNZEEFHRIFE
5% - HEAIEBRERBI R L - HEIZER
EAERER - B2 B ASEAT R AR BIGE -
REEE R KA T AT B SR 2 &R - A
SEEREHNZESR  WEEARGITANZ
HiE - AFEAMERERBEZHESORE
{# AE376,000/8 7T (ZZ == : 920,000/
JT) °

ZTEZ=F+=ZR  ARAMBRARERRE
AMEHRAERAR ([EREM]) 8 BB
BERE WA E R RIERE - R
BiIEH®  BEREMAEEREFEAR
#38,700,0007T ° K [ 7 B BT S 1+ A9 48
HMERARKE?2 183,000T% @ HEBMAD
REZZTZMF—AE2HERELARBARYE
36,517,000 (A8 739,986,000/ L) °

AN AEEBERETEAE (ET2BES
EREIEZR) R AERT - AEERZ
EEtEs (BRAREEL) 2 BEE -
RYFEZEY E R - B — BN
Ko ZEBBEYWEZEE LA D RS 5E
WO ENRE S BILEY o
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

17. 17. EHEEE (8
Leases committed EREEE
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group does not R-ZE-_WER—_FT-_=F+—_AF=+—H "
have new leases that have not yet commenced. RNEE I S RFAR 2L o
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Development Technical Customer
Licence fee costs know-how contracts Total
TARE FEKA Vg RPAH @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AL AT AT AT
COST B
At 1 January 2023 RZB-=%—H—H 116,960 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,380,687
Addition ANE 409 - - - 409
Exchange differences Ekzg (2,094) - - = (2,094)
At 31 December 2023 RZZ-=F+-A=1—H 115,275 1,164,874 71,339 27,514 1,379,002
Addition NE 814 - - - 814
Exchange differences ExZR (2,002) - - = (2,002)
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-NF+-A=+—H 114,087 1,164,874 71,339 27,514 1,377 814
AMORTISATION AND BETAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%-F—H 116,395 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,380,122
Charge for the year KEEMR 411 = - = 411
Exchange differences ExzE (2,084) - - - (2,084)
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=F+-fA=1-H 114,722 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,378,449
Charge for the year AEEK 1,066 - - - 1,066
Exchange differences ExzR (1,995) - - - (1,995)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-WF+-A=1—H 113,793 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,377,520
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2024 RZE-—ME+=A=+—H 294 - - - 294
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=1-A 553 = = = 553
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 18. BMLEE (&)
Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of AEEZHAEE  BARNMEEEEHHAE
the Group were acquired from third parties. BE=FE/E -
The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible assets BEEEFREHABR - BREENESE
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following BOA T HA 5 -
period:
Licence fee 1 -5 years B 1&=5%
Development costs 9 months — 2 years B AR ofEl A =24
Technical know-how 5 — 8 years B A 5ZE8F
Customer contracts 3 years EFEEH 3F
During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no BEZZT-_MER=ZZT_=F+=-A=+—H
impairment is recognised for intangible asset. IEFE - WERER EERIARBEESE -

19. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, 19. %%&%Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%{]’%Z%% N
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF- ME&E‘Q% - FHAREERER
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEERBEEE

IN HANDSETS AND IOT TERMINALS
BUSINESS

Due to the unsatisfactory financial performance of handsets
and IOT terminals business, the management concluded
that there was indication of impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on the recoverable amount of the
assets allocated to the handsets and IOT terminals business.

BT R B R AR R S« S R IR A
AR BEEERRFERENR  YHAEE
FREDBERREBNEEZ JRE SR
TTRERIH

217
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19

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
IN HANDSETS AND IOT TERMINALS
BUSINESS (coNTINUED)

19.

FERMBERRRE 2=
BEREE  FHEEERER
EERESE @

The recoverable amount was assessed based on the
discounted future pre-tax cash flows expected to be derived
from the assets. The key inputs and assumptions applied in
the value-in-use calculation relate to the estimation of cash
inflows and outflows, including budgeted sales, gross profit
margin, annual and terminal growth rates and discount rate
applied in the valuation conducted by the Valuer engaged
by the Company. The chief financial officer of the Group
works closely with the Valuer to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs. Such
estimation was based on the unit's past performance and
the management’s expectations on market development.
As at 31 December 2024, the calculation used cash flow
projections approved by the management covering the
following 5 years with annual growth rates estimated based
on historical records. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a 0% (2023: 1%) terminal
growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied was 15.8%
(2023: 16.4%).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, based on the
result of the assessment, the management determined that
there is no impairment on the property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets in handset and
|IOT terminals business. After the impairment assessment,
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets in handsets and
|OT terminals business of the Group were HK$24,865,000,
HK$3,559,000 and HK$73,000, (2023: HK$49,229,000,
HK$4,907,000 and HK$553,000) respectively.
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A U5 [] 6 58 TH AR R TE HA SR A B B 2 AR IR AR R
RIBERETE - st EEABEERERZ
BEHASERBREBSRARRH 2 G
AR BEAQFRRMZBREEMET G
BREAZEEHESE  BAX  FEF KKK
BRERURIIAR - AEESBREHEGE
MEZEE U RETABNGEERD R
R AR - ARG IREZEMN 2B
REREREBYHMSER 2 BHEL - RZZ
“E+-—A=+—HB AR ERATERE
Frit ERE R RSF 2B S RERA - WIRE
FREHTFEER - BBEAFHZESR
EFEH0% (ZT==F : 1%) (R R R
o AR R A158% (T ==4F :
16.4%) °

BE_Z-_ME+-_F=1+—HILFE ' R
AR BEEET FH R RKIRER
ZYE  BERSE  FTREEEREFEE
WEER(E o BB EE - AREFH R Y
MEOREB 2 ME - BENSE - FRAEEE
MER A ERNREES B 524,865,000/8 7T
3,559,000/ 7t % 73,0008 L (- ==
49,229,000/ 7t * 4,907,0005% 7T 5 553,000/%
JL) °



20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

20, LR EE S

The following are the deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during
the current and prior years.

UTRRAEERBEFE - AREMERZ
EREBE(BE) EERBRES -

Write-down of ~ Impairment

Revaluation of inventories  of property, Revaluation of

equity instrument and trade plant and investment
at FVTOCI receivables equipment properties Total

RAYESA  FEREW

Hth2EREZ E2BX 0% BER REMSE
RATEER R RiEHE Efy Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR THR FHR ThR THR
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%-5—-H (1,306) 13946 5,830 (115,075) (96,555)
Exchange differences ExzR 246 (78) (118) 1,79 1,845
Credit (charge) to profit or loss MERFTA (R - (13,868) - 4,000 (9,868)
Transfer out upon Land Resumption YR £ st & - - = 17,152 17,152
Credit to other comprehensive income  WEA 2 EMESRET A (2,220) - - (330) (2,550)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=+-H (3,280) = 5,762 (92,458) (89,976)
Exchange differences ExzZ2 125 = = 1422 1,547
Charge to profit or loss MEEIG: - - - 14,008 14,008
Credit to other comprehensive income  AAEft 2 ENEER: A (1,208) - - (119) (1,327)
At 31 December 2024 R=Z-WF+=A=+-H (4,363) = 5,762 (77,147) (75,748)
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20.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

20.

ESERE & 5 ()

Other than the deferred tax assets and liabilities mentioned
above, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$779,724,000
(2023: HK$795,468,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$779,724,000 (2023: HK$795,468,000) with expiry
dates as disclosed in the following table.

2024 —ZTmE
2025 ZE-HREF
2026 ZEDREF
2027 —EtF
2028 —E)N\F
2029 —ENF

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of HK$230,169,000
(2023: HK$244,893,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$916,588,000 (2023: HK$1,079,779,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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M PR EEER RN AEEB KD
RAMIEEE779,724,0008 T (ZE =4 :

795,468,000/%8 7) Al I EH AR A m A o AR
RAOHFIR AR - R ERERIEEFRIBE

E o RERRIEBEBRIELT779,724 ooo,%rc
(ZZE =4 : 795,468,000/ 1) 7 518 - &
EIHAR T RETHE -

2024 2023
—Z-MEF —EC=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT

- 140,476
105,600 105,600
122,800 122,800
273,072 273,072
153,520 153,520
124,732 -
779,724 795,468

RBmERR - A& @ﬁT?ﬂ*)ﬁiﬁﬁ—ir’IEEE
230,169,000/ 7 (=T = =4 : 244,893,000
BIL) - AR BRI HRERERARELE RS
FERBOE N AT AR Z S TR IEER - Rt
WARHERBEFELEHIREE

*E%;q:li%ﬁﬁ SBE - AR BB RARIN=

T N\F—A—BEMRIENE RN EA
%z SIEIFE o R A M HRER AR A s EHT B
Tﬁ%mﬂE’q%?ﬂ%%%ﬁmeaﬁss,ooo%ﬁ(:
— =4 : 1,079,779,000/% 7T {E iR FE R IE
ﬁé{% JR R A 72N 58 (B 1] 122 1 % S5 T s 2 RE A 3
BIFFRE - ARZEERF =50 RAERT A
AJREREE -



21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RIE QT 2R

2024 2023
—EgE ===t
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Costs of investments in unlisted RIELMEE QA2
associates W& 2 KA 29,900 29,900
Share of post-acquisition profit and DEUEBE =) &
other comprehensive income Hip 2wzt 19,898 16,716
49,798 46,616
The Group had interests in the following major associate: REBRTHEEBE AR PR ER
Form of Principal Proportion of
business Country of place of Class of registered capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
AEBf
{52 EHLRYS AMRIER TEERMY  ERGEH AEALH FisRERILA IZER
2024 2023 2024 2023
CBCRE CTCcE ZR3omE IR
% % % %

Shanghai Jizhi Automation Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered capital 49 I 49 4 Development of automated
Technology Co., Limited test equipment in the PRC
(“Shanghal Jizhl")

LEEResiEaRAD AT HE e a0 4 4 4 9 EEREEDIRN
([EB%8]) R

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the ﬁp%’&jufﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ_ﬁﬁ$$@$§}ﬁﬁﬁi

associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash BEAREBIRM 2 EREBR R 457 B

dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group. EEARH o

Summarised financial information of a material associate —EEEHE N T2 HEERESE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s TXHHAEBE BB LR F) 2% E R

material associate is set out below. The summarised Z o LTS ERTE REBIE R RS HRE

financial information below represents amounts shown in the e ERRAZBE NP ERRABERS

associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with %8 o

IFRS Accounting Standards.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in REREMIETRERF @ BE AR R AER T

the consolidated financial statements. ENER o
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

21. RS A

=2 s )

Summarised financial information of a material associate

(CONTINUED)

Shanghai Jizhi

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Revenue

Profit (loss) for the year

mEBEE
FERBEE
mEAE

WA

AEREN (B518)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of Shanghai Jizhi

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Shanghai Jizhi

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Shanghai Jizhi
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LEEMEEERE
REER LBRE 2
7k 2 dada gl
AEEREBHEZ

RmHARE{E

EEMENTAZHKRERHE ()
Wayisss
2024 2023
1 5 —TE-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
121,739 110,094
3,338 11,174
(23,448) (26,133)
111,501 59,048
8,244 (8,041)
LA _E B 75 & BHE E B A AR A B S 3Rk B FTRER
REFE AR 2 R RE B
2024 2023
—ZE-mE —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
101,629 95,135
49% 49%
49,798 46,616




22.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/ 22. MAFEFTAHMBEZEHKENR
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL FIE/TQQ\\SFE#AE%E@%
mEE
2024 2023
—E-mEF —ECo=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAxT
Equity instruments at FVTOCI comprise: 2R Bzt A H b2 EUESH
AR T B B4E

Unlisted equity securities outside RBEBAINE_E TR ES

Hong Kong, at fair value (note) (BRAFE) Bt) 71,726 68,130
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise: AT EFABFHNESHEERTE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, R&B_EMRAZS(EATFE)

at fair value 291 468

Note: The Group'’s unlisted equity securities investments in 2024 and
2023 represent the 2.20%, 14.97% and 9.39% equity interests,
respectively in three private entities established in PRC. The
directors have elected to designate these investments in equity

Het - AEBR T _ER T -=F 7 I FHRA
BHB BN =R B 2 LS TS B
B22.20% - 14.97%%9.39%3HE - EETRIE
HZER BT AR AT ETARLMEE RS>

instruments as at FVTOCI. BATAH -
23. INVENTORIES 23. FE

2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT BT
Raw materials [ 34,603 61,422
Work in progress TR 138 5,040
Finished goods BURK i 17,979 19,861
52,720 86,323

24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 24, FHEHEWE

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

AEEFEHEMROMUNTE - FAEREH
EMEHURAR R AIERFEBREETIE -
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25

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

BRBERmEE

As at 1 January 2023, the carrying amounts of the trade
receivables and notes receivables were HK$73,123,000 and
HK$4,680,000 respectively.

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to handsets and IOT terminal business and automotive
intelligent products business is 0 — 90 days. A longer period
is granted to a few customers with whom the Group has a
good business relationship and which are in sound financial
condition. There is no credit given to sales of properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for credit losses, as well as notes receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of
the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

Trade receivables FEWE ZRRK
0 - 30 days TE3I0K
31 - 60 days 31 260X
61 — 90 days 61E90K
91 - 180 days 91EF180K&
Over 180 days HBiE180K

B SEEERE

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRK
Notes receivables (Note) FEWE & (B5E)

0 - 30 days TE30KX

31 -60 days 31E60X

61 — 90 days 61E90X

91 - 180 days 91E 180K
Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks

received from the customers.
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R-TZ—_=F—F—8 EBRIEFERILE
W= ZEREmED R A73,123,0008 T &
4,680,000/ 7T, ©

HE BT LB R RES M EREEE M
EBEMcEm —RIEEHRTEIOR - D
BEAEEE RFEBARAMBRRRRZ
EFPeRERRZERY - XEMHEEMERLT
SEH -

AT RRIRE IR (RERWAZ BHRE) &
WE 58K (R EEBRRE) U RERER
BREZABEL ZREDNT

2024 2023
—E-MEF —TE-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FHBT
49,038 27,821
11,262 19,474
12,632 747
11,807 641
27,028 38,237
111,767 86,920
(28,429) (38,297)
83,338 48,623
7,547 13,135
14,056 12,559
4,723 469
1,159 7,654
27,485 33,817
110,823 82,440

B - RREEARERPUKEHIRITE 2 AR -



25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

25. HtURB S MEE (@)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on similar credit characteristics
and on management’s judgement including creditworthiness,
the past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$30,749,000 (2023: HK$42,586,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
no balance has been past due 90 days or more and
considered in default because there was no historical default
of payments by the respective customers for the year ended
31 December 2024 and 2023. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2024, trade receivables of HK$5,455,000
(2023: HK$1,891,000) are denominated in USD, which are
not denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in
note 39.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will
be settled within twelve months after the end of reporting
period. Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to
third parties.

EMEMHEPA  AEEGHEEETPN
FEEERIRETPNEERE - TFRES
FEHAMK - AREEAREK - RESHEEK
B 5 MR B 2 AT m AR A E S ARk D AT
(M EBRGHFIOREEE RBEURIFREA
EERHS B AREREZ HiE (BEEER
& BEERCELAELEER  SLEHE
EERRBELRE -

RZZEZWFE+_A=+—H ' "EEHEK
E%Eﬁ%ﬂ@%f?‘iﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ
30,749,000/ 7T (ZE = =4 : 42,586,000/%
TWERER #HE-_FT_MER-_FT_=
FH-A=1t—HLLFE - ®BHEHRT - A
REBEF I EE L NFUEQ B GaRE
#BO0R » FIt MEAR BB K - NEB W ELZ
SEBRAEAERR -

R-ZZZME+-A=+—H ' 5,455,000/
TL(ZZ =4 : 1,891,000 7T) K E K E 5
BRRAZETTAHE - WIENIBREEE AR
B¥EHE -

BE_Z_MFER-_FT_=F+-_A=1t—H
iEJEHSZ%f%EE R BAE R E R BB M
o

HAb MR A BN - 28 MR IREHR

BT—EARNEE REXB/XNTE=S
ZEB5EE -

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR

225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS HiisemEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits UTAEMEWRER ERekENREZS
and prepayments: o
2024 2023
—E-MmEF —EC=5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
VAT recoverable AU Bl E(E RS 36,228 42110
Deposits paid to suppliers for HBEGTESIHNT
purchasing inventories HER XS 23,150 19,527
Prepayments SCURE/E 1,480 3,014
Rental and utility deposits HERKEEZES 549 322
Land resumption receivable JFE U £ b [ U =% - 247,112
Other receivables H b EUBR TR 11,361 48,722
72,768 360,807

26.

The consideration receivables, which was fully compaired,
represent the sales consideration from the disposal of the
Group’s subsidiaries in which the amounts are repayable in
accordance with the terms of sales and purchase agreements.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

26.

RURREELEERNEENB AR ZHERE -
BEREURE - AR RIBARRER RZ 2K
FKIELT -

SIRFRITER EHBRITER
RBITEBRERS

Bank balances and cash are mainly denominated in RMB,
HK$ and USD. The Group receives variable interest at an
average rate of 1% (2023: 1%) per annum. Included in
the bank balances and cash, short-term bank deposits and
pledged bank deposits is an amount of HK$476,047,000
(2023: HK$396,713,000) denominated in RMB, which is
not freely convertible into other currencies.

At 31 December 2024, bank balances, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits of HK$441,210,000
(2023: HK$390,422,000) are denominated in USD, which
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities.

The Group's pledged bank deposits of HK$22,000,000 as at
31 December 2023 were pledged to secure the short-term
general banking facilities granted by banks. The pledged
bank deposits have been released during the year ended 31
December 2024.

At 31 December 2024, short-term deposits receive fixed
interest rates range from 1.3% to 5.3% (2023: 0.5% to
5.42%) per annum with original maturity over three months.
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RITEBNBESETEUARE B hETET
& - zlsﬁlhz/ﬁbﬂfﬁg FHERE AL
B(ZZ-_=F:1E) - RT&HLEE &
HR1TF R LA&E%E&#}H%E TERRNEE—FN
ANRBEEHE 2 Z3B476,047,000 T (T ==
F : 396,713,000/ 7T) © ZEHIETA 5 HE
BAEH M EE o

R_T-_ME+—_A=+—8  R1768% &
BASRT IR R N B ISR 1718 70441,210,0005%
T (ZE =4 : 390,422,000/ 7T) JHAZETT
FHE - MTFEASEBERNNEEBE -

7T'<’§lb’"_7_ F+-A=+—HZEBER

T1rEHR22 OOO 000 TLE FHM » ERIRTT
?i%é’]%ﬁ‘ﬂ RIRTTRE 2 - O HEIRIRTT
Tmaﬁf‘étﬁfjfllli-f— H=+—HIF
[EREm o

REITZ-WE+—A=+—H " REHPAR=
18 H LA £ 2 58 877 SR BUR S A R 1. 3[E £5.3

E(:v_ &F : 05EE5.42E) 5B 2 E LA



27. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES, OTHER

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS
FROM TENANTS AND DEFERRED
INCOME

27. ENESZRAKER - RN
gﬁ:ﬁiﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁtlﬁ CHEERESRE

Trade and notes payables, deposits from tenants and
other payables and accruals principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30 — 90 days.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes
payables is as follows:

0 - 30 days ZEE30K

31 - 60 days 31 260K

61 — 90 days 61E290K
Over 90 days HBHEI0K
Trade payables FEE ZBRR
Notes payables EANE S

0 - 30 days TE30K

As at 31 December 2024, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$9,016,000 (2023: HK$9,403,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

ENEZERRRE - BHERE REMENER
FMEFFIREEBRE S MG 2 REMNFR
PARRISERRA

ENEZRARRE
RNEZERRRBEIZBREAEEZE IR
Be® - BHRBZ REEHR0EI0X -

NTARBERRAEE 2 BN E SRR
BRENESRAZEEAHAENER 2%
B VR 2 BRER AT

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FBT
53,712 57,278
7,093 1,700
15,198 290
10,789 11,931
86,792 71,199
- 6,721
86,792 77,920

RZZT-_MFE+=-_A=+—H  ENFEZEZER
LEBEANBIEUEITEE 2 589,016,000/
TT(ZZF =4 : 9,403,000 7T) * AREFKIAE
WIELAR S E BB ML E A TE ©
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27. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS
FROM TENANTS AND DEFERRED
INCOME (coNTINUED)

27. ENESZRAKRER - EEM
R KR RUR - R RENIE

FEWA (8

Other payables and accruals, deposits from tenants and
deferred income

The following is the breakdown of other payables and
accruals, deposits from tenants, and deferred income:

Accruals FERTFRIR
VAT payables FERISER
Other tax payable Hth e R IE
Other payables E A fERTARFR
Deferred income EEWA
Current Vi
Non-current R
Deposits from tenants HEZRSE
Current Vi
Non-current R

228 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

HitENRARESRE  HEZERELE

ON
AR AEMEMIRR R ERTHIE  AREES R
FEEWAZ DT -
2024 2023
—ET-EF T _=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
10,371 12,338
39,791 47,575
10,298 7,804
4,471 7,367
64,931 75,084
2024 2023
—ECE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
1,097 1,116
26,924 36,702
28,021 37,818
2024 2023
—EC-E —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
2,699 3,620
6,278 6,078
8,977 9,698




27. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS
FROM TENANTS AND DEFERRED
INCOME (coNTINUED)

27. ENESZRAKER - RN
R KT ROR - R RERIE
FEWA (8

28.

Other payables and accruals, deposits from tenants and
deferred income (coNTINUED)

Note:

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$28,021,000 (2023:
HK$37,818,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting
to HK$26,924,000 (2023: HK$36,702,000) represented the
income that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within
12 months of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates
of the related assets and therefore has been presented to non-
current liabilities.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

HEMNRRRESTRIE  HEEESREL

WA (%)

Mt RZZ-_WE+=-A=+—0 ' AEEAKMT
15 B WA ZIEFE W A 28,021,000/ 5 (ZE==
4 : 37,818,000/47T) ° BUFIEER WA T RS
FgEE TR AR 2T - URIKEDSE
BEREE ZEEBRASEEZRABR
HEES 2 ERRAXKNIEMEE 2 (R BE
BZEBm c BINERRAZEERAFBIE—2
26,924,000/ 7T (Z T = =4 : 36,702,000/&7T)
ZHIE  REBREREEZNER HHARNE
TERHEBHE 12 A RRIERTEE - A
2IRFETBDEE -

28. EHEE

Sale of handsets and IOT terminals

HETFH LA

As at 1 January 2023, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$105,893,000.

Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within the
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or

services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and
2024, the entire balances are recognised as revenue to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2024
and expected to be recognised during the year ending 31
December 2025, respectively.

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-o—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAxT

97,731 80,065
RZEZ=F—A—H 6aHEEAR

105,893,000/ 7T °

BEHMERNAKEEREERBNEENANEA
BEINREASERATFEEERIRBARTE
BEDBRRANHERE -

HR B =FRF T _WNF+_A=+—H
WEHNAENS @ 2EESKEDINBE—F
TOF+T A=+ RIEFENERTERR
WARFERAREZE - AF+-A=+—H
IEFEER -

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR
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28.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

28. ENEE @

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and 10T terminals

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30% — 50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

HERRBENBENERELETEN—RNK
RN

SHEFRR BRI
HARERNIHEEmATKIUZE @ EKRE
HMFBERBELANEE  EERBEOMR
HRZBANBBRERARLE - AEEBER
HE B mATER30% E50%HRE

The following table shows how much of the revenue TRETFARERBA LR G OB ERBEN
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward &5 -
contract liabilities.
HK$'000
FHxT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 EENF+ A=+ —HLEFE
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract T AFEHA KB ELALH D RERUA
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 80,065
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract T AFHIA KB ELEHHE FERUA
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 105,893
ey
29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. ITEE
2024 2023
bt 1 3 —Eo=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Unsecured short-term bank IR AR TR
borrowings (note i) (W) 29,162 33,000

Note:

(i) The short-term bank borrowings are unsecured, interest bearing
at China Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) plus base point of 135% (2023:
China LPR minus base point of 75%), respectively and repayable
within one year from the date of withdrawal. The bank borrowings
are denominated in RMB for both years.
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Hiat -

(i) RHRTESAERR RTEERHSHRE
FIZR([LPR]) IN135% £ 2 (=T ==4 : LPR
TT75%EE) FTE - ZARNIRIE A —FRE

REGF EERITIEE I UAREHE -



30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. ﬂﬁ

2024 2023
i et 13 ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
Lease liabilities payable: ERHEEEE:
Within one year —FR 2,344 2,509
Within a period of more than one year —FRERMF AR
but not more than two years 80 2,194
2,424 4,703
Less: Amount due for settlement with W RBA BRI 2 A RIEEE
12 months shown under current 2RI
liabilities (2,344) (2,509)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  JERENE ERTRN12E A& 2 EHEE
shown under non-current liabilities ZIE 80 2,194
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied ERARAERENMEFIREERNERE
to lease liabilities range from 2.90% to 3.70% (2023: from 290EE3.70B (ZF==% : 2.90E=X3.70
2.90% to 3.70%). E) -
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other DTSSR SEREBNINERR NN '
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities BEHEMBERIT
are set out below:
HK$’000
FHET
As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-_mMFE+=-HA=+—H 268
As at 31 December 2023 R=_ZE—_=%F+-FA=+—H 67
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

31.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2023, 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024

Issued:
At 1 January 2023
Shares repurchased and cancelled

At 31 December 2023 and 2024

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

Number Share
of shares capital
ighr = ¢E! &R
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
HRREEO0. 1B T2 Tk
VETE
RZE=—=F—H—H "
—E-=F+-A=+—HK
—EoFE+—-A=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
BT :
R-ZE—_=F—HA—H 2,198,525 219,852
TERE B K sE SRRk (55,174) (5,5617)
RZEZ=FR_T-F
+=—A=+—H 2,143,351 214,335




31. SHARE CAPITAL (coNTINUED) 31

. R ()

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock
Exchange as follows:

Number of

ordinary shares

Month of repurchase repurchased

BE A5 BEEERHE

'000

FR

August 2023 280
—E=F)\A

September 2023 37,128
—E==FNA

October 2023 17,766
ZT=F1+A

55,174

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased 55,174,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$18,261,000, all of which were cancelled
during the year ended 31 December 2023. None of the
Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2023. Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities (including sale of treasury shares) during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

I == == B =—[EIeEEEE 0 28R
RIRBHRFTIZA TN ARBRE 8 & 2 L@k

Aggregate
consideration
paid (before

Purchase price per share expenses)
ERENE

BRBEEE (RIBREASR)
Highest Lowest HK$’000
B5 BIE FHET
0.255 0.250 72
0.340 0.265 11,784
0.360 0.340 6,405
18,261

BE_ZT-_=F+_A=1+—BUIFE  &Q
AILAAER(E 18,261,000/ 7T [8155,174,0000%
LR FTEZSERMEERBE-S=_=F
T A=+ HALEFEFHE -BHE_T_=F
+=ZA=+—HLLFE ' XARKBRAHE
BE  HEXRBEOARTE A LHES - 2
ZECNFF+ZA=+—HIEFE  ARFAK
HMBARBERE - HEEB AR AER
EIERF(BEREEEFERR)
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. RESERVES

32. %%

Properties revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2023

Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

Transfer out upon Land Resumption

At 31 December 2023
Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

At 31 December 2024

Assets revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2023
Fair value change on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2023
Fair value change on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2024

Translation reserve

At 1 January 2023
Exchange differences arising on

translation to presentation currency

At 31 December 2023

Reclassification of cumulative
translation reserve upon
deregistration of foreign operations

Transfer upon deregistration of
subsidiaries

Exchange differences arising on

translation to presentation currency

At 31 December 2024
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MEEMHRHE
R-_F_=%—F—H
EfRMEREREEE WS
Yo [ 4 b R
R-F_=F+=-A=+—H
EEMEREREEEZ W

R_ZE-_NF+=-—F=+—H

BEEMRRE

RZZE==%—H—H
RERIEAFEF AL EERE
WAL A AT EES

R-F_=F+_A=+—H
KRENRAFES A2 E RS
R ATAZ R FEES

RZZE-NF+=A=+—H

BREEE

R-_F_=%—F—H
BREERERELANEREZR

RZZE==F+=A=+—H
FTIEINETS B8 BT TE K
HEFSE

ST P B N ) A

BEERERELMERER

R_ZE-_NF+=-—F=+—H

HK$'000
TR

333,256

979
(59,330)

274,905
357

275,262

HK$'000
THETT

3,867

7,963
11,830

3,625

15,455

HK$'000
TAT

83,525

(21,803)
61,722

30,764

(551)

(34,172)
57,763



33.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

33. KEHERH

34.

The Group as lessor
Minimum lease properties receivables on leases are as
follows:

Within one year —F A
In the second year EF
In the third year B
In the forth year Euikea
In the fifth year FRF
After five years hFiE
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

FEBERHBEA
FRHEERENREEERNFEBENT

2024 2023
—ECME —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
35,085 59,068
21,790 40,447
16,905 22,597
11,663 14,359
5,630 11,407
296 473
91,369 148,351

34. RKERITE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to
join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

AEEREAFIMEAESTEGAAEMES
BREERY —EAEESE - TERBBHAR
SEREHAMARESE - HFIKESE
REFEHE—BDLLEL - WIREARES TS
Z AR ET I MRS BRIk - 81
B EERASENEMEESFER -
H—BUERESHHE - ERARESSIHE
N AEBEXHAEZEEBNMES
B -RE-_NFR—ZT-_=Ft+=-_A=+—
B - WL 2 A FR AT B VEHR AN & B R AR 2K
FE AR
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34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

34.

RKERETE (8

35.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$24,120,000 (2023:
HK$27,357,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

35.

AEERPEZNEARERPEZERR
A 28 —ITAFZKE 2 A E BT E & AR IR
BAETE - MBARARKRTERANIEERD
e e 2R AR ARAR A5t I 5K - AR EBLR AR
a8l 2 E—RERIERIEEHR -

FA - AKE RS 3R EER24,120,000/8 7T
(ZE==% : 27,357,00087T) * MRS
BRIFZRA - KRAEEREBRAIR
HEE LR AFT IR 2 HRER -

BREsE

The Company had adopted a share options scheme (the
“New Share Options”) on 1 June 2016. The major terms and
conditions of the scheme is set out below:
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (coNTINUED)

35. BB #ERTE ()

New Share Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or executive
Director and such other eligible participants as set out
in the scheme rules.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Share Options and any other scheme of the
Group must not exceed 255,789,630 shares, being
10% of shares in issue on the day which the New
Share Options was approved by the shareholders,
unless approval of the shareholders has been
obtained, and which must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the ordinary shares in issue from time to
time. As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares, which
represents 11.93% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the grantee an
acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less than
the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant date;
o the average closing price of the share for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the grant;

and

o the nominal value of the share.

H s AR

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B RS2 EERHEAE

S2EEQREMERINITES UK
HERAIME Kb A BR2HRE -

1R 15 3 B AR A B R AN £ [ A ) E A
AEBTREZEBRERTEM
AFRETZEaRNBEBETESER
255,789,6300% A% 15 + BENFTEEAR At B
AL EE BEBITRH Z210% © BrRIE
EMGRELE - MEZBRT @ £
N AGHBRBTEERTERKRZ30% °
RANRE B ER - AR FTEE A i T 81 m) 4
W12 E R 8 5255,789,630 B ik
7 BERARE BHRARRTEBITH
19211.93% °

Rz EM(HEZER) BERKER
HiE St B A X B AR - AR ARIE
XERRASNRELET

ot

BIREZITEEBLEATPRUATZERS
%

o RELBAHERMOZWTHE

e ERRBAHANAEAXKSARMNZ
FHWHE - Rk

s  EfpzmEME-
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (coNTINUED)

35. fEiRAERT 8 (|

New Share Options (coNTINUED)

(vi)  The life of the New Share Options was effective until 1
June 2026, after which time no further option will be
granted but provisions of the New Share Options shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

(vii)  Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting
in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, the
Board shall not grant options to any grantee if the
acceptance of those options would result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued to that
grantee on exercise of his options during any 12
month period exceeding 1% of the total shares then in
issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of
shares already issued or to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding 1% of the
total number of shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by the shareholders
in general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

(viii) No share options were granted or cancelled under
the New Share Options during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share-based
payment. For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
no share option expense has been recognised.
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36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

36. Rt R AT

On 30 September 2020 (“Date of Adoption”), the Company
adopted the share award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)
of issued shares of the Company for the purposes of
recognising the contributions by certain employees,
Directors, and consultants of the Company (“Eligible
Persons”) and giving incentives thereto in order to retain
them for the continuing operation and development of
the Group and attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The total number of the shares to be awarded pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the Date of
Adoption (i.e. 236,509,030 shares). In any 12-month period,
the maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a
selected person shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the Shares as at the Date of Adoption.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing on the Date of Adoption,
after which period no further awards will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Award Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
vesting of any awards granted prior to the expiration of the
Share Award Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 41,630,000
shares of the Company were awarded under this share
award scheme, representing 1.94% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the vest date of the award. Approximately
HK$12,549,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which was calculated by using the
closing price of the shares on the grant date of the award.
As at 31 December 2023, no shares were held under such
scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2020.
The Share Award Scheme was subsequently terminated by
the Company on 13 March 2024.
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37

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37.

BEALRS

38.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration has been disclosed in note 10.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

38.

EEEE AR BB
REEEMEHEBER A BMS 0H 1057
-

REEREE 2R EHK

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2023 WZE==%—-A—-A
Financing cash flows REREE
Non-cash changes: FReEE

Foreign exchange INE
New lease entered MR E
Early termination of lease contracts RELUIHESRN
Interest expenses FEZH
At 31 December 2023 R=Z==%+=-A=1—H
Financing cash flows BERENE
Non-cash changes: FREEE :

Foreign exchange INE
New lease entered MR E
Dividend declared EERKRE
Interest expenses MEZH

At 31 December 2024 R=Z-m&+=-A=+—H
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ATERBHIAKERASREY (BERE
FIFREBE) ZAE RESREDHZAE
TZEERSRERE  IHENAKENEGRE
RERBERTOERKESREDNASR -

Bank Lease

Dividend borrowings liabilities Total
RE RITREE HERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT
- 240,240 13,118 253,358
- (210,269) (5,589) (215,858)
- (1,707) (372) (2,079)

- - 920 920

- - (3,611) (3,611)

= 4,736 237 4973

- 33,000 4,703 37,703
(85,734) (4,021) (2,646) (92,401)
- (527) (104) (631)

- - 376 376
85,734 - - 85,734
- 710 95 805

- 29,162 2,424 31,586




39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

39. €@ T A

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits (accumulated losses). The management
reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
In view of this, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.

EXEBRER

AEEEREAZ BN REREBLEBEZZ
T BERAKEETSEREE VBB
AEBEZEAGBERERFR(RERRT
BE) RARRIEA ARIG#ED (BREEETR
A FBELREEN (RFAER)) - EEEE
BERNERREEBEANARESHE RN
BZREE o plit - AEEREB RS - &
TTHBRARETHEXERREER FEER
BARGERE - ARE 2 BERBNANFEEANGR

Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2024 2023
—EmEF T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets CREEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REER AT RN SR E E 1,063,867 1,168,494
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATESFABRNESREE 291 468
Equity instruments at FVTOCI EATEFAEMEZABGEAIRATA 71,726 68,130
Financial liabilities EaA=NE
Amortised cost B HA A 148,750 150,021
B EREENEZEBUER

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables and
payables, accruals, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEEZ T2 TABRRERATE ARM
EHNGEZBRATE  HAFEFABRZE
BEE  RURRENEZERIREE  HE
W AR - BETER - MHRITESR R
THRHEMREURBRITEER - Z52RMTAZ
HEREMMETRE - B2 R T AEME
ZRBAREERBKZFRR CBRHEN T
X EEEEEMERZFTAR - ARERE
R AIEREREVE E it ©
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. €@ T A (8|

Financial risk management objectives and policies 3% L B B B 9 B AR ER R (48)

(CONTINUED)

Currency risk B

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales AEBEZRHBRARIAINEFETEE - SA%E
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency BIEEINERPR - AEEHERLNI8% (ZF
risk. Approximately 18% (2023: 35%) of the Group’s sales Z=F  35%) AEBEEBETEENNGEE
are denominated in currencies other than the functional AN E B ETE - MK20% (ZE =4 :
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 16%) BIpK A2 A BB BN s EMEATE -

20% (2023: 16%) of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s functional currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets RWERR AEEUSEBEEEBEY
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies DN EBTENEECREERBEBERARK
other than the functional currency of the respective group BHRA - R174E5% « BIRFIRTER - 25
entities are trade receivables, bank balances, pledged bank IRITEREENE SRR - EEESES AR
deposits, short-term bank deposits and trade payables MizE25 « 26 R 27 IR ©
and the amounts are disclosed in notes 25, 26 and 27
respectively.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency R|MERR - AEEDINEFTENELBEER
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the ERaENRAENT :
end of reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities

BE =l

2024 2023 2024 2023

—EomFE —To=F ZEZWFE =4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FET FHT

usSD v 446,665 392,313 9,016 10,344
The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and EREESERINERK  YTHREZEREEY
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose SREARINE R ©

should the need arise.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €W T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (conTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2023: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2023: 10%) represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2023:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates increase in post-tax profit/decrease in post-
tax loss where RMB weakening 10% against USD for the
both years. For a 10% strength of RMB against USD, the
impact on the post-tax (profit) loss for the year is as follow.

Decrease in post-tax loss BRIRE BB
Increase in post-tax profit BRAR 1805 F1I1E N

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the Group at the
end of the reporting period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
notes receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
associates, consideration receivables, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

M EREEN B RERE (8

BHmp (4)
TRAFAEBHRARKEETHE RE
10%(ZZF =4 : 10%) BUXKE ° 10% (=
T =5 10%) KR E IR B P RT il I E [E %
AREHBRM R IREE) - GUREDITEBIEIASN
BAHENAREEERIRR - WAEXRHIEI0%

T =F 1 10%) BB HERREHRNE
HERELRAE - ATHEBRRAREN X
TTIEEMESE B E10% MR B R FIE N, B
BREIERD - ARBAETHEIOREFA
MIBRBEIR O ) BB BT ©

2024 2023
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
35,268 -

- 31,893

K - TBRRAREAKERBRENRAXTAHEZ R E
BIRITAER - BHEMRITER - BERTER
FEUT R e R IRA BRI TIE B Z AR

=B /@b KR E L
AEENEERREZRARKESEFIRE
1 BRI - U S AR FUR - B
RE - BHRTER  SERBRTEFARR
T8RS ©

R-Z-_MER-_FE-_=%F+_HF=+—H "
REBREFHRERITEEMMTEEER
CRMEEMBEAZZEAEERR - AZEE
EREGRE IR RA TR RAE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

39. &R T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed every year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard,
the Directors of the Group consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significant reduced. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually or based on provision matrix.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2024, five
(2023: five) customers amounting to HK$63,649,000 (2023:
HK$35,999,000) comprised approximately 76% (2023:
74%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers are
within the same handset and I0T terminals business in the
PRC. The management closely monitors the subsequent
settlement of the customers. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Notes receivables

For notes receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of notes
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there are no
significant credit risk of these amounts as they are issued by
financial institutions with high credit ratings and the Group
provided impairment based on lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). For the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group assessed the ECL for notes receivables are
insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-_ME+-_A=+—HILFE

39. R T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
Consideration receivables

For consideration receivables, the management of the
Group makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of these amounts based on the historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management assessed
the loss allowance based on lifetime ECL (credit-impaired),
and reversal of loss allowance HK$1,251,000 (2023: loss
allowance HK$31,908,000) is recognised during the year.

Amounts due from associates

For amounts due from associates, the management of
the Group makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of these amounts based on the historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management assessed the
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL (credit-impaired), loss
allowance HK$4,399,000 is recognised for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risk on bank balances, short-term bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits are limited because the
counterparties are majority banks/financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by external credit-rating
agencies.

The Group uses 12m ECL to perform the assessment under
ECL on bank balances, short-term bank deposits and
pledged bank deposits individually based on the average loss
rate by reference to credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed the ECL for
bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged
bank deposits were immaterial. Thus no loss allowance is
recognised during the year.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The Group provided impairment based on
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) for certain debtors’ balance.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group assessed
the ECL for other receivables and net loss allowance of
HK$754,000 (2023: loss allowance of HK$806,000) is
recognised.
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39

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €T A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating

AR EERR

Low risk

(R

Watch list

BRAE

Doubtful

[}

Loss

Write-off

fit 35

Description
P

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts
RS HHENRREE - AR EERETE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
settle after due date

ERARERPERER  EBENEHRR
FA#

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed
internally or external resources or overdue by 180 days
or above
FERRBEBREADIONIERREROENT S
TR RBEEN - SAMIB0AZA L

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired
or overdue by 360 days or more

BREBRPEELREERESBH0RIIAL

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
BRBFRBEBABAREVREE - MAKETE
B IR B AT 8E
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AEENABEERRERFEHEREATE

Trade receivables

P E 5 R

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

tnRRSEERR

—~BEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

4t BHRREEBE

-~ Y REERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

FaEREREEER
—WEEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
FaBREREEEE
—EEHE

Amount is written off

TBRCEME

M EREEN B RERE ()

Other financial assets

HitSREE

12m ECL

12HABSEERR

12m ECL

12EAEHEERR

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

FaBEREREEEE
—VEEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
FnBREREEEE
—=EHE

Amount is written off

EBRCEME



39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. €@ T A (8|

Financial risk management objectives and policies B R B B T 9 B A ER R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) B RE R A ES (F)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRFAVASEAETEHBEEBET NS
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL BEENEERR :
assessment:
2024 2023
ZBCME 2
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
Wi HBEETR ARGEETS  12EARELERESEEESE RELE RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhr Ti5r
Bank balances and cash 26 A (Aa3-A3) NA  12mECL 36,365 22,070
FIEBRRS 2% A (Aa3-A3) TER  LEREHEEEE
B (Baa2-Bal) NA  12mECL 323,948 52,149
B (Baa2-Bal) TER  12EREHEEESE
360,313 74,219
Short-term bank deposits 26 A (Aa3-A2) NA  12mECL 204,360 222,794
BHBTER % A (Ra3-A2) TER  LEREHEEEE
B (Baa2) NA  12mECL 376,461 470,885
B (Baa?) TER  12EREHEERE
580,821 693,679
Pledged bank deposits 26 A(A1-A3) NA  12mECL - -
BERRITRN 2% A (AL-A3) TER  EREHEEEE
B (Baa2) NA  12mECL - 22,000
B (Baa?) TER  12EREHEEEE
- 22,000
Trade receivables 25 N/A (Note b)  Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 10,573 13,799
- goods and services TR (Wity)  EnBRHESEEEE(BEER)
EWE SR 25 Low risk L|fet|me ECL (not credit-impaired) 70,446 31,982
—EmkiR% BRR  EoRHRHEESEUEEEHE)
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 4,153 5,019
BR4E 4oRiRSGEFEERERE)
Doubtful  Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 39 -
IR EnRfRREEERUARERE)
Loss  Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 26,556 36,120
BE  AOBHESEERE(EERE
111,767 86,920
Notes receivables 25 A (Aa2-A3) N/A~ Lifetime ECL (ot credit-impaired) 22,747 33,427
e 2% A (Ra2-A3) TER  EoBEREEEREUREERE)
B (Baa2-Bal) N/A Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 4,738 390
B (Baa2-Bal) TER  EoRERRGEFEUERERB)
27,485 33817
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuen)  39. £ T E (@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies 3% L B B B 9 B AR ER R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED) 15 B JEfz R (8 7P 1 ()
2024 2023
“BIMmE ZT=F
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
W HBEETR AIBEETR 12fEARELEHESNEERE REAE RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Other receivables 25 N/A (Notea)  Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 12,465 8482
H AR 25 TiEf Wida)  EoRHBEHEEEEUEEERNE)
N/A Loss  Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 5,823 5,733
TER BR  EoRRRREEEE(EEHE)
18,288 14,215
Amounts due from associates 26 N/A (Notea)  Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 4,323 439
FEME & AR 26 TEA Wida)  EoRERHEESE(EERB)
Consideration receivables 25 N/A (Notea)  Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 30,781 31,908
R E 25 TEA Wida)  EoRERHEESE(EEAB)
Notes: et
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group a. RABEERREEREMS @ AEEERBHER
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has HEEERR VL HERE R TRZEEM -

increased significantly since initial recognition.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

39 $RMTAM@

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (conTinUED)

a. (CONTINUED)

2024

Other receivables FEMCEL fth AR K
Consideration receivables FEWRAE
Amounts due from associates FELESE & R B RRIE
2023
Other receivables FECEL fth BR K
Consideration receivables FEWRIE
Amounts due from associates LB & R BRI
b. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified

approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit-

impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on

these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by similar credit

characteristics.

B L B 2 Y B AR B UK ()
=B R BRI ES ()
Hist - (4B)
a. (€
b )11 3
Past due Not past due Total
pt:t E3bt] EEy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
5,823 12,465 18,288
30,781 - 30,781
4,323 - 4,323
—ET-=F
Past due Not past due Total
bkl A HA #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
5,728 8,482 14,215
31,908 - 31,908
4,399 - 4,399

b. REWESEAME @ AEEERAERI B
SEAFESRE AT B BREMEEER
MEREE - RABEARERSRAEERE
MEBAIN  REERBZEUNEES#O A
MEBBEREEZSRENERREESE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. ﬁﬂ:(ﬁ)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (conTinvEeD)

b. (CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses

debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers because

these customers consist of a large number of small customers

with common risk characteristics that are representative of the

customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the

contractual terms. The following table provides information about

the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed

based on provision matrix as at 31 December 2024 within lifetime

ECL (not credit impaired). For remaining debtors with gross
carrying amounts of HK$101,194,000 (2023: HK$73,121,000) as

at 31 December 2024 were assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

Current (not past due)
1 - 60 days past due
61 — 180 days past due
181 days or above

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

BIER CRiE )
BEIIZE60R
BEI61Z 180K
181RZIA L

M EREEN B RERE ()

=B BRI B E 1 ()

Hiz - (&)

ERAEEEERREEN—H5 AKEFA
BEHANRRTIEETFORE  THRZER
PRENZEFRARREHN ISR  REXE
PRESAMERZ MBS BFIENE S - TX
RUEGHERKE SRR EERBNER - ZEE
KB SGEFBRE—T_MF+—_A=1+—H4®
FEETE B E B AR (S ERE) AR R EER
ETTE c ERR T -ME+=—_A=1+—HEK
H#BEDR/101,194,0008 L (ZE==F :
73,121,000 7T) &9 H 8 & 75 A T5 3 17 8 Bl 5F
flg o

IREAE
2024
g 11 3
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
=) 2ok BEWE SRR
HK$’000
FExT
0.00% 7,274
1.59% 2,370
1.62% 322
67.67% 607
10,573




39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (

CONTINUED)

39. ﬁﬁﬂlﬂ(ﬁ)

Financial risk management objectives and policies B R B B T 9 B A ER R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED) =5 R R R EFE (E)
Notes: (conTinuED) Kiat - (4B)
b. (CONTINUED) b. (#®)
Gross carrying amount (CONTINUED) BRTE A E ()
2023
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FHERE FENE 5 8RR
HK$'000
FHET
Current (not past due) BNER (RigER) 0.00% 9,543
1 - 60 days past due BHI1E60K 1.40% 1,603
61 — 180 days past due #HI61 =180k 1.67% 664
181 days or above 181 KsA £ 100.00% 1,989
13,799

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group reversed
impairment allowance of HK$1,200,000 (2023: HK$6,238,000)
for trade receivables, based on the provision matrix and an
impairment allowance of HK$803,000 (2023: HK$4,393,000)
were made on trade receivables with significance balances and
credit impaired trade receivables respectively.

At BEERBEEFABAFHANE BB XM
st WRBELE TV ERARKE ) Al 15 fATE 1
ERMEHBE - EEEQCPRMOM - UBRREHE
EEBARBEREMRISESR

HE_Z-_WE+-_A=+—HILFE  REBES
FeR i3t P LU 5 BR SR B 2 IR (B 451,200, 00078 7T (=2
=% :6,238,000/7T) * Wit EHEBRLEHEEK
BOEARREERERKE SERD BIEHRERE
803,000/ 7T (ZZ = =4F : 4,393,000/ 7T) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €T A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

As at 1 January 2023 RZE==F—Hf—H

— Impairment losses recognised —ERRAESE

— Impairment losses reversed —~BRERESE

Exchange adjustments B 5 A

As at 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+=A=+—H
— Impairment losses recognised -BERRAESE

— Impairment losses reversed -BRERESE

— Write Off —HH

Exchange adjustments B A%

As at 31 December 2024 RZEZM§+=A=+—H
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade receivables that
have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

M EREEN B RERE ()

=B BRI B E 1 ()
TRENERBHOER B E ZIRRIE LT

RS ESER SR 2 -

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
ERBHES EnBRES
FEFR REER
(EEEERE) (FEHRE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TER
8,337 30,526 38,863
- 4,393 4,393
(6,238) = (6,238)
78 1,201 1,279
2,177 36,120 38,297
232 454 686
(416) (667) (1,083)
- (9,053) (9,053)
(120) (298) (418)
1,873 26,556 28,429

EEENBTERARBREVRRAER T EE
BRI EITRES - RIS B 2 i I E 5 AR
ABRPEBE) - B RMENRKE 5 KRB
AR FINEHIAITES ©



39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €W T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for other receivables (note 25).

As at 1 January 2023
— Impairment losses recognised (reversed)
- Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2023

— Impairment losses recognised
- Exchange adjustments

— Write Off
As at 31 December 2024

R-Z-=%—F—H
- BRERREESE #E)
—[EH %
R-ZE-=F+—R
=f+-H

- BRERRNEESE
—[E X %

— s

RZE-_NF+=A
=4—=E

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for amounts due from associates.

As at 1 January 2023

- Transfer to credit-impaired
— Impairment losses reversed
- Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2023

- Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2024

R-ZE-=%—F—H
~BREERE
-BEZREBE
—[E X%
R-ZE-=F+=A
==
—[EH R
R-ZE-WF+=A
=f+-H

M EREEN B RERE (8

EE B R B E T ()

TRETIE 3 E AL FE R IRE L R ) B IR

12 H10k (FfRE25) -

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL

credit impaired)  (credit impaired) Total
ERmERES EmEREN
FEEE FEEE

(UREERE) (EERE) @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT THT TAT

2,441 4,493 6,934

(2,038) 1,232 (806)

2 8 10

405 5,038 6,138

160 594 754

(10) (101) (111)

- (403) (403)

68 5,823 6,378

TR pLEUEE AR RBENEBRREEZ

AR -

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL

credit impaired)  (credit impaired) Total
EmERES EmEHES
FEEE FEEE

(UEEERE) (RERE) @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT THEx TAT

15,903 - 15,903

(15,903) 15,903 =

= (11,650) (11,650

- 146 146

- 4,399 4,399

- (76) (76)

- 4,323 4,323
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €T A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for consideration receivables.

M EREEN B RERE ()

=B BRI B E 1 ()
AT RETIE MR EEH RN EREE
ZHBR

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)

mEREREEER

(EERE)

HK$'000

FAT

As at 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H 1,071
— Impairment recognised —BEERBE 31,908
— Exchange adjustments —[EH A (401)
As at 31 December 2023 RZT—=F+=A=+—H 32,578
— Impairment losses reversed — BB ERERE (1,251)
— Exchange adjustments —[EH A% (546)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZEZWFE+=—A=+—H 30,781

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of
bank borrowings as discussed above and the short-term
liabilities which are required to be repaid within three
months from the end of the reporting period. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024
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RekBEFEBEERERER BT RHK
e o L/{FEH'$E@%@PFFFE jIB‘T—{KIEu/mE
KBz E  ERESERRTEEZER
AREIRTT & B

ZRIAEBET AERORKRRSIR (B
XA AR IR TR B R A R B R RS AR
RE=EANEENERER) 218 EFR
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39.

ﬁEﬂIE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (conTinvED)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

M EREEN B RERE (8

mBELmE ()
TERHAVAEECRABNBRTANEME -
ZRDRBEASEANRANNZEASZE
BEENAMRRESRERE - A8ME - Mt
FREFEEGRORITER - TwiRITRE
TTEREENMEE AN - It AR FEE
RENER - T EeRafEni B R
MRHIEETRE B E °

Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average o less than 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flows 2024
113
TR
BRERY AERRERE =t-H
METHE PRIAR 123EF  3fAAZIE 125% 2] 2R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién Tin Tin TEn Tén Tén

2024 S 1:3
Trade and notes payables R EBHRFRER - 86,792 - - - 86,792 86,792
Other payablesand accruals e R EHER - 23,819 - - - 23,819 23,819
Bank borrawings ichi) 4.80% 22,251 1,267 6,006 - 29,524 29,162
Deposits from fenans i3 - 225 675 1,799 6,278 8,977 8,077
Lease liabilties sk 3.09% 201 604 1,611 84 2,500 2,424
133,288 2,546 9,416 6,362 151,612 151,174
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. R T A (@
Financial risk management objectives and policies 3% L B B B 9 B AR ER R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (conTiNUED) TEE 2/ ()
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month ~ 1-3months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2023
i St
T=A
feven ATRERE =+-A
IETHIE SR1ER 12388 3fERElE 1258 ik b}
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEn TEn TEL ThT TEn Thn
2023 ZBIzE
Trade and notes payables B EHEFREE - 77,920 = - - 77920 77920
Other payables and accruals ~ Efe BB REH &R - 29,403 - - - 29,403 29,403
Bank borrowings RRE 2.70% 2,756 552 25,004 - 3,28 33,000
Deposits from tenants xR - 302 905 2413 6,078 9,698 9,698
Lease liabiliies HEak 3.16% 216 047 1726 229 4,888 4,703
110597 7017 29,143 8377 155,194 154,724

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
fixed rate consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits
and short-term bank deposits, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate consideration
receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change
on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes
in market interest rates should the need arise. A 100
basis points (2023: 100 basis points) change represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

FIEmpE
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RE  BERRTHERRERRTEREE
AEELE BRKA(E « |RITHEBRRITEE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €W T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (conTiNUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a
result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
and thus variable-rate bank balances are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

If interest rate had been 100 basis points (2023: 100
basis points) higher/lower for variable-rate consideration
receivables and bank borrowings, and all other variables
were held constant, the impact to the Group’s post-tax loss
(profit) for the year is as follows:

Increase in post-tax loss BRAR1& B IELE N
Decrease in post-tax profit BrAR1&m R A

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Price risk

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and unlisted equity securities measured at
FVTOCI. The Group also invested in certain unquoted equity
securities for long term strategic purposes which had been
designated as FVTOCI.

M EREEN B RERE (8

FIE =k (&)

ERERR  ARBRMSHNEREEHET R
TRHFARZRARREREARTA - Bt - 8
RED WA EEIET BIRITAER ©

HEYOZ B ERARERBITIEENFE L7
TPEL00MEEE (T =4 : 100{AEZ;) - A
FTEEMESRIFTTE  AEAEEFARE
BIEE (M) WEENT

2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

57 -

- 248

ERERR - ARFERERM AL ARRKRER
A - BEURE DT TR EAFEE
@ o

B
MN-T-—ER—"T—=—F+—-_A=+—8 -
AEBRERAFEFABSFEZ ETRA
BHREATEHARMEEARRTEZIEE
AR ANZE 75 i 8 A E AR R o AEE A
RERKENKREETERERAES - HE
BERBRATEA AL MBEERE °
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39

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €W T A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Price risk (conTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the price of the respective investment in unlisted
equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the
year ended 31 December 2024 would increase/decrease by
HK$5,379,000 (2023: HK$5,110,000). If the prices of the
respective investment in listed equity securities measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2023: 10%) higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 would
decrease/increase by HK$24,000 (2023: post-tax profit
increase/decrease by HK$39,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
the Valuer to perform the valuation. The chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with the Valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The chief financial officer reports the findings to the
Directors of the Company at the end of the reporting period
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.
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M EREEN B RERE ()

B8/ ()

HRRE T

X2 BRE DT TR IR RS B R P 2 AR
AERABEE - MRIEAFEFAEMBE
HUREFTEZIE LELTRAFSFNBBREDN
B EF TER10% - AT A B8 8=
T REBHZE T _NF+_-_A=1+—
BItFEMEMEmE R GRBIE) 5380, %
45,379,000 7T (ZE = =4 : 5,110,000
JT) ° MM AP E AR E 2 EBRA
BHEMBBRENBER LA TRI0%(ZF
Z=F10%) c MBRAEEMEBREZT
B AEERE-E-ME+-A=+—H1F
FERRTEEBEERD, 24,0007 7T
(ZE==%F : BRFE&EEEM 439,000
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SMIA>AVEIE
ARt R EEMARENTEETRSREE
AFEZER -

RMBHEMS - ARENIRAFEF AR
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €W T A (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as
Fair value at hierarch
RUTBHZATE NFER
31 December
TZA=t-H
2024 2023
1 I3z
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tin T
Financial assets
SREE
1. Equity instruments at FVTOCI - 7,234 7307 Level 3
unlisted equity security (9.39%,
equity interest in a private entity
Established in PRC)
g ?ﬁ SALB2ENE =
—ELIRABA (A —RER
AT AER29.39%E)
- Unlisted equity security (14.97% 29,564 26,450 Level 3
equity interest in a private entity
established in PRC)
—JF LR AR (B eR A =8
UNIAZRZ1497%REE)
- unlisted equity security (2.20% 34,928 34373 Level 3
equity interest in a private entity
established in PRC)
3 AR (- R 24
UHIAREZ2.20%K18)
71,726 68,130
2. Financial assets at FVTPL 291 468 Level 1
- listed equity security
}i AEF \BRZ SREE g
LR

hERDKERAARE

book value of assets and liabilities of the  value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

investee are adjusted to their fair value.

investee are adjusted to their fair value.

TEMITAZAFETE @

FEEZEERERNFEIBZEMEES
AFE

AEBBOTREEDN SRS WRIZAFE
TE - TREREBEXSEREEAFEZS
ECLERER 2 AERT REAZE) @ A
RRBAFEFEBARBZ IBRRERR
Zﬁﬁa’\ﬁﬁz/&ﬁfﬁ%ﬁlﬁf&(— =Rz

Significant Relationship of

unobservable unobservable inputs

Valuation technique(s) inputs to fair value
and key input(s) ERTURE FURERAYUE
B N8 ENTENBE

Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset Anincrease in the

adjusted net assets,
holding all ather variables
constant would increase
the carrying amount.

WRRTAE L — BRANZAER RRENZ i

BENRAEIERAATH ERREERE 1% - H08
BEFEENM
HEEEEN -
Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset An increase in the
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee adjusted net assets,

holding all other variables
constant would increase

I o ) hecarryingamount
BESREEL — BIRER ZEER - &R A2
BEMEAEAERAATE BAREETHE bﬂﬂ‘? i3
BEREEN
FAESEN
Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset Anincrease in the
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee adjusted net assets,

halding all other variables
constant would increase

the carrying amount,
BERREEL — %&ixﬁﬁZéE& N cvrd PR MEE
BRMEEEREREAATE BAREESE [Rig T2 - 3%
EEREAN
HREEREN -
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. NA NA
fEREMSTHE AR el
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

39. €T A (@)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (coNTINUED)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

EMIAZAFVEFTE@E

FEFZBERER L FPEGBZLHEEZ
RFE ()
F=RNHEFEZEK

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI

BAFERA

2wl

AT A

HK$'000

T

As at 1 January 2023 R =#—HF—H 61,376
Total unrealised gains in other comprehensive ﬁﬁﬁ%@”ﬂlﬁuZﬂiﬁiﬁl&ﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁ

income 10,618

Redemption & (2,668)

Exchange adjustment TE H FH & (1,196)

As at 31 December 2023 RZZE—_=%F+-A=+—H 68,130
Total unrealised gains in other comprehensive Hh e mEiies 2 KRR KRB

income 4,833

Exchange adjustment PE X TR (1,237)

As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_NFE+—-—A=+—H 71,726

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$4,833,000 (2023: HK$10,618,000) relating to unlisted
equity securities classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI
held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

40. TEWBATZHE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up

incorporation/ share capital/

registration registered capital
Name of subsidiaries HRRL/ER BRIRAR
HRAAER REREE RA/2RER
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares

Limited British Virgin Islands USD12,233

(BVI") LaR12033% T

ZTIMETAT=R

ABRIHES

([ZBRLES))
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares
ERETIEERAA Samoa USD2,002

“NANETZATER  EBR2002%T

EEDHS
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital
LEREFER The PRC RMB200,000,000

“hAZE+-ARR AR

G AK200,000,0007C
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital
LSRR The PRC USD5,000,000

k2 =17

f 5,000 00057
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited" 23 September 2003 Registered capital
LSRRI ERAR The PRC USD400,000

ZET-ENACTZR EfiER

e 400000% T
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share

Limited BVI usp1
“TIME-ATZR ERRIER
ABRLHES

R-F-—mER-—F-=#+=A=+—A%

ARZHEATRENT -

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/registered capital

held by the Company

ADAFSRAEE/ HRER LA

Directly Indirectly

ER B
2024 2003 2024 2023
ZBIRE “RCCF ZRopE ST
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERK

Manufacturing of handsets and 0T
terminals business, Electronics
manufacturing services business and
Property management in the PRC

ErEEETRRIBARGES
ETRERBRERER
RyFREER

Design and development of handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC

ERERSR R TRR RS
Hingi

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

EPERE e HEREEALE
BRI RS

Investment holding

REMR

261



40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

40. T EM B QT Z&F1E (@)

Name of subsidiaries

KEARZE

Shanghai Speedcomm
Technology Limited!
FERUGEARERAR

Max Vision Limited
AEERAH

Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited!
RS T (LA RRAR

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited”
RARER (D8) BRAE!

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited?
FRER R BRAT

Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited
(“SYRE")

FREX (IR ARAF
([RHAEX])

Shenyang SIM Simeorm*
MBENARE

Sunrise Simeom Electronic (Tong
Cheng) Limited
BARRRAT (R BRAD

262

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
S/
AHRE

16 November 2005

The PRC
“EZRE+-A1AA
e

17 September 2003
Hong Kong
“E3-FNATtA
B

8 December 2003

The PRC
“EE-F1+-ANR
e

2 August 2006

The PRC
ZEERE/\AZA
GilET

25 October 2007

The PRC
8 2 e i
B

8 November 2007

The PRC
“ERHET-ANR
B

24 July 2008
The PRC
“TENFLAZTRA
i

7 September 2020
The PRC
ZZ-TENALR
il
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Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRER

B /imEs

Registered capital
RMB7,500,000
AR
ARET 500,000

Ordinary shares
HK$2
LERoAT

Registered capital
USD200,000

iHiER
200,00057

Registered capital
RMB40,000,000

iV
AE40,0000007T

Registered capital
USD10,000,000

iHiER
10,000,000%7

Registered capital
USD4,300,000

&R
43000005

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

&R
AR%30,0000007T

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000

iHiER
ARH50,0000007T

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitallregistered capital

held by the Company
ADRFERATE/2REAZILA
Directly Indirectly
BR B
2024 2003 2024 2023
ZEomE “E--F CECmE C3o-F
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 60% 60%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERK

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

TERE e HERERALE
EmRREMRS

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
ERE TR RARR IR

HEER

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
TR SRR RERRRE

i

Properties development in PRC

EREUENRER

Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
terminals business in the PRC and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC

EPEEETRRIBARGERR
STRERBHEREN

Design and development of handsets and
0T terminals business in the PRC

Bl ER eI GRS Y
HnzHh



40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

40. TEWBAT 28 @)

Name of subsidiaries

KEARZE

Shenzhen Simcom Technology
Limited!®

PHIREEHEERAT

Simcom Holdings HK Limited
RAAREAARAR

Shanghai iLove Limited”
EEEREERTERAR!

Shanghai Xinkang Electronic
Technology Limited*
HETREFREERAR!

Smartwireless Technology Limited”

IREHREHEARAR

Shanghai Mobile Phone Public
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.*

HEFRARALRRTA
BRAR

Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limitec®
FNEAEEBRAR

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
SR/ R
AHRLE

28 August 2008

The PRC
ZEZN\ENAZTI\R
GilE]

22 September 2008
Hong Kong
“ZZ\FAA=TZA
&k

27 February 2009

The PRC
ZETNFCACTEA
LG

5 January 2009

The PRC
ZEENF-AEA
ke

13 February 2007

The PRC
“EEtECRTER
LG

21 December 2009

The PRC
“ETAFt-R-t-H
B

7 March 2013

The PRC
“3-=#=f+A
B

Issued and fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BETRAR
Rk /mEs

Registered capital
RMB65,500,000
il
AR 65,500,000

Ordinary share
HKS1
SRR

Registered capital
USD3,000,000

iftax
3,000,000% 70

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

HiER
ARE20,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB20,500,000

AR
ARE20,500,0007C

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

AR
ARE20,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

AR
ARE20,000,0007C

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitaliregistered capital

held by the Company
ADAFBRAEE/ HRER LA
Directly Indirectly
ER 3
2024 2003 2024 2023
ZBIRE “RCCF 3R T
- - - 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - - 97.5%
- - 100% 100%

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR

Principal activities

IERH

Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC

PR SR RARFRRES
Hingi

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Design and development of handsets
and [0T terminals business in the
PRC

SR RAEF AR ELS
£y

Design and development of handsets
and [0T terminals business in the
PRC

SR RAEF AR ELS
£y

Properties development in the PRC
ERElEnEER
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40

. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

40. T EM B QT Z&F1E (@)

Name of subsidiaries

KEARZE

Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited*
TH=AREARRAR

Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things
Technology Limited*
THZEMREREERA A

Shanghai Wide-Top Financial
Leasing Co, Ltd®
LaRRREARERRARS

Alpha Apex Limited™

Shanghai Yunmao 0T Limited*
AZEMREREERA A

Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech
Limited®

ABHAEERRERAF

Shanghai Simcom System Limited*
ARRRRZNEN(LE)
ARAR!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
S/
AHRE

24 April 2013

The PRC
“2-£PNA-TRHA
hE

7 June 2013

The PRC
“F-=%/AtA
HE

17 July 2013

The PRC
e s
ke

26 October 2012

Samoa
2 e |
EETHE

11 October 2014

The PRC
“E-PWETAT-R
ke

28 October 2014

The PRC
“E-WE+A=1)\R
Gl

17 March 2014

The PRC
“E-PWE=ATtA
Gl
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Proportion of nominal value of
share capitallregistered capital
held by the Company
ADRFERATE/2REAZILA
Directly Indirectly
ER B

2024 2024
ZECmE “ECRE

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRER

B /imEs

2023
e

e

2023
S

=

Registered capital - - 100% 100%
RMB50,000,000

AR
AR 50,000,000

Registered capital - - 100% 100%
RMB10,000,000

HHEA
ARE10,000,0007T

Registered capital - - - 100%
USD17,000,000

AR
17,000,000% 7

Registered capital - - - 100%

usp1

EMARIET

Registered capital - - 100% 100%
RMB10,000,000

HHEA
ARE10,000,0007T

Registered capital - - - 100%
RMB30,000,000

HHEAR
AEE30,000,0007T

Registered capital - - 100% 100%
RMB20,000,000

HHEAR
ARE20,000,0007T

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding

REMRK

Development of internet of things system
and onling-to-offling equipment in the

PRC
EERENBEZAREER

Finance lease service in the PRC

EhERREARERS

Investment holding

RESR

Development of internet of things system
and onling-to-offling equipment in the

PRC
ErERENBRZARESRE

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
EPERZEDRERE

Building design and construction of
smart home in the PRC
EPERG R AR R




40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. TEME A B 2#F 15 (@)

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitallregistered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AAAFERAEE/RRER 2
Name of subsidiaries AL/ R EERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARZR REREE RA/2RER EE B IEER
2024 2023 2024 2023
ZECWE -T--F ZECME —E-CF
Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015 Registered capital - - - 60%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited® The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
IBREABDIENERAT —T-RE\A-TER =MEx ErERZEDRERE
4 ARE10,000,0007T
Shenzhen Yunding Vending 16 January 2015 Registered capital - - 70% 70%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Operators Co, Limited The PRC RMB7,000,000 EHERETRES
MIMESEHEEKES ZE-RE-AAR AR
ARAR! 4 ARET000,00070
Guangdong SIM Technology 29 June 2021 Registered capital - - - 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
Co., Limited” The PRC USD105,000,000 the PRC
ERARRARAR ZE-E5AZTAR AR Bt g RARR
4 105,000,000% T
Shanghai Zhenkang 17 September 2013 Registered capital - - 67% 67%  Development of automotive cockpit
o:E The PRC RMB22,410,000 business in PRC
ZE-ZEARTER AR B E AR
¥ ARE22,410,0007T
1 Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. ' FEh Mz 2IMERERE -
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 FEREEMZ RIS ERE -
g Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 3 ERRATNE T Bl 2 2N IRARE -
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC. 4 EPRREZ2RERE -
3 The Company was de-registered at 9 April 2024. ° ZARIR = F =N AN R BOEER
6 The Company was de-registered at 7 May 2024. e ZARIN T MEH AL BBOH T
7 The Company was de-registered at 13 May 2024. / ZARN =B —MNF R A+=HBUHREM -
8 The Company was disposed on 24 June 2024. 8 ZARN_F_MENATHARE -
9 The Company was de-registered at 4 November 2024. ° Z AR =T 4+ — A0 EBUHRS ©

The Company was de-registered at 18 November 2024.
The Company was de-registered at 30 November 2024.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ZARR=ZE=_NF+— A+ N\ BEUHERM °
FZARR_E_WF+—A=+HEUEZEM -

W AR B A BN A E R AF E R ER
A A AR B ES o
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40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

40.

TEMB AR ZFHE @

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in handsets and 10T
terminals business, automotive intelligent products business
and property management. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal place

Principal activities of business
FEEK FTEZEMI
Handsets and |OT terminals business PRC

FH 2 B AR AR o FE TS A EY
Automotive intelligent products business PRC
BHEEELER A Ed
Property management PRC
YEREEE A

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling
interests:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests
FERESME
WEAR R ARRIRTEEEHS BRRRERRERILG
2024 2003
ZBCRE I3EE
SYRE PRC 40% 40%
FER el

Indlvidually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

B ERER AR EANEAR

Summarised financial information for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

ZEWMBRRARBONEHEFHE B AR
WER  BEHEEEMEBARMEREE
12 - ZEMBARZ EBEBHIMT

Number of principal subsidiaries

FEMBLTEAE
2024 2023
—ET-E —E-=F
7 7
1 1
3 3

TREJAEENETHRAEAIERESZ
FEEMBAR

Loss allocated to

non-controlling Accumulated
interests non-controlling interests
AREFEREE
BRER ERE S
2024 2003 2024 2003
ZECRE BCcE ZECRE I3zE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tk Tén T
(122) (3.247) 7,008 7,130
(17,078) (7,863)
(10,070) (733)

AEEHEEERFERESZZHBRATRER
—ENER—TE_=F+_A=+—HIF
Bz ERBIEINT « TXATE 2 s E R
MEARIEHEERNA R -



40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

40. T EMB QT ZFF1F (@)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total equity

Revenue

Other income, gains and losses
Expenses

Income tax refund

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive expenses
for the year

Total comprehensive expenses
for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive expenses
for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Other comprehensive expenses
for the year

Total comprehensive expenses
for the year attributable to:
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Total comprehensive expenses
for the year

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Net cash outflow

FEREEE

mEBEE

mEAaE

R AR

WA

HAWA ~ Yoas B8
X

REIFFFH
RER ) (B518)
AFEEEMEEFX

AEEEHEFM AR

THIBRREMGEARFERT (B518)
—RABEZHEAA
—RAEXZ IR

RERRN (B18)
THBREERFE

Hib2HEMAX

—BAERZHEEA

—RAEX 2 IR
AEREEMPMEFS

T RBREEAFERH
P ARAR
—RAERZHEAA
—RAERZIER RS

AEERERF B

REEBRAERSRLIFR
REMmHFE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
13,153 13,532
4,967 4,479
(599) (184)
17,521 17,827
779 812
(174) (7,337)
(651) (1,668)
49 75

3 (8,118)
(308) (186)
(305) (8,304)

2 (4,871)

1 (3,247)

3 (8,118)
(185) (111)
(123) (75)
(308) (186)
(183) (4,982)
(122) (3,322)
(305) (8,304)
(4) (86)

(39) (86)

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR
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41

. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

41. AR TBIRR R R E

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables
Financial assets at FVTPL
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary
Other payables and accruals

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2024

FRBEE
R—RBARZIRE
= NCIE S

RBEE

H A EURIR
BAFEFABRRZEREE
RITHEER

REAE
e — R B A BIRR0A
H At R AR N R 5K0R

REAEFE
REERRBRE
BN fEE

A

G

AR

2024 2023
—E-EF T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
179,803 179,803
1,286,911 1,323,396
1,466,714 1,503,199
595 629

291 468

52 2,544

938 3,641
205,511 130,558
1,766 1,771
207,277 132,329
(206,339) (128,688)
1,260,375 1,374,511
214,335 214,335
1,046,040 1,160,176
1,260,375 1,374,511




41. STATEMEN

(CONTINUED)

T OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

41, EATHBRNE R @

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=F-f-H
Profit and comprehensive income FEERHRZARA
for the year %

Transfer under forfefture of share option 54 R I EEMRIERER

Shares granted under the shareaward R 2B EIR LA

scheme fif
Repurchase of orcinary shares BELER
At 31 December 2023 i
TZR=1-A
Lossand comprehensive expense  AEEBEREE
for the year Rxis
Transfer under forfeiture of share option SRR IERER
Dividend paid EfRE
At 31 December 2024 i 3
tZA=t-H

AARREEE
Share
Capital based Employee
Share  redemption payment share trust Special Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Nk EERH
KRR EAEERE  GFEE  GRER NIEBE REER Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T TR Tén T TR Tén
746459 38,705 17871 (16623) 193848 102,540 1,082,800
- - - - - 71510 71510
= = (9,269) - - 9,269 -
- - - 16,623 - (4.074) 12549
(12,783) 5517 - - - (5517) (12,783)
733716 4,200 8,602 - 193,848 179,788 1,160,176
- - - - - (28,402) (28,402)
- - (8,602) - - 8,602 -
- - - - - (85,734) (85,734)
733,716 44222 - - 193,848 74,254 1,046,040

BRANBKEEERAR —F —PUFFR
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REWE

Group’s Effective
interest in the

Location properties

AEERYEHR
Ith B ZERERE
Block A, SIM Technology Building, 100%

No. 633 Jinzhong Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

HE DERERSEK633 5t
EAEHAEAEZ

Block B, SIM Technology Building, 100%
No. 633 Jinzhong Road,

Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

R LB RERSERKG33 IF

EAEHIAEBE

An industrial complex, located at 100%
No. 37 Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District,

Shenyang,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC

FEIEEEEG T

hIEEE37 RH — AL EEE

Shop 32, Block 1, 60%
The Riverside Country,

location at No. 32

Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District, Shenyang,

Liaoning Province, the PRC

HFEIEEE &S T LR

EAb BE 3255 dm e Rk B L& 3257 i
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Approximate gross
floor area

BRBEEEE
(sg.m)
(F72K)

11,615

11,262

51,316

2,279

Usage

Jiikes

Commercial

[SES

Commercial

[SES

Industrial

T

Commercial

[EES

Category of
lease

RSk

Medium-term
lease

aabaikicky)

Medium-term
lease

aabikicky)

Medium-term
lease

aabeikicky)

Medium-term
lease

aabikisky)



RESULTS
Revenue

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

£ |
WA

BR AT (B59R) &7

BR

RER (B18) &

ATALR
ARERAA
FFERE L

BERAE
REE

RaR

RAREA AEiGHES

SRR

For the year ended 31 December
BZEt-A=1-HLEFE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

—E —E =t i 2 it —m_= —EC-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT THI THERT
1,073,218 755,994 638,017 543,940 429,370
(56,652) (252,310) (499,315) 416,943 (120,057)
9,459 6,788 (8,507) (83,769) 15,940
(47,193) (245,522) (507,822) 333,174 (104,117)
(38,323) (245,800) (509,453) 344,285 (94,780)
(8,870) 278 1,631 (11,111) (9,337)
(47,193) (245,522) (507,822) 333,174 (104,117)

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1—-HLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

i S 23 —E-F 3 —T-=F “ECME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT THT THER
2,801,636 2,583,180 2,053,854 2,149,540 1,921,180
(653,771) (688,997) (745,518) (530,347) (491,264)
2,147,865 1,894,183 1,308,336 1,619,193 1,429,916
2,132,402 1,881,252 1,294,213 1,619,926 1,439,986
15,463 12,931 14,123 (733) (10,070)
2,147,865 1,894,183 1,308,336 1,619,193 1,429,916
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Cho Tung (Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Man Ying

Mr. ZHU Wenhui

Mr. ZHU Qi

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Hing Hung (resigned as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from 25
January 2025)

Ms. LAl Ka Fung May (appointed
as independent non-executive
Director with effect from 25
January 2025)

Mr. WU Zhe (resigned as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from 25
January 2024)

Mr. LI Minbo

Mr. YANG Wentao (appointed as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from 25
January 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
(resigned as chairman of Audit
Committee with effect from 25
January 2025)

Ms. LAl Ka Fung May (Chairman)
(appointed as chairman of Audit
Committee with effect from 25
January 2025)

Mr. WU Zhe (resigned as a
member of Audit Committee
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